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LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

Fiscal 2008 was our first full year since the beginning of our transition toward a value-driven, oral diagnostic and soft tissue management company, with a
vertically integrated sales and marketing organization. It was a year in which we successfully executed our plan to focus on growing the business, reducing
costs through restructuring and reorganizing and obtaining a positive adjusted EBITDA for the fourth quarter. Additionally, we were successful in attaining
the regulatory approvals necessary to launch ViziLite® Plus in major international markets.

Financial Highlights

For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2008, net revenues climbed 57% to $45.1 million compared with $28.8 million in fiscal 2007. Gross profit grew to
$27.7 million, or 62% of net revenues, from $16.9 million, or 59% of net revenues, for the prior year. Loss from continuing operatiens improved to
$16.1 million, or $1.80 per share, from $19.1 million, or $2.37 per share, for fiscal 2007. Importantly, the campany made strides in narrowing its loss from
continuing operations in each successive quarter of fiscal 2008.

We continue to explore all available avenues that will allow us to obtain the cash necessary to grow our business.At Qctober 31,2008, the company had
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of approximately $3.0 million.

Cost Reductions

The improvements to our financial results were the result of profit enhancement initiatives as well as a number of major expense reduction measures
implemented in the second half of the year.The combined effect of these efforts helped us exceed the Defined EBITDA debt covenant requirement under
the company’s senior secured convertible debt, and is no longer required.

A few of the initiatives that Jed to this performance included:

»  The hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and the completion of their training across the full portfolio of the company’s
products;

*  Implementation of select price increases, as well as programs that reduced our cost of goods sold;

= Reduction of headcount in the non-selling warkforce by more than 10 percent, temporary reduction of the salaries of certain senior managers
and the suspension of other employee benefits; and

s The elimination, reduction or deferral of non-critical programs.

These initiatives proved to be effective in meeting the Defined EBITDA debt covenant during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do not
expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other operating costs, to be sustainable into future periods.

We also made progress in several operational areas, including the implementation of programs for more efficient accounts receivable collections and
the maintenance of lower inventory levels.

ViziLite Plus, Our Oral Cancer Screening Product

As with any cancer, early detection is the key to better outcomes.ViziLite Plus, our flagship product, enhances the standard of care for dental professionals
by enabling the detection of oral abnormalities before they progress to cancer. During fiscal 2008, we grew sales of ViziLite Plus to $13.7 million, an
increase of |07% over fiscal 2007,

Oral cancer is a global health problem, with more than 400,000 cases diagnosed annually. This past year, we made progress making ViziLite Plus available
internationally. We commenced marketing it in Canada in November 2007 and the United Kingdom and Ireland in May 2008. And since July, we have
selected marketing partners for the product in Belarus, Cyprus, France, Germany, Greece, Portugal, Russia and Spain. The combined population in
overseas markets is approximately 400 million, We expect to expand the international market opportunity for ViziLite Plus and are in the process of
identifying other distributors.

Management and Board

Guiding the company with a talented and diverse board of directors has been top priority. Last month, Wade F. Brooksby was elected to the company's
Board of Directors and will serve on the audit committee. The appointment increases the board to six members, five of whom are non-employee
directors. Brooksby adds extensive operating experience gained as a senior financial executive for several companies in a variety of industries.

Earlier in the year, | was named chief executive officer in addition to my role as chairman of the board of directors. | have confidence in Zila's underlying
business and look forward to working to increase shareholder value.

Looking Ahead

Qur goals are to expand the market opportunity for our products and build a sustainable and growing enterprise. Given rising healthcare costs and a
challenging economy, we believe patients will pay attention to their preventive oral health to avert the high costs associated with treatment of disease.
We are working with dental practices to put in place oral care protocols for oral cancer screening and periodontal disease — diseases that impact every
adult patient.

On behalf of the Board and management, | express deep appreciation for the continued support of our shareholders, as well as for the hard work,
sacrifice and dedication of our employees.

Sincerely,

David R. Bethune
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

November |0, 2008
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PART 1

Item 1. Business
Intreduction

Zila, Inc., headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, is a diagnostic company dedicated to the prevention, detection and
treatment of oral cancer and periodontal disease. In this report, “Zila,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refers to Zila,
Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Zila, Inc. is a holding company that conducted its business operations during
fiscal 2008 through its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Professional Dental Technologies, Inc.
{*‘Pro-Dentec’), Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Technical, Inc., Zila Limited (a United Kingdom company) and Ryker

Dental of Kentucky, Inc. (inactive).

We manufacture and market ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® (*ViziLite® Plus”), our flagship product for the early
detection of oral abnormalities that could lead to cancer. ViziLite® Plus is an adjunctive medical device cleared by
the FDA for use in a population at increased risk for oral cancer. In addition, Zila designs, manufactures and markets
a suite of proprietary products sold exclusively and directly to dental professionals for periodontal disease,
including the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush, the Pro-Select Platinum® ultrasonic scaler and a portfolio of
oral pharmaceutical products for both in-office and home-care use. All of our products are marketed and sold in the
United States and Canada primarily through our direct field sales force and telemarketing organization. Cur
products are marketed and sold in other international markets through the sales forces of third party distributors. Our
marketing programs reach most U.S, dental offices and include continuing education seminars for dentists and their
staffs. We are certified by the American Dental Association and the Academy of General Dentistry to provide
continuing education seminars.

Recent Developments

Senior Debt Restructured and Fourth Quarter Defined EBITDA Covenant Satisfied

On June 3, 2008 we entered into a second amendment agreement (the “Second Amendment Agreement”) to
our senior secured convertible debt (“Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes™) that resulted in a change in
certain financial covenants as follows:

(i) The cash and cash equivalents balance that is required to be maintained at the end of each fiscal quarter
commencing with the fiscal quarter ending July 31, 2008 was reduced from $2.0 million to $1.0 million; and

(ii) The required EBITDA level, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
{“Defined EBITDA™), of at least $1.00 must be met for any one fiscal quarter on or prior to our quarter ending
July 31, 2009. Prior to the Second Amendment Agreement, we were required to have Defined EBITDA of at
least $1.00 for each of the fiscal quarters ending July 31, 2008 and October 31, 2008.

During the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we implemented profit enhancement initiatives that resulted
in achieving compliance with the Defined EBITDA covenant. For the three months ended July 31, 2008, Defined
EBITDA was $1.0 million. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations,” for a further discussion and computation of Defined EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP measure used
in our debt agreements. :

The profit enhancement initiatives undertaken in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008 included:

(i) Completing the hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and completing their training
across the full portfolio of our products. This action helped to achieve a 7% and 6% growth in revenues in the
third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008 over the previous quarter, respectively.

(ii) Improving revenues and gross profit through the implementation of selective price increases effective
May 15, 2008 and implementing initiatives to reduce our cost of goods. As a result of these initiatives, our
profit margin increased by 5% from the third quarter of fiscal 2008 to 66% for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
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(iii) Reducing headcount in our non-selling workforce by over 10%, temporarily reducing the salaries of
our management employees and reducing certain other employee benefits.

(iv) Reducing, deferring or eliminating non-critical programs across the organization while maintaining
key selling initiatives.

In addition to these profit enhancement initiatives, we undertook actions to improve our working capital
position by July 31, 2008 through the reduction of the number of days our sales are outstanding and through the
reduction of inventory levels. As a result of these actions, our working capital improved by $0.6 million in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

The initiatives discussed above proved to be effective in our meeting the Defined EBITDA covenant contained
in our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do not
expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other operating costs, (o be
sustainable into future periods. Additionally, since the time of our acquisition of Pro-Dentec in November 2006, we
have experienced higher than expected turnover in our sales force and have continued to experience turnover
throughout fiscal 2008. We would expect these factors, coupled with the recent economic downturn in the
United States and its impact on discretionary spending for our products, to likely cause near term future operating
resuits to be less favorable than our financial results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do expect
many of the strategic actions discussed above, as well as opportunities we continue to identify to stimulate future
revenue growih and profitability, to have a favorable impact on our future results of operations.

International Expansion

In November 2007, we commenced an international expansion initiative with the launch of ViziLite® Plus in
Canada and we have furthered that effort with the launch of ViziLite® Plus in the United Kingdom in May 2008 at
the British Dental Conference and Exhibition, the British Dental Association’s annual conference. We have selected
Panadent Limited, a leading supplier of dental products in the United Kingdom, including England, Wales, Scotland
and Ireland, as our exclusive distributor for ViziLite® Plus in those markets. In May 2008, we selected Oraldent Ltd
to be the exclusive distributor of the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush and our line of periodontal probes,
Perio Probe and Sensor Probe, in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. In July 2008 we selected
Intertrade Dental A.E.S.A. as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in Greece, Cyprus and the Greek Isles and
in August 2008 we selected Dentaid as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in France, Germany and the
Iberian Peninsula, which includes Spain, Portugal, the Canary Islands, the Madiera Islands, Andorra and the
Azores. We also selected DentalMed Russian Alliance as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in Russia and
Belarus. :

Insurance Reimbursement

In April 2008, Humana and United Healthcare began coverage of ViziLite® Plus examinations. Humana and
United Healthcare join a growing list of premiere and national insurance plans that provide coverage for ViziLite®
Plus, which also includes Cigna, Guardian, SafeGuard, Northeast Delta Dental and a number of regional plans and
self-insured employers. With the addition of these two major dental insurance providers, oral cancer screening is
now a benefit to more than 21 miilion covered lives, however, not all dental professionals have made ViziLite® Plus
available to their patients.

Reverse Stock Split

On September 12, 2008, our sharcholders approved a one for seven reverse split of our common stock. As a
result of the reverse split, each holder of seven outstanding shares of common stock received one share of common
stock. Fractional shares resulting from this reverse split have been issued to our shareholders as applicable and
accordingly, we did not make any cash payments in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares. The reverse split has
been retroactively applied to all applicable information to the earliest period presented.
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Our Products

Currently, our product portfolio is centered primarily on two key oral disease therapeutic areas: oral cancer and
periodontal disease. With the ongoing aging of the U.S. population, we believe that we are well-positioned to take
advantage of the growing need for screening and treatment of an increased risk population for these diseases, which
tend to be associated with patients who are above the age of 40 years old.

ViziLite® Plus

ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® is a patented medical device cleared by the FDA as an oral lesion identification and
marking system that is used as an adjunct to the conventional head and neck examination. It consists of a
chemiluminescent light source (ViziLite®) to improve the identification of lesions and TBlue®, the oral lesion
marking system, to mark those lesions differentially identified by ViziLite®. ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® is designed
to be used in a patient population at increased risk for oral cancer.

ViziLite® can assist a dentist, hygienist and other healthcare providers in identifying an abnormality in the oral
cavity for further evaluation and follow-up. The efficacy of ViziLite® in identifying oral abnormalities has been
demonstrated in four Zila-sponsored clinical trials in the United States and numerous studies independently
performed at academic institutions throughout the world. ViziLite® consistently demonstrates a high degree of
sensitivity in the identification of pathological lesions in both high risk and general screening populations. These
studies demonstrate that ViziLite® can assist dental and medical professionals in identifying an abnormality in the
oral cavity for further evaluation and follow-up.

_ TBlue® is a patented, pharmaceutical-grade toluidine blue-based metachromatic dye used to further evaluate
and closely monitor changes in ViziLite®-identified lesions. TBlue®, packaged in an easy to use three swab system,
provides a deep blue staining that allows Vizilite®-identified lesions to be seen clearly under normal patient
lighting. ViziLite® Plus is recommended for use annually for all new and re-care adult dental patients following the
standard head and neck exam. We believe that patients with a history of oral cancer should receive at least semi-
annual ViziLite® Plus exams. We developed and use the term Lumenoscopy™ to describe the examination
conducted with ViziLite® Plus,

Rotadent One Step® With MicroAccess Flossing Action™

The Rotadent One Step® With MicroAccess Flossing Action™ (“Rotadent®”) is a proprietary, rotary-action,
plaque removal and teeth cleaning device dispensed by dental professionals to patients for use at home between
dental office visits. The Rotadent® is a rechargeable, power assisted instrument that is designed using a Lexan (by
General Electric) water-resistant power handle that accepts interchangeable heads and uniquely designed patented
brush tips. The product utilizes a cleaning action similar to that of the rotary instruments used by dentists and
hygienists to professionally clean teeth in the dental office. Each Rotadent® has two interchangeable heads so that
different persons can economically and hygienically use the same power handle. Replacement interchangeable
heads and brush tips are available through dental offices and from our customer service department by telephone.
Each of the patented interchangeable brush tips is comprised of a bundle of microfilaments that create more than
90,000 cleaning sweeps per second and, when compared to conventional toothbrush bristles, are less abrasive to
tooth enamel and gingival tissue (gums). The tips are soft, safe and durable. The small size of the filaments and
brush tips enables the user to reach areas of the mouth that conventional toothbrushes generally cannot reach
effectively.

The effectiveness of the Rotadent® results from its ability to remove dental plaque. Plague is a thin filmy
substance that continually forms in the mouth due to bacterial activity and, if allowed to remain, hardens on teeth
and roots as calculus or tartar and can only be removed by a dental professional. Unless removed daily, plaque
deposits can cause inflammation and gingivitis and can ultimately lead to more severe periodontal disease, which is
now a leading cause of tooth loss in the United States. Numerous clinical trials conducted at major university dental
schools have shown the Rotadent® to be more effective than manual tooth brushing for removing plaque and
controlling gingivitis. Two one-year clinical trials published in a leading refereed periodontal research journal have
shown that the Rotadent® is as effective in removing plaque, controlling gingivitis and reducing the bacteria that
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cause periodontal disease as using a combination of dental floss, an interspace brush, toothpicks and a conventional
toothbrush.

The Rotadent?® is engineered to be especially effective for plaque removal from the area at or just below the
gum line and between the teeth, the most critical areas for cleaning to prevent periodontal disease. Many dentists
and hygienists recommend the use of the Rotadent ® for applying antimicrobials and other medications to tooth
surfaces and gums. A study at the Harvard School of Dental Medicine, jointly sponsored with Procter & Gamble,
concluded that the effect of the leading antimicrobial, chlorhexidine gluconate, is significantly enhanced when
applied with the Rotadent®. '

Pro-Select Platinum® Piezo-Ultrasonic Scaler System

Pro-Select Platinum® Piezo-Ultrasonic Scaler System (“Pro-Seiect Platinum®”) with Advanced Comfort
Technology™ is an ultrasonic instrument used by dentists and dental hygienists for the therapeutic removal of
hardened deposits from both the anatomic crown and root surfaces of the tooth. The Pro-Select Platinum® is a scaler
that combines computerized piezo-ultrasonic technology with a closed, multi-fluid, heated irrigation system that
effectively delivers purified water, antimicrobials, disinfectants and desensitizing solutions to the teeth and gums
during and after scaling or root planning procedures. Our proprietary piezo-ultrasonic technology provides faster,
linear tip movement, which adjusts to deliver optimal speed for the clinical condition and we believe results in
maximum patient and operator comfort and may eliminate the need for anesthesia for most patients.

Dental Fluoride Products

We manufacture and market a full line of topically applied dental fluoride products, including rinses and gels.
The line consists of products applied in the office by dental professionals as well as products utilized at home by
patients between office visits. The effectiveness of fluoride for fighting tooth decay is widely recognized. Fluoride
is also extensively used by dental professionals to destroy the bacteria associated with periedontal disease, as well
as to reduce the sensitivity of exposed roots due to soft tissue loss from periodontal disease and/or periodontal
surgery. We believe that our fluoride product line is now the broadest-based and most complete product line
available in dentistry.

Other Oral Pharmaceutical Products

In addition to the above products, we manufacture and market a full line of oral rinse, gels, dentifrice and oral
care accessories for use in the office by dental professionals as well as products used at home by patients between
office visits,

Oral Cancer Diagnostic Product

OraTest® is Zila’s patented rinse form of our pharmaceutical grade toluidine blue (“TBO”) that in clinical
studies has demonstrated preferential staining of oral cancers and lesions with a high risk of progressing to oral
cancer. Potential applications for Zila’s TBO may include detecting high-risk lesions of the cervix, esophagus and
skin as well as oral cancer. The OraTest® product is a patented system designed to be an aid in the early detection of
oral squamous cell carcinoma and high-risk premalignancies for the purpose of referral to a specialist in oral cancer.
Itis to be used as a diagnostic adjunct for oral cancer and may be used as a general rinse for detecting oral cancer and
high-grade pre-malignancies in patients at elevated risk for oral cancer and as an aid to establish borders for biopsy-
and surgical site selection. The OraTest® kit consists of a Zila’s TBO aqueous solution with acetic acid and alcohol,
and acetic acid pre-and post-rinse solutions. The OraTest® kit is initially applied as a chair-side oral rinse and as a
self-contained swab for follow-up appointments and is administered by either a medical practitioner or dentist.
OraTest® is approved for distribution in the United Kingdom, Belgium, the Netherlands, Luxembourg, Finland,
Greece and Portugal. The clinical and regulatory program to gain FDA approval of OraTest® in the United States
was suspended in October 2007 as we decided to focus our resources on the marketing of our flagship product,
ViziLite® Plus with TBlue®. We continue to evaluate strategic alternatives for the entire pharmaceutical grade
toluidine blue platform.
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Sales and Marketing

We sell our products directly to dental offices in the United States and Canada through our direct field sales
force and telemarketing organization. Qur marketing programs reach most U.S. dental offices and include
continuing education seminars that dentists and their staffs pay to attend. We are certified by the American
Dental Association and the Academy of General Dentistry to provide continuing education seminars. We believe
that these seminars are ideally suited to educate a large number of dental professionals on the importance of oral
cancer screening and periodontal health. '

In order to achieve our vision of establishing ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® as the key to an enhanced standard of
care for oral abnormality screening, our overall strategy is to educate the dental professional and widen distribution
among practicing dentists. Through our national sales force and the selective use of national and regional
distributors, we have focused on geographical markets that have demonstrated early acceptance. Market expansion
in the United States is primarily driven by the following:

+ the expansion of our national sales force based on achievement of success metrics in existing focus markets;
* continuing education programs that emphasize the importance of oral cancer screening;

* a comprehensive program targeting insurers designed to secure a meaningful level of insurance reimburse-
ment for use of the ViziLite® Plus device built upon the established American Dental Association procedural
code; and

» effective communication of information about current clinical efficacy trials that can provide thought-leader
support, involvément and commitment to ViziLite® Plus.

We also believe that the market for our entire line of products is expanding, attributable in part to the expanded
shift in focus by the general dentist from the treatment of tooth decay to include a greater emphasis on the.
prevention, early detection and treatment of oral disease. The expanding market is also attributable to the aging
U.S. population, which puts these consumers at increased risk for both oral cancer and periodontitis. Our products
specifically address the need for early diagnosis of oral abnormalities and the diagnosis, treatment and prevention of
periodontal disease.

These trends, coupled with the increasing awareness of the importance of oral health and the need for improved
technology for the prevention, early detection and treatment of oral disease among consumers and dental
professionals alike, should lead to an expanding marketplace for our products. With this increased professional
and consumer awareness, we believe that we are positioned to benefit from both demographic trends and the overall
expansion in the healthcare focus to include prevention and wellness.

We expanded our professional field sales force in the United States and Canada during the fiscal year ended
July 31, 2008. The focus of this expansion was to provide greater territorial coverage, which management believes is
the most effective way to increase the awareness and penetration of our products in dental offices in the United States
and Canada. Customers in geographic areas not covered by a field sales representative are served by a network of
experienced call-center account executives. Additionaily, to address the world-wide need for our products, we are
marketing our products internationally through the use of sales and marketing arrangements with distributors.

In November 2007, we commenced an international expansion initiative with the launch of ViziLite® Plus in
Canada and we have furtheted that effort with the launch of ViziLite® Plus in the United Kingdom in May 2008 at
the British Dental Conference and Exhibition, the British Dental Association’s annual conference. We have selected
Panadent Limited, a leading supplier of dental products in the United Kingdom, including Engtand, Wales, Scotland
and Ireland, as our exclusive distributor for ViziLite® Plus in those markets. In May 2008, we selected Oraldent Ltd
to be the exclusive distributor of the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush and our line of periodontal probes,
Perio Probe and Sensor Probe, in the United Kingdom. In July 2008 we selected Intertrade Dental A.E.S.A. as the
exclusive distributor of ViziL.ite® Plus in Greece, Cyprus and the Greek Isles and in August 2008 we selected
Dentaid as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in France; Germany and the Iberian Peninsula, which includes
Spain, Portugal, The Canary Islands, Madiera Islands, Andorra and the Azores. We also selected DentalMed
Russian Alliance as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in Russia and Belarus.




Manufacturing and Supply

Our ViziLite® Plus product consists of a number of components produced and assembled by our manufacturing
facilities in Phoenix, Arizona and Batesville, Arkansas and by different contract manufacturers under our direction
and control. For some components, we currently rely on a single source of supply.

In order to ensure an available and stable supply of TBlue® for our ViziLite® Plus product, we established our
own manufacturing facility in Phoenix, Arizona. This facility manufactures TBlue® under our quality standards and
the FDA'’s current Good Manufacturing Practices (“cGMP”) standards, providing the pharmaceutical-grade quality
required.

At our facilities in Batesville, Arkansas, we develop and manufacture our Rotadent®, Pro-Select Platinum®,
dental fluoride and other oral pharmaceutical products. At these facilities, we engineer and own computer-driven,
antomated, and patented brush machines, tooling and equipment for manufacturing high precision metal parts,
injection molding machines and multi-cavity injection molds for precision plastic parts, equipment for com-
pounding mixing and filling liquids pastes and gels, as well as other manufacturing and assembly equipment.
Additionally, we warehouse and distribute directly to our customers from this location. There are generally alternate
sources of supply for key components and materials used in the manufacturing process. We are not dependent upon
a single supplier for these components or types of materials for our products. A local vendor in Batesville, Arkansas
molds certain of our probe products using tooling that we designed and own, These probes are made from materials
readily available from multiple sources.

Competition

All of the industries in which we sell our products are highly competitive. A number of companies, many of
which have greater financial resources, marketing capabilities and research and development capacities than we
have, are actively engaged in the development of products that may compete with our products. The pharmaceutical
industry is characterized by extensive and ongoing research efforts that may result in development by other
companies of products comparable or superior to any that are now on the market, including those that we sell,

ViziLite® Plus

ViziLite® Plus oral lesion identification and marking system with TBlue® is a patented, FDA-cleared device
used to detect oral mucosal abnormalities, ViziLite® Plus competes with the conventional method of simple visual
and tactile testing for abnormalities that has previously been the only available methodology for identifying lesions.
While there are other technelogies that claim utility as general screening tools, ViziLite® Plus is still the only
technology that has been validated in numerous single-center and multi-center studies evaluating general screening
populations.

Rotadent®

The marketplace for home use oral hygiene devices is highly competitive. We compete with many different
. manufacturers of manual and electrically powered tooth cleaning devices, including electric toothbrushes such as
the Interplak (by Conair), the Braun Oral-B (by Gillette) and the Sonicare (by Optiva Corporation). These
competitors are larger and use a wider variety of distribution methods than we do. We successfully compete with
these companies using a niche market strategy and based on favorable long-term clinical studies, product design,
product quality and responsive service to both professionals and consumers. We primarily focus on a professional
distribution system. Thus, we have invested in clinical trials and in efforts to demonstrate to dentists and hygienists
the advantages of dispensing the Rotadent® product from their dental offices as part of their plaque control
programs and the other professional services they offer, including implant maintenance, orthodontic appliances, the
maintenance of cosmetic restorations, post-surgical maintenance of periodontal cases and general preventive oral
hygiene.




Pro-Select Platinum®

The Pro-Select Platinum® competes with products of several other companies that manufacture, market and
sell electronically powered dental scaling equipment. We seek to compete with other manufacturers based on direct
distribution to an established network of dental practitioners, and through the effectiveness and comfort of the Pro-
Select Platinum® for both the patient and clinician.

Dental Fluorides and Other Oral Pharmaceutical Products

Our fluoride dental products, periodontal probes and our oral rinses, gels, dentifrices and oral care accessories,
compete with products of several other companies that manufacture, market, and distribute these types of products
to dentists. The market for dental pharmaceuticals is fragmented, with no one company controlling or dominating.
We compete in this market by selling directly through our professional representatives, based on quality, breadth of
offering and the price of our products. We believe dental offices recognize the ability to purchase fluorides,
prophylaxis paste, manual and powered toothbrushes and other dental products from a single supplier as a
convenience. We believe we have an advantage over other companies to the extent we offer a complete line of such
products that reduces the number of suppliers with which each dental office must deal.

Distribution Agreements

ViziLite® Plus

In fiscal 2008, we selected Panadent Limited, a leading supplier of dental products in the United Kingdom,
including England, Wales, Scotland and Ireland, as our exclusive distributor for ViziLite® Plus in those markets. In
July 2008 we selected Intertrade Dental A.E.S.A. as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in Greece, Cyprus
and the Greek Isles and in August 2008 we selected Dentaid as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in France,
Germany and the Iberian Peninsula, which includes Spain, Portugal, The Canary Islands, Madiera Islands, Andorra
and the Azores. We also selected DentalMed Russian Alliance as the exclusive distributor of ViziLite® Plus in
Russia and Belarus. All of these agreements provide for a period of time for product registration and initial
marketing efforts, with orders of our product required after successful completion of the regulatory process. All
distributors are granted authority to use our trademarks for so long as the agreements are in effect.

Rotadent®

In May 2008, we selected Oraldent Ltd to be the exclusive distributor of the Rotadent® Professional Powered
Brush and our line of periodontal probes, Perio Probe and Sensor Probe, in the United Kingdom. All distributors are
granted authority to use our trademarks for so long as the agreements are in effect.

Governmental Regulation

General

Our operations are subject to regulation by governmental authorities in the United States and other countries
with respect to the testing, approval, manufacture, labeling, marketing, distribution and sale of our products. We
devote significant time, effort and expense addressing the government regulations applicable to our business. On an
ongoing basis, the FDA reviews the safety and efficacy of marketed pharmaceutical products and monitors labeling,
advertising and other matters related to the promotion of pharmaceutical products.

The FDA also regulates the facilities and procedures used to manufacture pharmaceutical products in the
United States and the sale of such products in the United States. Such facilities must be registered with the FDA and
all products made in such facilities must be manufactured in accordance with c¢GMP’s. Compliance with cGMP’s
requires the dedication of substantial resources and requires significant costs. The FDA periodically inspects both
our manufacturing facilities and our contract manufacturing plants and laboratories to review compliance with
applicable regulations and procedures. The FDA may recommend a recall or withdraw product approvals if
regulatory standards are not maintained. FDA approval to manufacture a drug is site specific. If an approved
manufacturing facility for a particular drug becomes inoperable, obtaining the required FDA approval to
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manufacture such drug at a different manufacturing site could result in production delays, which could adversely
affect our business and resuits of operations.

In connection with our activities outside the United States. we are also subject to regulatory requirements
governing the testing, approval, manufacture, labeling, marketing, distribution and sale of our products, which
requirements vary from country to country. Whether or not FDA approval has been obtained for a product, approval
of the product by comparabie regulatory authorities of foreign countries may need to be obtained prior to marketing
the product in those respective countries. The approval process may be more or less rigorous from country to
country, and the time required for approval may be longer or shorter than that required in the United States. No
assurance can be given that any clinical studies conducted outside of any country will be accepted by such country
and the approval of any product in one country does not assure that such product will be approved in another
country.

We are also subject to worldwide governmental regulations and controls relating to product safety, efficacy,
packaging, labeling and distribution. While not all of the products that we plan to introduce into the market are “new
drugs™ or “new devices,” those fitting the regulatory definjtions are subject to a stringent pre-market approval
process in most countries. Submission of a substantial amount of preclinical and clinical information prior to market
introduction significantly increases the amount of time and related costs incurred for preparing such products for
market.

Several of our dental products, such as ViziLite® Plus, ViziLite® Eyewear, Rotadent®, Pro-Select Platinum®
and fluoride products are subject to regulation by the FDA and, in some instances, by foreign governments. Under
the 1976 Amendments to the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, as amended (the “Act”), and the regulations
promulgated thereunder, the manufacturers of “devices,” as such term is defined in Section 201(h) of the Act, must
comply with certain controls that regulate the testing, manufacturing, packaging and marketing of devices. Under
the Act, devices are subject to different levels of approval requirements, the most comprehensive of which requires
that a clinical evaluation program be conducted before a device receives pre-market approval by the FDA for
commercial distribution. Our products are “Class 11” products under this classification system and did undergo the
necessary clinical evaluations for determining safety and efficacy and/or substantial equivalence. We have
complied with the FDA’s applicable qualification procedures for all such preducts. ViziLite Plus® and Rotadent®
also bear the CE Mark, permitting them to be sold within the European Union. We anticipate that other products will
be certified for the CE Mark in the future. Device manufacturing facilities in Batesville, Arkansas are SO
13485:2003 certified. ' -

Manufacturing companies engaged in healthcare reiated fields, are subject to a wide range of laws and
regulations. Concern for maintaining compliance with federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations on
environmental protection, hazardous waste management, occupational safety and industrial hygiene has also
increased substantially. We cannot predict what additional legislation or governmental action, if any, will be enacted
or taken with respect to the above matters and what its effect, if any, will be on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

ViziLite® Plus

In January 20035, the Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA") cleared the product, ViziL.ite® Blue Oral
Exam Kit (ViziLite® Plus), which contains the ViziLite® chemiluminescent device to identify abnormalities in the
oral mucosa and the TBlue® marking device, an adjunct to ViziLite®. TBlue® is used to further evaluate and monitor
lesions by providing physical marking of the lesions already differentially identified by ViziLite® for patients at
increased risk for oral cancer. We introduced our ViziLite® Plus product at the October 2005 annual meeting of the
American Dental Association and commenced sales of ViziLite® Plus in our second fiscal quarter 2006.

In October 2007, we classified ViziLite® Plus as a Class | medical device with Health Canada. We began to
market and sell ViziLite® Plus in Canada in November 2007.

In January 2008, the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency (“MHRA”) in the United Kingdom
determined that ViziLite® Plus met the criteria for a Class I medical device. This classification allowed for ViziLite® Plus
to be CE marked, thus allowing for distribution throughout the United Kingdom and the rest of the European Union.
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Patents and Trademarks
ViziLite® Plus

In February 2006, we acquired from Shared Medical Resources, LLC all of the rights, titles and interests in the
ViziLite® technology including patent numbers 5,179,938, 5,329,938 and 6,496,718 issued January 19,1993,
July 19,1994 and December 17,2002, respectively, which expire in 2010, 2011 and 2020, respectively. Together, the
patents cover the apparatus and method for endoscopic examination of certain body cavities using a chemilumi-
nescent light source.

The ViziLite® trademark has been granted registration in the United States, Europe, Australia, China,
Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Singapore and Taiwan. The T-Blue® trademark has been granted registration in the
United States, Europe, Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. Applications for these and related marks, are pending in
the United States and 11 additional countries. We coined the term Lumenoscopy™ to describe examination of the
oral cavity using ViziLite® Plus and filed a United States application for its registration. The term Better Screening
Saves Lives® has been granted regisiration in the United States.

On September 30, 2004, we filed an International application for a technology covering the use of the ViziLite®
Plus chemiluminescent technology entitled “Light-Directed Method for Detecting and Aiding Further Evaluation of
Abnormal Mucosal Tissue” We also filed National applications in 13 countries, including the United States, Canada
and several European countries.

On September 28, 2004, we filed an International application covering the use of a wavelength specific lens
with the ViziLite® chemiluminescent technology entitled “Methods for Detecting Abnormal Epithelial Tissue.” We
also filed National applications in 15 countries, including the United States, Canada and several European
countries.

In 2008, we filed a U.S. patent application entitled “Improved Light Stick” directed to an improved retractor.

We are developing improvements to our ViziLite® technology and expect to seek patent protection for such
improvements as is appropriate for our business goals. In addition, we are prepared to assert our trademark, trade
dress and copyright rights to the ViziLite® products and packaging, as is necessary, to protect the ViziLite® brand.
With respect to our ViziLite® related patents, to the extent any infringement of the patents began before they expire,
we intend to aggressively protect our patent rights,

Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush

In November 2006, we acquired Pro-Dentec, whose products include the Rotadent® powered toothbrush.
Pro-Dentec owns 14 issued United States and foreign patents covering technology related to the Rotadent® with
expiration dates ranging from 2008 to 2019. Rotadent® is no longer covered by design patents.

The Rotadent® trademark and related trademarks are registered in the United States and 23 foreign countries,
including Canada and several European countries.
Pro-Select Platinum® Dental Scaler and Other Dental Products

Pro-Dentec also holds one United States patent covering the Pro-Select Platinum® dental scaler technology
expiring in 2017 and eight United States patents covering other assorted dental products (i.e. toothpick, dental
probes, etc). Twenty-three foreign patents have also been issued in Canada and several European countries related
to these products. '

The Pro-Select Platinam® trademark and related trademarks are registered in the United States, Canada and
several European countries.
Oral Cancer Diagnostic Products

In June 1996, we acquired certain technology rights and United States and foreign patent rights related to the
OraTest® product. On November 18, 2003, we were granted a patent in the United States covering the method by
which our TBO has been shown to detect pre-cancer and cancer cells. The patent is based upon in-vitro studies,
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which demonstrated its mechanism of action. In December 2004, we were granted a patent in the United States
covering all related substances/“impurities” present in our pharmaceutical grade TBO at levels equal to or greater
than 0.1%. We have been issued four United States patents related to our pharmaceutical grade TBO and/or the
OraTest® product with expiration dates ranging from 2017 to 2020 and 42 corresponding foreign patents with
expiration dates ranging from 2017 to 2022. There are pending United States and international applications that
could result in approximately 66 additional United States and foreign patents. These patents and pending
applications cover: (i) the composition of matter for Zila’s pharmaceutical grade TBO; (ii) its process for
manufacturing; (iii) the mechanism of action, methods and products for using Zila’s pharmaceutical grade
TBO to detect epithelial cancer; and (iv) other compounds that are chemically related to Tolonium Chloride
for use in detecting epithelial cancer.

In 2007, we filed a U.S. patent application entitled “Oral Cancer Markers and Their Detection” This
application relates generally to the detection of the loss of oral cancer chromosomal loci, and to the detection of
microsatellite DNA sequence mutations in markers associated with oral cancer and is directed to the methods and
kits for the early detection of progression to oral cancer. There are four international applications pending regarding
this technology.

The OraTest® trademark is registered in the United States, Canada, Israel, Japan, Norway, Switzerland,
South Aifrica, Taiwan and 15 European countries that have signed the European Community Trademark treaty.
Applications are pending in seven additional countries. The trademark OraScreen® is registered in Australia,
Canada, Ireland, Japan and New Zealand for the same product,

Employees

As of July 31, 2008, we had a total of 367 employees, of which 360 were located in the United States and
7 were located in Canada. No employees are represented by a labor union. Due to recent headcount reductions, as of
September 19, 2008 our total number of employees was reduced to 334. We believe our relationship with our
employees is good.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The public may read and copy any materials that we file with the
SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain
information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Also, the SEC
maintains an Internet web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers that file electronicatly with the SEC. The public can obtain any documents that we file with the
SEC at www.sec.gov.

We make available free of charge through our internet web-site, www.zila.com, our Annual Report on
Form 106-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, as well as Section 16 reports on
Forms 3, 4 and 5, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the
SEC.

Forward-iooking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements (including financial projections)
regarding future events and our future results that are within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), which we believe are subject to the safe harbors created under the Securities Act and the
Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements are often identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,”
“estimate,” “Intend,” “plan,” “project,” “will,” “may,” “continue,” “propose,” “seek’” and variations of such words
and similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections, plans, objectives, goals,
strategies or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These

forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this filing and we do not undertake any obligation to update

LU
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or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, even if experience or future events make it clear that any expected results expressed or implied by these
forward-looking statements will not be realized. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we caution you that these expectations or predictions may not prove to
be correct or we may not achieve the financial results, savings or other benefits anticipated in the forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of our sentor
management and involve a number of risks and uncertainties, some of which may be beyond our control that could
cause actual results 1o differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. Many of the
factors that could cause actual results or conditions to differ from those anticipated by these and other forward-
looking statements are set forth below under “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors.” Qur business, financial condition or
results of operations could also be materially and adversely affected by other factors besides those listed here.
However, these are the risks our management currently believes are material,

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The statements in this section describe the major risks to our business and should be considered carefully. If
any of the following risks actually occur, they may materially harm our business, financial condition, operating
results or cash flow, You should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all such factors.
Consequently, you should not consider the following to be a complete discussion of all potential risks or
uncertainties. Additional risks and uncertainties that are not yet identified or that we think are immaterial may
also materially harm our business, financial condition, operating results or cash flow.

Trends, Risks and Uncertainties Related to Our Business

Our lack of earnings history could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us from fulfilling
our payment obligations, and if we are unable to generate funds or obtain funds on acceptable terms, we
may not be able to develop and market our present and potential products.

Our liquidity needs have typically arisen from the funding of our research and development program and the
taunch of our new products, such as ViziLite® Plus, working capital and debt service requirements, and strategic
initiatives. In the past, we have met these cash requirements through our cash and cash equivalents, working capital
management, the sale of non-core assets, and proceeds from certain private placements of our securities,

The development of products requires the commitment of substantial resources to conduct the time consuming
research and development, clinical studies and regulatory activities necessary to bring any potential product to
market and to establish production, marketing and sales capabilities. Our ability to develop our products, to service
our debt obligations, to fund working capital and capital expenditures, and for other purposes that cannot at this time
be quantified will depend on our future operating performance, which will be affected by factors discussed
elsewhere in this filing and in the other reports we file with the SEC, including, without limitation, receipt of
regulatory approvals, economic conditions and financial, business, and other factors, many of which are beyond our
control.

We anticipate that we will be able to operate our business with our currently available funds through the profit
enhancement initiatives implemented during fiscal 2008 which reduced research and development expenditures and
reduced overhead through our actions to reorganize and streamline our operations. We therefore believe that our
cash and cash equivalents along with cash flows generated from operations and working capital management will
allow us to fund our planned operations over the next 12 menths. Strategic business opportunities to accelerate the
growth of our business may require additional funding. However, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in executing our strategies or that additional funding will be obtainable on terms that are favorable to us,
if at all. If we are unable to execute our strategies, we may break the financial covenants of our senior secured debt
and be unable to repay the outstanding balance of such debt.

In addition, our lack of earnings history and our level of debt could have important consequences, such as:
» making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our senior secured debt;

* increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
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» limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and our industry;

» restricting us from making strategic acquisitions, introducing new products or exploiting business
opportunities;

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments of our
indebtedness, which will reduce the amount of our cash flow available for other purposes, including
capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

* requiring us to sell equity or debt securities or to sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavorable terms;
* limiting our ability to obtain additional financing; and

» placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors, who may have greater
financial resources.

We may not be able to maintain compliance with our debt covenants in the future or repay our Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes at maturity.

Our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes contain comprehensive covenants that restrict the way in
which we can operate, and contain financial covenants that require us to, among other things, maintain, at the end of
each fiscal quarter, cash and cash equivalents in an amount not less than $1.0 million. As of July 31, 2008, we were
in compliance with this covenant and had approximately $4.5 million in cash and cash equivalents. We had cash and
cash equivalents of approximately $3.5 million, $5.9 million and $8.7 million as of April 30, 2008, January 31, 2008
and October 31, 2007, respectively.

Failure to maintain compliance with this or other covenants could, at the option of the Secured Note holders,
result in an event of default under the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. Upon the occurrence of the
first specified event of default, the holders of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and
demand repayment of one-third of the outstanding principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on the
Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. Upon the occurrence of the second specified event of default, the
holders of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and demand repayment of one-half of
the outstanding principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on the Second Amended and Restated Secured
Notes. Upon the occurrence of the third specified event of default, the entire principal balance and all accrued but
unpaid interest may become due and payable.

We anticipate we will need to refinance our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes by their due date of
July 31, 2010. During September 2008, we retained William Blair and Company to assist in exploring financing
alternatives. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining sufficient replacement
financing or that any refinancing will be obtainable on terms that are favorable to us. As such, we may incur greater
interest expense and financing costs in future periods. If we are unable to refinance our Second Amended and
Restated Secured Notes or obtain alternative sources of funding, we may be required to sell additional debt, equity
or assets in order to meet our repayment obligations, which may not be possible. Should we refinance the Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes before their scheduled maturity, we may incur an additional non-cash interest
charge relative to our unamortized debt issue costs and debt discounts. As of July 31, 2008 there was $1.8 million of
unamortized debt issue costs and $3.6 million of debt discounts relative to the Second Amended and Restated
Secured Notes.

The restrictive covenants contained in our senior debt could adversely affect our business by limiting our
Nexibility.

Qur Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes impose restrictions that affect, among other things, our
ability to incur debt, pay dividends, sell assets, create liens, make capital expenditures and investments, merge or
consolidate, enter into transactions with affiliates, and otherwise enter into certain transactions outside the ordinary
course of business. Qur Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes also require us to maintain a minimum of
$1.0 million of cash and cash equivalents and that we generate at least $1 of Defined EBITDA for one quarter
ending on or before July 31, 2009. We satisfied the Defined EBITDA covenant in our fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
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Our ability to comply with the other covenants and restrictions of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
may be affected by events beyond our control. If we are unable to comply with the terms of our Second Amended
and Restated Secured Notes, or if we fail to generale sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt, we
may default on our debt instruments. In the event of a default under the terms of any of our indebtedness, the debt
holders may, under certain circumstances, accelerate the matunty of our obligations and proceed against their
collateral.

Historically we have been dependent on a few key products and our future growth is dependent on the
growth of ViziLite® Plus and on the development and/or acquisition of new preducts.

In the past, nearly all of our revenues were derived from the sales of Ester-C®, Peridex® and ViziLite® Pius
products. We divested our Nutraceuticals business unit and the Ester-C® products in October 2006 and Peridex® in
May 2007. With the acquisition and addition of the products of Pro-Dentec, and the change in our distribution
method for ViziLite® Plus, we now sell direct to thousands of dental offices in the United States and Canada and we
believe we have reduced our dependency on key customers.

If any of our major products were to become subject to a problem such as loss of patent protection, unexpected
side effects, regulatory proceedings, publicity adversely affecting user confidence or pressure from competing
products, or if a new, more effective treatment should be introduced, the impact on our revenues could be
significant. Additionally, we are reliant on third party manufacturers and single suppliers for our ViziLite® Plus
product, and any supply problems resulting from regulatory issues applicable to such parties or failures to comply
with the FDA's current ¢cGMP standards could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition.

Our future growth is dependent on the growth of the ViziLite® Plus product and new product development
and/or acquisition. New product initiatives may not be successfully implemented because of many factors,
including, but not limited to, difficulty in assimilation, development costs and diversion of management time.
There can be no assurance that we will successfully develop and integrate new products into our business that will
result in growth and a positive impact on our business, financial condition and results of operation.

A number of factors could impact our plans to commercialize our new products, including, but not limited to:

« difficulties in the production process, controlling the costs to produce, market and distribute the product on a
commercial scale, and our ability to do so with favorable gross margins and otherwise on a profitable basis;

« the inherent difficulty of gaining market acceptance for a new product;

« competition from larger, more established companies with greater resources;

» changes in raw material supplies that could result in production delays and higher raw material costs;
« difficulties in promoting consumer awareness for the new product;

s adverse publicity regarding the industries in which we market our products; and

* the cost, timing and ultimate results of regulatory program studies that we undertake.

Our proprietary rights may prove difficult to enforce.

Our current and future success depends on a combination of patent, trademark, and trade secret protection and
nondisclosure and licensing agreements to establish and protect our proprietary rights. We own and have exclusive
licenses to a number of United States and foreign patents and patent applications and intend to seek additional
patent applications as we deem necessary and appropriate to operate our business. We can offer no assurances
regarding the strength of the patent portfolio underlying any existing or new product and/or technology or whether
patents will be issued from any pending patent applications refated to a new product and/or technology, or if the
patents are issued, that any claims allowed will be sufficiently broad to cover the product, technology or production
process. Although we intend to defend our proprietary rights, policing unauthorized use of intellectual property is
difficult or may prove materiaily costly and any patents that may be issued relating to new products and technology
may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented.
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We are dependent on our senior management and other key personnel.

Our ability to operate successfully depends in significant part upon the experience, efforts, and abilities of our
senior management and other key scientific, technical and managerial personnel. Competition for talented
personnel is intense. The future loss of services of one or more of our key executives could adversely impact
our financial performance and our ability to execute our strategies. Additionally, if we are unable to attract, train,
motivate and retain key personnel, our business could be harmed.

We and our products are subject to regulatory oversight that could substantially interfere with our ability
to do business.

We and our present and future products are subject to risks associated with new federal, state, tocal, or foreign
legislation or regulation or adverse determinations by regulators under existing regulations, including the inter-
pretation of and compliance with existing, proposed and future regulatory requirements impo$ed by the FDA. We
are also subject to other governmental authorities such as the Department of Heaith and Human Services. the
Consumer Products Safety Commission, the Department of Justice and the United States Federal Trade Com-
mission with its regulatory authority over, among other items, product safety and efficacy claims made in product
labeling and advertising. Individual states, acting through their attorneys general, have become active as well,
seeking to regulate the marketing of prescription drugs under state consumer protection and false advertising laws.
A regulatory determination or development that affects our ability to market or produce one or more of our products
could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operation and financial condition and may include
product recalls, denial of approvals and other civil and criminal sanctions,

We are at risk with respect to product liability claims.

t

We could be exposed to possible claims for personal injury resulting from allegedly defective products
manufactured by third parties with whom we have entered into manufacturing agreements or by us. We maintain
$6.0 miilion in product liability insurance coverage for claims arising from the use of our products, with limits we
believe are commercially reasonable under the circumstances, and, in most instances, require our manufacturers to
carry product liability insurance, While we believe our insurance coverage is adequate, we could be subject to
product liability claims in excess of our insurance coverage. In addition, we may be unable to retain our existing
coverage in the future, Any significant product liability claims not within the scope of our insurance coverage could
have a material adverse effect on us.

We face significant competition that could adversely affect our results of operation and financial
condition.

The pharmaceutical, medical device and related industries are highly competitive. A number of companies,
many of which have financial resources, marketing capabilities, established relationships, superior experience and
operating history, and research and development capacities greater than ours, are actively engaged in the
development of products similar to the products we produce and market. The pharmaceutical industry is char-
acterized by extensive and ongoing research efforts, Other companies may succeed in developing products superior
to those we market. [t may be difficult for us to maintain or increase sales volume and market share due to such
competition which would adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. The loss of any of our
products’ patent protection could lead to a significant loss in sales of our products in the United States market.

If the use of our technology is determined to infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, our
business could be harmed.

Litigation may result from our use of registered trademarks or common law marks and, if litigation against us
were successful, a resulting loss of the right to use a trademark could reduce sales of our products and could result in
a significant damage award. International operations may be affected by changes in intellectual property legal
protections and remedies in foreign countries in which we do business.

Furthermore, if it were ultimately determined that our intellectual property rights are unenforceable, or that our
use of our technology infringes on the intellectual property rights of others, we may be required or may desire to
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obtain licenses to patents and other intellectual property held by third parties to develop, manufacture and market
products using our technology. We may not be able to obtain these licenses on commercially reasonable terms, if at
all, and any licensed patents or intellectual property that we may obtain may not be valid or enforceable. In addition,
the scope of intellectual property protection is subject to scrutiny and challenge by courts and other governmental
bodies. Litigation and other proceedings concerning patents and proprietary technologies can be protracted,
expensive and distracting to management and companies may sue competitors as a way of delaying the introduction
of competitors’ products. Any litigation, including any interference proceedings to determine priority of inventions,
oppositions to patents in foreign countries or litigation against our partners, may be costly and time-consuming and
could significantly harm our business.

Because of the large number of patent filings in our industry, our competitors may have filed applications or
been issued patents and may obtain additional patenis and proprietary intellectual property rights relating to
products or processes competitive with or simifar to ours. We cannot be certain that United States or foreign patents
do not exist or will not be issued that would harm our ability to commercialize our products and product candidates.
In addition, our exposure to risks associated with the use of intellectual property may be increased as a result of an
acquisition as we have lower visibility into any potential target’s safeguards and infringement risks. In addition,
third party claims may be asserted after we have acquired technology that had not been asserted prior to such
acquisition.

We require certain raw materials for our manufacturing processes that may only be acquired through
limited sources. '

Raw materials essential to our business are generalty readily available. However, certain raw materials and
components used in the manufacture of pharmaceutical and medical device products are available from limited
sources, and in some cases, a single source. Any curtailment in the availability of such raw materials could be
accompanied by production delays, and in the case of products, for which only one raw material supplier exists,
could result in a material loss of sales. In addition, because raw material sources for products must generally be
approved by regulatory authorities, changes in raw material suppliers could result in production delays, higher raw
material costs and loss of sales and customers. Production delays may also be caused by the lack of secondary
suppliers.

We have, in the past, received minor deficiencies from regulatory agencies related to our manufacturing
Sfacilities,

The FDA, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA™} and other regulatory agencies period-
ically inspect our manufacturing facilities and certain facilities of our suppliers. In the past, such inspections
resutted in the identification of certain minor deficiencies in the standards we are required to maintain by such
regulatory agencies. We developed and implemented action plans to remedy the deficiencies; however, there can be
no assurance that such deficiencies will be remedied to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory body. In the
event that we are unable to remedy such deficiencies, our product supply could be affected as a result of plant
shutdown, product recall or other similar regulatory actions, which would likely have an adverse affect on our
business, financial condition and results of operation.

Trends, Risks and Uncertainties Related to Qur Capital Stock

The Private Placements and other financing arrangements or corporate events could significantly dilute
existing ownership.

Following the August 13, 2007 and June 3, 2008 restructurings of the securities issued in the Private
Placements that we consumnmated in November 2006, an additional approximately 1,992,216 shares of our common
stock would be issued should investors convert all amounts due under the Second Amended and Restated Secured
Notes and exercise all warrants issued in connection with the Private Placements that remain outstanding after such
restructurings, which would dilute existing shareholders’ current ownership percentages and voting power.

The Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes bear interest, payable quarterly, at 7.0% per annum, but at
our option, interest payments can be made at an 8.0% annual rate in shares of our common stock at a price equal to
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90.0% of the average closing bid price of such common stock for the ten trading days immediately prior to the
relevant interest payment date. We paid interest in kind with shares of our common stock in the second, third and
fourth quarters of fiscal 2008, which resulted in the issuance of an additional 353,570 shares of our common stock.

If we choose to continue to pay interest on our Second Amended and Restated Notes in Kind or raise additional
funds through the issuance of shares of our common or preferred stock, or securities convertible into our common
stock, significant dilution of ownership in our company may occur, and holders of such securities may have rights
senior to those of the holders of our common stock. If we obtain additional financing by issuing debt securities, the
terms of these securities could restrict or prevent us from paying dividends and could limit our flexibility in making
business decisions. Moreover, other corporate events such as the exercise of outstanding opuom would result in
further dilution of ownership for existing shareholders.

In the past, we have experienced volatility in the market price of our common stock and we may experience
such volatility in the future.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly in the past. Stock markets have experienced
extreme price volatility in recent years. This volatility has had a substantial effect on the market prices of securities
we and other pharmaceutical and health care companies have issued, often for reasons unrelated to the operating
performance of the specific companies.

In the past, stockholders of other companies have initiated securities class action litigation against such
companies following periods of volatility in the market price of the applicable commen stock. We anticipate that the
market price of our common stock may continue to be volatile. If the market price of our common stock continues to
fluctuate and our stockholders initiate this type of litigation, we could incur substantial costs and expenses and such
litigation could divert our management’s attention and resources, regardless of the outcome, thereby adversely
affecting our business, financial condition and results of operation.

We may take actions which could dilute current equity ownership or prevent or delay a change in our
control.

Subject to the rules and regulations promulgated by NASDAQ and the SEC, our Board of Directors could
authorize the sale and issuance of additional shares of common stock, which would have the effect of diluting the
ownership interests of our stockholders. In addition, our Board of Directors has the authority, without any further
vote by our stockholders, to issue up to 2,500,000 shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series and to determine
the designations, powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other rights thereof, including without
limitation, the dividend rate (and whether dividends are cumulative), conversion rights, voting rights, rights and
terms of redemption, redemption price and liquidation preference. On February 1, 2001, we issued 100,000 shares
of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with an acquisition. As of July 31, 2008 and the date of
this filing, all of these shares remained outstanding. If the Board of Directors authorizes the issuance of additional
shares of Preferred Stock, such an issuance could have the effect of diluting the ownership interests of our common
stockholders.

Failure to maintain NASDAQ Marketplace Rules could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our Audit Committee is currently comprised of only two directors. In accordance with NASDAQ Marketplace
Rule 4350(d), we are required to have an audit committee consisting of at least three independent directors in order
to remain listed on the NASDAQ Global Market. We have until our next annual shareholders meeting to comply
with this requirement to regain compliance with NASDAQ's rule on audit committee composition. Our next
shareholders’ meeting is scheduled for December 11, 2008 and we expect to fill the Audit Committee vacancy
within the required time frame. In the event that we were delisted from the NASDAQ Global Market, our common
stock would become significantly less liquid, which would adversely affect its value. Although our common stock
would likely be traded over-the-counter or on pink sheets, these types of listings involve more risk and trade less
frequently and in smaller volumes than securities traded on the NASDAQ Global Market.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Corporate Headquarters

We lease our 16,000 square foot corporate headquarters located at 5227 North Seventh Street, Phoenix,
Arizona 85014-2800. Monthly lease payments are currently $14,800. The primary term of the lease expires
January 30, 2009, and the lease has two five-year renewal options. Monthly lease payments over the renewal periods
begin at $15,000 and increase annually to $18,000 at the end of the second five-year renewal term. We are currently
evaluating relocation options as well as renewal options available under our current lease.

Manufacturing Facilities

We lease a 15,500 square foot manufacturing facility and laboratory in Phoenix, Arizona. This facility
produces the ViziLite® Plus marker, TBlue® system. This facility also provides technical support and testing for our
other pharmaceutical products. The lease expires December 31, 2010. Monthly lease payments are $13,000 through
April 30, 2009 and increase to $13,800 through December 31, 2010,

We own four buildings in Batesville, Arkansas containing a total of approximately 90,000 square feet of
administration, warehouse and production space. One building houses the production facilities for the Rotadent®
and Pro-Select Platinum® and other products. Another building houses the engineering and product development
staff. A third building houses the marketing, information technology, accounting and administrative staffs. The
fourth building houses the pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities, and has approximately 20 acres of Company
owned land adjacent to it.

We lease two other business related buildings in Batesville, Arkansas, for a monthly rental of $20,200. One
building houses the Company’s warehouse and its shipping and receiving facilities. This building is on the last year
of a lease that expires January 31, 2009, with one renewal term of one year remaining. Another building is used for
our maintenance facility, with a lease expiring October 31, 2009. Separately, we lease one business related office
building in Ontario, Canada for a monthly rental of $2,200. This lease expires on February 28, 2009.

Together with our laboratory facilities, we believe that our current facilities are adequate for our current
production needs and that additional space, if needed, can be leased, constructed or purchased without materially
affecting operations. See Itemn 1 “Business — Manufacturing and Supply.”

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Except as described below, as of July 31, 2008, we were not a party to any pending legal proceedings other than
claims that arise in the conduct of our business. While we currently believe that the ultimate outcome of these
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations,
litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties. If an unfavorable ruling were to occur, there exists the possibility of a
material adverse impact on our net income in the period in which a ruling occurs. Our estimate of the potential
impact of the following legal proceedings on our financial position and our resuits of operation could change in the
future.

In connection with the acquisition of patent rights in 1980, we agreed to pay to Dr. James E. Tinnell (“Tinnell”),
the inventor of one of our former treatment compositions, a royalty of 5.0% of gross sales of the invention disclosed in
Tinnell’s then pending patent application. In September 2000, we notified Tinnell that we would no longer pay such
royalties because the obligations ceased in August 1998 when the related product patents expired and we requested
reimbursement of royalties paid since August 1998. We then filed suit on November 8, 2000, in the United States
District Court for the District of Nevada requesting a declaratory judgment that we had no royalty obligations to
Tinnell and judgment for the overpaid royalties. On April 22, 2004, the Court, in part, ruled in our favor, stating that
our royalty obligations to Tinnell ceased in August 1998, however, our request for reimbursement of overpaid royalties
was dismissed. Tinnell filed a notice of appeal and we have filed a notice of cross-appeal. On September 5, 2007, the
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Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the decision of the lower court and remanded the case for a determination of
whether or not Tinnell should be credited with inventing the improvement embodied in a 1992 patent. Both parties
filed motions for summary judgment and on September 30, 2008, the court denied both motions and ordered the
parties to meet and confer on pre-trial matters before the end of the year.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On September 12, 2008, we held a Special Meeting of our shareholders in Phoenix, Arizona. Total outstanding
shares were 69,795,087 and a total of 54,926,903 shares of common stock, or 78.7% of the outstanding shares, were
represented in person or by proxy. The voting resulis of the Special Meeting, which was held to vote on a proposal to
amend the Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split and reduce the number of authorized shares of
common stock, are as follows:

For Against Abstain Non Votes

50,969,617 3,571,761 269,770 14,983,939

The foregoing matter is described in more detail in our Definitive Proxy Statement dated August 11, 2008.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases o
Equity Securities .

Information regarding the market for our common stock and related stockholder matters is set forth below. On
September 12, 2008, our shareholders approved a one for seven reverse split of our common stock. As a result of the
reverse split, each holder of seven outstanding shares of common stock received one share of common stock.
Fractional shares resulting from this reverse split have been issued to our shareholders as applicable and
accordingly, we did not make any cash payments in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares. The reverse split
has been retroactively applied to all applicable information to the earliest period presented. The following table sets
forth, for the fiscal periods shown, the high and low sales price in dollars per share for our common stock as reported
by the NASDAQ Global Market as traded under the symbol “ZILA”. However, Zila’s common stock will trade
under the symbol “ZILAD” for a period of 20 trading days following the one for seven reverse split discussed above.

_High _Low

Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2008
FIrSt QUATTEr . . oo e $10.85 § 6.16
Second UATIET . . . L. .o e e e 8.40 5.46
Third quarter .. ... ... . e e 7.49 1.42
Fourth quarier. . . .. ... . e 3.29 1.47

Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2007
First QUAaMEr . ..o o i e e e $2289 $14.14
Second quarter . . ... .. ... e 20.30 13.02
Third quarter .. ... .. . . e e 16.80 13.65
Fourth QUATEr. . . . . . . e e e 14.21 7.00

The number of stockholders of record of our common stock as of September 19, 2008 was 2,197, with
9,980,405 shares of common stock outstanding.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock and we do not presently intend to do so. The policy of our
Board of Directors has been to retain earnings to finance the growth and development of our business. Furthermore,
the payment of cash dividends on our common stock is prohibited by the terms of our Second Amended and
Restated Secured Notes, as more fully described in Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and our Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere herein.
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Preferred Stock

During February 2001, we issued 100,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™)
as part of an acquisition, all of which were outstanding as of July 31, 2008. The holders of the Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive cumulative quarterly dividends at a rate of $0.0975 per share per fiscal quarter, payable in arrears,
which represents an aggregate annual dividend of $39,000. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, accumulated accrued
dividends were $9,750. The Preferred Stock can be redeemed at our option if our common stock maintains a closing
price on each trading day equal to or greater than $9.00 per share for any ten trading day period. The redemption
price shall be the average bid closing price of our common stock for the five trading days immediately proceeding
the date we give notice. The Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time on or before
December 31, 2010 into our common stock at the ratio of one-to-one. On December 31, 2010, all of the remaining
Preferred Stock will be converted into our common stock at a ratio of one-to-one. Holders of the preferred stock
have no voting rights except as required by applicable law and have a liquidation preference of $0.65 million. The
shares of Preferred Stock were issued pursuant to the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. There
is no established public trading market for the Preferred Stock.

Private Placements

In November 2006, we consummated two private placements (the “Private Placements™) for gross proceeds of
approximately $40.0 million. We used the net proceeds of the Private Placements to fund the Pro-Dentec acquisition
described in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein, and for working capital
and general corporate purposes.

Pursuant to the first purchase agreement, we issued and sold:
(i) 1,300,000 shares of Zila’s common stock for $12.25 per share (the “Shares™);

(ii) Approximately $12.1 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.0% Unsecured Convertible Notes
(the “Unsecured Notes™), which converted into 985,714 shares (the “Unsecured Note Shares™) of Zila's
common stock at a conversion price of $12.25 per share on December 14, 2006, the date on which our
stockholders approved, among other things, the Private Placements;

(iii) Warrants to purchase approximately 772,000 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became
exercisable in May 2007 for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share (the “Initial Warrants™),

(iv) Warrants to purchase approximately 444,000 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became
exercisable for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders
on December 14, 2006 (the “Additional Warrants™).

Pursuant to the second purchase agreement, we issued and sold:

(i) Approximately $12.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.0% Senior Secured Convertible
Notes (the “Secured Notes™), which are due in November 2009 and became convertible into 779,221 shares of
Zila’s common stock at a conversion price of $15.40 following approval by our stockholders on December 14,
2006; and

(i) Warrants io purchase 272,727 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became exercisable for five
years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders on December 14, 2006
(the “Secured Note Warrants”).

Roth Capital Partners, LLC (“Roth”) served as placement agent in the transaction and received warrants to
purchase approximately 174,100 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $15.47 per share (the “Roth
Warrants”). Additionally, we paid Roth cash fees of $1.7 million at the closing of the Private Placements and on
February 20, 2007, after negotiation, we issued 41,390 shares of our common stock to Roth as well as the Roth
Warrants in final settlement of the fees.
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We granted registration rights for the Shares and shares of common stock issuable upen conversion of the debt
instruments and exercise of the warrants. A dispute arose with certain investors {the “Investors”) regarding the
extent of the registration rights. On August 13, 2007, we reached an agreement with the Investors to restructure the
Investors’ holdings (the “Restructuring”) and to provide us with relief from certain financial and non-financial
covenants contained in the Secured Notes (the “Amendment Agreement”). As amended and restated, the “Amended
and Restated Secured Notes™ are in the same aggregate principal amount as the Secured Notes, or approximately
$12.0 million, but are due July 31, 2010. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes bear interest, payabie quarterly,
at 7.0% per annum, but at our option, interest payments can be made at an 8.0% annual rate in shares of our common
stock at a price equal to 90.0% of the average closing bid price of such common stock for the ten trading days
immediately prior to the relevant interest payment date. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes remain
convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of $15.40 per share at the option of the holders of such
notes. In addition, the Amended and Restated Secured Notes contain comprehensive covenants that restrict the way
in which we can operate, and contain financial covenants that require us to maintain specified cash and defined
EBITDA levels.

As part of the Restructuring, we also agreed to:

(i) Repurchase 133,262 Unsecured Note Shares from the Investors for approximately $1.25 million in
cash, at a price based on the average closing bid price of our common stock for the ten trading days prior to
August 13, 2007, or $9.38 per Unsecured Note Share;

(ii) Repurchase 32,467 Secured Note Warrants from the Investors for approximately $0.15 million in
cash, at a price based on a Black — Scholes valuation, or $4.62 per Secured Note Warrant; and

(iii} Pay the Investors a $0.6 million fee.

On June 3, 2008 we entered into a second amendment agreement (the “Second Amendment Agreement”) to
the Secured Notes (the “Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes™), which resulted in a change in certain
financial covenants.

In exchange for the covenant modifications, we issued 660,942 common shares with a fair value of $1.2 million
based on quoted market prices on the date of the Second Amendment Agreement. Additionally, the creditors
returned 485,157 warrants that they had been previously issued in connection with the original issuance of the
Secured Notes and other financing transactions. The aggregate fair value of these warrants as of the date of this
modification, based on the Black Scholes model, was $0.1 million. No other terms of these notes were altered as a
result of the Second Amendment Agreement.

The Private Placements were made only to accredited investors in transactions that are exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act™) pursuant to Regulation D
promulgated thereunder.

During the year ended July 31, 2008, we issued an aggregate of 353,570 common shares under the terms of the
Amended and Restated Secured Notes and Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes for the payment of
interest of approximately $0.7 million on such notes. The issuance of these common shares was exempt from
registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Warrants

In addition to the warrants issued in connection with the 2006 Private Placements described above, the
Company had the following activity related to its stock purchase warrants:

» On July 27, 2006, we issued an aggregate of 1,605 shares of common stock to Dr. Lawrence Michaelis, who
is a member of our Medical Advisory Board, pursuant to the cashless exercise of a warrant, dated March 23,
2003. The warrant was exercisable for a total of 2,286 shares of common stock and had an exercise price of
$6.86 per share. Pursuant to the cashless exercise provisions of the warrant, the number of shares issuable for
the warrant was reduced by 681 shares. The issuance of the shares pursuant to this warrant was exempt from
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registration under the Securities Act of 1933 in reliance on Section 4(2) promulgated thereunder as a
transaction not involving any public offering.

» On March 24, 2006, in connection with the credit facility with Black Diamond Commercial Finance, we
issued a warrant to purchase 171,429 shares of our common stock at $26.53 per share. In connection with the
First Amendment and the Fifth Amendment to the Credit Agreement (described and defined in the notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein), the exercise price of such warrant was
reduced to $21.98 per share and $15.54 per share, respectively. The warrant has a term of five years and
expires March 24, 2011, The warrant is exercisable at any time during its five-year contract term.

» On March 14, 2003, we issued warrants to purchase 14,857 shares of our common stock to members of our
Medical Advisory Board. The exercise price is $6.86 per share and the warrants had a term of five years. As
of July 31, 2008, these warrants had expired. The warrants were issued pursuant to the exemption set forth in
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

We did not purchase any of our equity securities pursuant to our Stock Repurchase Program during fiscal 2008;
however, we did make certain repurchases of equity securities during fiscal 2008, which are discussed in the
“Private Placements” section above,

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On July 31, 2008, we issued an aggregate of 159,218 shares of common stock to the holders of the Secured
Notes. We issued such shares to satisfy our obligation under the Secured Notes to pay the holders an aggregate of
$245,333 in interest for the three month period that ended on July 31, 2008. As a private placement of securities, the
registrant claimed an exemption from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.
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Comparative Stock Performance

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on Zila’s common stock for the five years
ended July 31, 2008, with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG MicroCap
Pharmaceutical Index over the same period (assuming an investment of $100 in Zila’s Commen Stock, the
NASDAQ Composite Index and the RDG MicroCap Pharmaceutical Index on July 31, 2003, and reinvestment of all
dividends).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN#*
Among ZILA, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The RDG MicroCap Pharmaceutical Index
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* $100 invested on 7/31/03 in stock & index-including reinvestment of dividends.

As of July 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Zila, Inc $100.00 | $131.09 | $119.32 | $107.55| $ 42.50 | $ 8.83
Nasdaq Composite . 100,00 | 110.63 | 128.07 | 12591 | 15398 | 139.25
RDG MicroCap Pharmaceutical 100.00 87.20 78.79 62.45 50.01 29.68
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables summarize selected financial information derived from our audited financial statements.
The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations and should be read in
conjunction with our Censolidated Financial Statements and related Notes and with “Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. (dollars in
thousands, except per share amounts.)}

For the Years Ended July 31,

2008 | 2007 2006 2005 2004
NELTEVENUES . . o o v oo e e et $45061 $28801 $ 2822 §$ 1,199 § 162
Loss from continuing operations . ............ (16,124) (19,105) (26,046) (17,678)  (14,350)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common

share from continuing operations ........... $ (1.80) $ (237 & (399 § (272) § (2.22)
As of July 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Current assets . . . . . o o oo o $14,675 $24.854  $22970  $32,639  $30,i23
Total assets......... e e e 50,370 63,881 56,364 65418 62,108
Current liabilities ......................... 8,117 10,568 29,824 9,815 7,581
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations(1) . . . 8,974 7,259 3,060 3,328 3,650
Total liabilities . . ... ..... ... ... ..., ...... 17,090 17,902 33,113 13,696 11,880
Series B convertible preferred stock. .. ... ... .. 463 463 463 463 463
Total shareholders” equity . .................. 33,280 45,979 23,251 51,722 50,228

(1) Long-term debt and capital lease obligations are presented net of a discount of $3.6 million and $5.3 million as
of July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

As is described more fully in our Consolidated Financial Statements and in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation included elsewhere herein, during fiscal 2007, we
acquired Pro-Dentec, and during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 we divested (i) our former Nutraceuticals business unit
and (ii) several operations that were previously part of our former Pharmaceuticals business unit including:
(i) inventory and technology related to our Peridex® brand of products, (ii) substantially all of the assets and certain
defined liabilities of our IST swab operations and (iii} substantially all of the assets of our Zilactin® brand of over-
the-counter lip and oral care products.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

You should read the following discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) together with the financial data in the
section labeled Selected Financial Data,” with the risk factors set forth in Item lA., and with our audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included elsewhere herein. In this MD&A, “Zila,” the

L1 Y3 RIS

“Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Zila, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Business

We manufacture and market ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® (*ViziLite® Plus™), our ﬂ.agship product for the early
detection of oral abnormalities that could lead to cancer. ViziLite® Plus is an adjunctive medical device cleared by
the FDA for use in a population at increased risk for oral cancer. In addition, Zila designs, manufactures and markets
a suite of proprietary products sold exclusively and directly to dental professionals for periodontal disease,
including the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush, the Pro-Select Platinum® ultrasenic scaler and a portfolio of
oral pharmaceutical products for both in-office and home-care use. All of our products are marketed and sold in the
United States and Canada primarily through our direct field sales force and telemarketing organization. Our
products are marketed and sold in other international markets through the sales forces of third party distributors. Our
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marketing programs reach most U.S. dental offices and include continuing education seminars for dentists and their
staffs. We are certified by the American Dental Association and the Academy of General Dentistry to provide
continuing education seminars.

Strategic Transition

During fiscai 2007, we underwent a planned transition from a company with three separate operating segments
or business units (Pharmaceuticals, Biotechnology and Nutraceuticals) to a diagnostic company dedicated to the
prevention, detection and treatment of oral cancer and periodontal disease. To accomplish this transition, in
November 2006 we acquired Pro-Dentec, a privately-held, professional dental products company with a national
sales organization that markets directly to dental professionals and has a small suite of proprietary dental products
that complements our cancer screening and detection products. We now operate primarily under a direct sales
distribution model. In addition, we divested our Nutraceuticals business unit and several operations that were
previously part of our Pharmaceuticals business unit (see Notes 2 and 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements).
Finally, during fiscal 2007, we also completed two private placements of securities for $40.0 million (the “Private
Placements”} with the proceeds used to complete the Pro-Dentec acquisition and to augment existing working
capital.

Senior Debt Restructured and Fourth Quarter Defined EBITDA Covenant Satisfied

On June 3, 2008 we entered into a second amendment agreement to our senior secured convertible debt
(“Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes™) that resulted in a change in certain financial covenants as
follows:

(i) The cash and cash equivalents balance that is required to be maintained at the end of each fiscal
quarter commencing with the fiscal quarter ending July 31, 2008 was reduced from $2.0 million to
$1.0 million; and

(i1) The required EBITDA level, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
(“Defined EBITDA™), of at least $1.00 must be met for any one fiscal quarter on or prior to our quarter ending
July 31, 2009. Prior to the Second Amendment Agreement, we were required to have Defined EBITDA of at
least $1.00 for each of the fiscal quarters ending July 31, 2008 and October 31, 2008.

During the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we implemented profit enhancement initiatives that resulted
in satisfying the Defined EBITDA covenant. For the three months ended July 31, 2008, the Defined EBITDA was
$1.0 million. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” for a further discussion and computation of Defined EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP measure used
in our debt agreements.

The profit enhancement initiatives undertaken in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008 included:

(i) Completing the hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and completing their training
across the full portfolio of our products. This action helped to achieve a 7% and 6% growth in revenues in the
third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008 over the previous quarter.

(ii) Improving revenues and gross profit through the implementation of selective price increases effective
May 15, 2008 and implementing initiatives to reduce our cost of goods. As a result of these initiatives, our
profit margin increased by 5% from the third quarter of fiscal 2008 to 66% for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

(iii) Reducing headcount in our non-selling workforce by over 10%, temporarily reducing the salaries of
our management employees, reducing certain other employee benefits.

(iv) Reducing, deferring or eliminating non-critical programs across the organization while maintaining
key selling initiatives.

In addition to these profit enhancement initiatives, we undertook actions to improve our working capital
position by July 31, 2008 through the reduction of the number of days our sales are outstanding and through the
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reduction of inventory levels. As a result of these actions, our working capital improved by $0.6 million in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

The initiatives discussed above proved to be effective in satisfying the Defined EBITDA covenant contained in
our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do not
expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other operating costs, to be
sustainable into future periods. Additionally, since the time of our acquisition of Pro-Dentec in November 2006, we
have experienced higher than expected turnover in our sales force and have continued to experience turnover
throughout fiscal 2008. We would expect these factors, coupled with the recent economic downturn in the
United States, to likely cause near term future operating results to be less favorable than our financial results for the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do expect many of the strategic actions discussed above, as well as
opportunities we continue to identify to sustain revenue and to likely have a favorable impact on our future results of
operations.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2007

The key factors influencing Zila’s financial performance and operations during fiscal 2008 include:

(i) During fiscal 2008, we increased ViziLite® Plus net revenues by 107% by expanding our customer
base and by increasing insurance coverage by 40% to 21 million covered lives.

(ii) As discussed above, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we took strategic actions to promote
continued compliance with the financial covenants of our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. Asa
result of these actions, we were able to improve profitability to satisfy our Defined EBITDA covenant in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and to provide the foundation for compliance with our financial covenants in the
future.

(iil) In April 2008, Humana and United Healthcare began coverage of ViziLite® Plus examinations.
Humana and United Healthcare join a growing list of premiere and national insurance plans that provide
coverage for ViziLite® Plus, which also includes Cigna, Guardian, SafeGuard, Northeast Delta Dental and a
number of regional plans and self-insured employers. With the addition of these two major dental insurance
providers, oral cancer screening is now a benefit to more than 21 million covered lives. However, not all dental
professionals have made ViziLite® Plus available to their patients.

(iv) InNovember 2007, we commenced an international expansion initiative with the launch of ViziLite®
Plus in Canada and we have furthered that effort with the launch of ViziLite® Plus in the United Kingdom in
May 2008. Since this time, we have selected distributors for our products in a nomber of international markets
including the United Kingdom, Ireland, Greece, France, Germany, Spain, Portugal and Russia.

(v} In April 2008, the FDA granted us 510(k) clearance to market ViziLite® Eyewear. ViziLite® Eyewear
is reusable filtered eyewear to be worn by a health care professional to eliminate ambient light outside of the
wavelength transmission range of the ViziLite chemiluminescent light source while performing an oral exam
under chemiluminescence when a darkened room is not available;

(vi) In December 2007, the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs awarded Zila a five-year contract to
market ViziLite® Plus to 58 Veterans Administration dental clinics and 154 Department of Defense dental
clinics.
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The following table summarizes our results of continuing operations and related statistical information for the
years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended July 31,

% of Yoof %
2008 Revenue 2007 Revenue Change
Net revenues . . . ..o e, $ 45,061 100.0% § 28,801 100.0% 56.5%
Costofproducts sold. ... ............... 17,363 38.5 11,857 41.2 46.4
Grossprofit. . ........... ... ... ... .. 27,698 615 16,944 58.8 63.5
Operating costs and expenses:
Marketing and selling ................ 21,082 46.8 14,412 50.0 46.3
General and administrative. .. .......... 13,281 29.5 15,141 52.6 (12.3)
" Research and development. ... ......... 2,424 5.4 7,482 260  (67.6)
Depreciation and amortization . ......... 4,017 8.9 2,921 10.1 37.5
Loss from operations. .. .. .............. (13,106) (29.1) (23,012) (799 43.0)
Other income (expense) —net. .. ......... (3.027) (6.7 (5,761)' (20.0} (47.5)
Loss from continuing operations before
incometaxes .. .......... ..., {16,133y  (35.8) (28,773 (99.9) 439
Income tax benefit {expense)............. 9 — 9,668 33.6 (99.9)
Loss from continuing operations . e, $(16,124) (35.8)% $(19,105) (66.3)% (15.6)

Net Revenues

Net revenues were $45.1 million and $28.8 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, an
increase of $16.3 million or 56.5%. The growth in net revenues for the year ended July 31, 2008 is largely driven by
our acquisition of Pro-Dentec on November 28, 2006, as well as its effect on ViziLite® Plus net revenues. ViziLite®
Plus net revenues increased to $13.7 million for the year ended July 31, 2008, an increase of 107.1%, which is
primarily a result of selling directly to dental offices through our national sales organization. ViziLite® Plus net
revenues were affected by our deliberate reductions in sales to our then existing distribution channel in the first part
of fiscal 2007 as we prepared to modify our means of distribution upon the completion of the Pro-Dentec
acquisition. Revenues for our other product lines have increased in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 due to the inclusion
of a full year of sales for product lines acquired from Pro-Dentec. However, sales of these product lines were
approximately $0.4 million fower in the second half of fiscal 2008 compared to the same period in fiscal 2007, This
reduction is primarily attributable to our completing the hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and
completing their training across the full portfolio of our products during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008.
However, we have experienced higher than expected turnover in our sales force and continue to focus our efforts on
reducing this turnover.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $27.7 million and $16.9 million for the years ended }uly 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, an
increase of $10.8 million or 63.5%. Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues was 61.5% and 58.8% for the years
ended July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The improved gross profit margin for fiscal 2008 primarily relates to
our sales of ViziLite® Plus made direct to dental offices through our national sales organization, as well as sales of
other products including the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush and the Pro-Select Platinum® ultrasonic scaler.
Qur gross profit margin was favorably affected by the strategic actions described above that were implemented
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, which include selective price increases. Our prior-year's gross profit reflects
our transition from a distributor-only business model and the impact of discounts and incentives offered in support
of the launch of ViziLite® Plus. The gross profit margin for the first portion of the prior-year was also negatively
impacted as a result of providing reserves for ViziLite® inventory that was approaching its expiration date.
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Marketing and Selling Expense

Marketing and selling expense was $21.1 million and $14.4 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, an increase of $6.7 million or 46.3%. The growth in marketing and selling expense for the year ended
July 31, 2008 is largely driven by our acquisition of Pro-Dentec on November 28, 2006 and its national sales force,
which seils directly to dental offices. Also contributing to the increase was the expansion and training of our
national sales force, as well as increased ViziLite® Plus related marketing and selling expenditures, which reflects
our continued efforts to establish ViziLite® Plus as the standard of care for dental offices in the detection of oral
abnormalities.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense was $13.3 million and $15.1 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, a decrease of $1.8 million or 12.3%. The decrease in general and administrative expense
primarily relates to profitability initiatives that were implemented during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, which
included reducing headcount in our non-selling workforce by over 10%, temporarily reducing the salaries of our
management employees, reducing certain other employee benefits and reducing, deferring or eliminating non-
critical programs across the organization. Although these initiatives proved to be effective in our meeting the
Defined EBITDA covenant contained in our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2008, we do not expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other
operating costs, to be sustainable into future periods. General and administrative expense also benefited during
fiscal 2008 from corporate expense reductions that were implemented during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.
Offsetting these decreases are increases for incremental expense relative to the acquisition of Pro-Dentec, which is
inclusive of professional fees incurred for Sarbanes Oxley compliance costs for Pro-Dentec, investment banking
expenses that were incurred to explore financing alternatives and higher non-cash stock based compensation of
$0.2 millien. For fiscal 2008, our general and administrative expense consisted primarily of (i) cash basis salaries
and benefits of $5.2 million, (ii} audit, accounting and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance fees of $1.4 million, (iii) legal
fees of $0.7 million, (iv) investment banking fees and shareholder related expenses of $0.5 million and (v) non-cash
stock-based compensation of $1.8 million.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense was $2.4 million and $7.5 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, a decrease of $5.1 million or 67.6%. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008 we closed enrollment in a
clinical trial related to an oral cancer diagnostic drug and ceased expenditures for CMC and non-clinical aspects of
the regulatory program. The curtailment of the regulatory program is the primary driver of the overall decrease in
research and development expense. We believe that our level of expenditures for research and development in fiscal
2009 will be reduced further from our historical levels.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense was $4.0 million and $2.9 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, an increase of $1.1 million or 37.5%. The increased level of depreciation and amortization
expense is primarily due to the acquisition of Pro-Dentec on November 28, 2006 and depreciation and amortization
of its related property, plant, equipment and amortizable intangible assets.
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Other Expense

Other expense, net was $3.0 million and $5.8 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Other expense primarily consists of interest expense, which is summarized as follows:

2008 2007
Senior secured convertible nOtes . . . ... L. L L $ 946 § 490
BDCF secured term loan .. ... .ot i e s — 520
Amortization of financing coSts. . .. ... ... .. L e 477 2,643
Amortization of debt discounts . . .......... ... ... L 1,785 3,625
Capital leases . . . ... . e 15 3
0T 12 105
Total INTErest EXPENSE . . . v v ittt ettt e $3,235  $7.386

Interest expense was $3.2 million and $7.4 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
decrease in interest expense for fiscal 2008 primarily relates to interest incurred on a $20.0 million secured term loan
with Black Diamond Commercial Finance, LLC (“BDCF™), which was repaid in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. As a
result of this repayment, we expensed $3.6 million of unamortized debt issue costs and discounts during fiscal 2007.
Interest expense for fiscal 2008 primarily relates to interest incurred on our Second Amended and Restated Secured
Notes, which was paid in cash in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and in kind with shares of our common stock in the
second, third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008, as well as amortization of the related financing costs and discounts.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007 we recognized $1.1 million of non-cash derivative income for changes in
the fair value of a warrant to purchase 171,429 common shares that was issued to BDCF in connection with the term
loan discussed above. Prior to our adoption of FASB Staff Position No. EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration
Payment Arrangements” on November 1, 2006, we were required to account for this warrant as a freestanding
derivative financial instrument, with changes in the fair value of the warrant reported as non-cash charges or credits
to earnings. The derivative income recognized was due primarily to a decrease in the trading price of our common
stock during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.

Income Taxes

Asof July 31, 2008, we have recorded a valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets of $13.5 million due to
our lack of earnings history, and we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $47.9 million that
expire in years 2010 to 2028. Income tax benefit for the year ended July 31, 2008 was less than $0.1 million and
primarily relates to state income taxes. Income tax benefit of $9.7 million for fiscal 2007 resulted primarily from the
utilization of net operating loss carryforwards to offset the income tax expense on the taxable gains on the dispositions
of the Nutraceuticals business unit and the Peridex® product line, which are presented in discontinued operations.

Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2006

The key factors influencing Zila’s financial performance and operations during fiscal 2007 include:

(1) Transitioned into a diagnostic company dedicated to the prevention, detection and treatment of oral
cancer and periodontal discase through the acquisition of Pro-Dentec and the disposition of non-strategic
business lines.

(i1} Changed primarily to a direct sales distribution model upon the acquisition of the Pro-Dentec
national sales force.

(i) Increased ViziLite® Plus net revenues by 143% by expanding our customer base and by increasing
insurance coverage by 75% to 15 million covered lives.

{(iv) Initiated actions to reduce expenditures in research and development of an oral cancer diagnostic
drug program and to streamline our organizational structure to reduce overhead costs by approximately
$3.0 million annually. )
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The following table summarizes our results of continuing operations and related statistical information for the
years ended July 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

For the Years Ended July 31,

% of % of %
) 2007 Revenue 2006 Revenue Change

Netrevenues., .. ... oo iivvn i ensns $ 28,801 100.0% § 2,822 100.0% 920.6%
Costof productssold . .............. 11,857 41.2 1,925. 68.2 5159
Grossprofit ...................... 16,944 588 897 31.8 1,789.0
Operating costs and expenses:

Marketing and selling ............. 14,412 50.0 5,595 198.3 157.6

General and administrative. . .. ... ... 15,141 52.6 10,467 371.0 44.7

Research and development. ......... 7,482 260 7,158 253.6 4.5

Depreciation and amortization . . . . . .. 2,921 10.1 1,415 50.1 106.4
Loss from operations. ... ............ (23,012 (79.9) (23,738) (841.2) 3B.D
Other income (expense) —net......... (5,761) (20.0) (2,305) (81.7) 149.9
Loss from continuing operations before

incometaxes.................... (28,773)  (99.9) (26,043) (922.9) 10.5
Income tax benefit {expense). . ... e 9,668 33.6 3 (0.1) (322,366.7) °
Loss from continuing operations . . ... .. $(19,105) (66.3Y% $(26,046) (923.00% (26.6)

Ner Revenues

Net revenues increased 920.6% to approximately $28.8 million for fiscal 2007, compared to net revenues of
approximately $2.8 million for fiscal 2006. The growth in net revenues for fiscal 2007 is largely driven by our
acquisition of Pro-Dentec on November 28, 2006, as well as its effect on ViziLite® Plus net revenues. ViziLite® Plus
net revenues increased 143% to $6.6 million in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006, primarily as a result of selling direct to
dental offices through Pro-Dentec’s national sales organization beginning in December 2006. ViziLite® Plus net
revenues were affected by our deliberate reductions in sales to our existing distribution channel in the first part of
fiscal 2007 as we prepared to modify our means of distribution upon the completion of the Pro-Dentec acquisition.

Gross Profit

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues was 58.8% for fiscal 2007 compared to 31.8% for fiscal 2006.
Fiscal 2006 gross profit reflects our distributor-enly business model and the impact of discounts and incentives
offered in support of the launch of ViziLite® Plus.

Marketing and Selling Expense

Marketing and selling expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 50.0% and 198.3%, for fiscal 2007 and
2006, respectively. Marketing and selling expenses as a percentage of net revenues decreased for fiscal 2007 as a
result of the increased revenue base from the Pro-Dentec acquisition. Marketing and selling expenses for fiscal 2007
and 2006 were $14.4 million and $5.6 million, which represents an increase of 157.6%. Pro-Dentec represented the
majority of these increases as we integrated its dedicated national sales force that sells directly 10 dental offices.
Increased expenditures for ViziLite® Plus represent the balance of the increase as we continue our efforts to
establish ViziLite® Plus as the standard of care for dental offices in the detection of oral abnormalities.

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense was $15.1 million, or 52.6% of net revenues, for fiscal 2007, compared to
$10.5 million, or 371.0% of net revenues, for fiscal 2006. The increased expense for fiscal 2007 is primarily related
to the acquisition and integration of Pro-Dentec, stock-based compensation costs and additional support costs for
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ViziLite® Plus and our oral cancer diagnostic drug program, severance, professional fees for a special corporate
governance review, and settlement costs for the modification of the Private Placements. For fiscal 2007 and 20086,
the reclassification of revenues for discontinued operations significantly impacted general and administrative
expenses expressed as a percent of net revenues. General and administrative expenses for continuing operations
include significant public-company related costs, which do not vary in relation to net revenues. Separately, in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we streamlined our operations and reduced overhead costs with an estimated annual
savings of approximately $3.0 million dollars.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense increased 4.5% to $7.5 million for fiscal 2007 from $7.2 million in fiscal
2006. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, research and development expense is comprised primarily of costs for our oral
cancer diagnostic drug program. We incurred higher expense levels in fiscal 2007 with the continued efforts of our
oral cancer diagnostic drug program. In the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we curtailed enrollment in the oral cancer
diagnostic drug clinical trial and ceased expenditures for CMC and non-clinical aspects of the oral cancer diagnostic
drug program.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased 106.4%, to $2.9 million for fiscal 2007 from $1.4 million
for fiscal 2006. The increased level of depreciation and amortization expense in fiscal 2007 is primarily related to
the acquisition of Pro-Dentec and its related property, plant, equipment and amortizable intangible assets.

Other Expense

Other expense was $5.8 million for fiscal 2007, compared to other expense of $2.3 million for fiscal 2006, an
increase of 149.9%. Other expense primarily consists of interest expense, which is summarized as follows:

2007 2006
Senior secured convertible notes . . . .. .. ... ... .. $ 490 3 —
BDCF secured term 1oan . ... .. it it et e e e 520 1,034
Amortization of financing costs. .. .. ... L e e e 2,643 467
Amortization of debt discounts . . . . .. .. ... . ... 3,625 393
Capital leases . . ..o e e 3 4
hEr . . e e 105 22
Total IBtErest XPENSE . . . . ...ttt ettt e e $7.386 $1,920

The increase in interest expense relates to increased interest expense arising from the retirement of the credit
facility with Black Diamond Commercial Finance (“BDCF”) in fiscal 2007 and the associated non-cash expense
associated with this retiremeat. During fiscal 2007, an aggregate of approximately $3.6 million of non-cash charges
were incurred in relation to the write-off of unamortized debt financing costs and debt discounts upon the
repayments of the BDCF credit facility. These costs were ofiset by derivative income recognized on the Black
Diamond warrant liability in the first quarter.

Income Taxes

Income tax benefit of $9.7 million for fiscal 2007 resulted primarity from the utilization of net operating loss
carryforwards 10 offset the income tax expense on the taxable gains on the dispositions of the Nutraceuticals
business unit and the Peridex?® product line, which are presented in discontinued operations.

Inflation and Seasonality

We do not believe that inflation has a unique or material effect on the operations or financial condition of our
businesses. However, we are sensitive to general economic conditions since our products are somewhat discre-
tionary in nature. Sales for the dental industry are generally affected by holiday and vacation related seasonality,
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which impacts the number of available selling days in each fiscal quarter. We sell directly to dental professionals in
the United States and Canada and accordingly, our sales are subject to these seasonal trends.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our liquidity needs have typically arisen from the funding of our research and development program and the
launch of our new products, such as ViziLite® Plus, working capital and debt service requirements, and strategic
initiatives. In the past, we have met these cash requirements through our cash and cash equivalents, working capital
management, the sale of non-core assets, and proceeds from certain private placements of our securities.

Previously, our research and development program for our oral cancer diagnostic drug required the com-
mitment of substantial resources to conduct the time-consuming research and development, clinical studies and
regulatory activities necessary to bring any potential product to market and to establish production, marketing and
sales capabilities. We believe that in order to maximize shareholder value our resources must be directed to those
producis and programs with the greatest probability of financial return. We believe that our greatest potential lies
within the synergies created with the acquisition of Pro-Dentec, which increases our ability to develop and
commercialize our already existing oral cancer screening product, ViziLite® Plus. The incremental market potential
of the oral cancer diagnostic drug, considering the availability of ViziLite® Plus, did not justify the cost, time and
uncertain study outcomes associated with continuing the program in its current form. In order to pursue our strategy
with our currently available funds, during.fiscal 2008 we curtailed activity and spending related to the oral cancer
diagnostic drug program. As a result of this curtailment, research and development expenditures have decreased by
67.6% during fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. We believe that our level of expenditures for research and
development in fiscal 2009 will be reduced further from our historic levels.

To reduce operating losses, we have taken steps to reduce costs through restructuring overhead and discon-
tinuing research and development projects. We have focused our available resources in support of our selling and
marketing efforts in order to grow our revenue base. We have plans for the improvement of gross profit through
manufacturing process enhancements and selective product price increases, which we began to implement in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. With the recent authorization to sell ViziLite® Plus in Canada, the United Kingdom
and the European Union, we have launched our international expansion initiative. Also, on June 3, 2008 we entered
into a Second Amendment Agreement to our senior convertible debt that resulted in a change in certain financial
covenants as follows:

(i} The cash and cash equivalents balance that is required to be maintained at the end of each fiscal
quarter commencing with the fiscal quarter ending July 31, 2008 was reduced from $2.0 millien to
$1.0 million; and '

(ii) The required Defined EBITDA level of at least $1.00 must be met for any one fiscal quarter on or
prior to our quarter ending July 31, 2009. Prior to the Second Amendment Agreement, we were required 1o
have Defined EBITDA of at least $1.00 for each of the fiscal quarters ending July 31, 2008 and October 31,
2008. This covenant was satisfied during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

As of July 31, 2008, we had approximately $4.5 million of cash and cash equivalents and $6.6 million of
working capital. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we took strategic actions to promote continued
compliance with the financial covenants of our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. As a result of
these actions, we were able to improve profitability to satisfy our Defined EBITDA covenant in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2008 and to provide the foundation for compliance with our financial covenants in the future,

These actions included:

(1) Completing the hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and completing their training
across the full portfolio of our products;

(i1} Improving revenues and gross profit through the implementation of selective price increases effective
May 15, 2008 and implementing initiatives to reduce our cost of goods;
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(iii) Reducing headcount in our non-selling workforce by over 10%, temporarily reducing the salaries of
our management employees and reducing certain other employee benefits; and

(iv) Reducing, deferring or eliminating non-critical programs across the organization while maintaining
key selling initiatives,

Additionally, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we took actions to streamline our operations and reduce
overhead expenditures by approximately $3.0 million annually.

The initiatives discussed above proved to be effective in our meeting the Defined EBITDA covenant contained
in our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do not
expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other operating costs, to be
sustainable into future periods. Additicnally, since the time of our acquisition of Pro-Dentec in November 2006, we
have experienced higher than expected turnover in our sales force and have continued to experience turnover
throughout fiscal 2008. We would expect these factors, coupled with the recent economic downturn in the United
States and its impact on discretionary spending for our products, to likely cause near term future operating results to
be less favorable than our financial results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. However, we do expect many of the
strategic actions discussed above, as well as opportunities we continue to identify to sustain revenue and to likely
have a favorable impact on our future results of operations.

-

With the actions described above, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents along with cash flows
generated from operations and working capital management will allow us to fund our planned operations over the
next 12 months.

Selected Cash Flow and Working Capital Information

Selected cash flow and working capital information is set forth in the table below (dollars in thousands):
For the Years Ended July 31,

2008 2007 2006
Net cash used in operating activities. . . .................... $(7.632) $(14,967) $(20,309)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . ... ..... .., (1,055) 12,395 (5,290)
Net cash provided by financing activities ... ................ (1,710) 13,473 17,119

As of July 31,

' , 2008 2007
Cash and cash equivalents. . . ......... ... ... it $4,462 $14,859
Working capital ... ... ... . ... S 6,558 14,286
LT T4 (1oL A0 7 14 o 1.8 2.4

AtJuly 31, 2008, our primary sources of liquidity included cash and cash equivalents of $4.5 million compared
to $14.9 million as of July 31, 2007. Our working capital was $6.6 million as of July 31, 2008 compared to
$14.3 million as of July 31, 2007. The decrease in working capital primarily relates to our decreased cash balance,
offset by increased trade receivables. Trade receivables increased $1.0 million or 22.9%, primarily due to increased
sales levels. Our current ratio has declined to 1.8 as of July 31, 2008 compared to 2.4 as of July 31, 2007, primarily
as a result of the net decreases in working capital outlined above. However, our working capital position has
improved during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, to $6.6 million as of July 31, 2008 from $5.9 million as of
April 30, 2008 through positive cash flows from our operations during this time.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities was $7.6 million and $15.0 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively. The decrease in cash used in operating activities primarily relates to (i) cash flows from our Pro-
Dentec operations, which were acquired during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, (ii} synergies created as a result of
the Pro-Dentec acquisition, which increases our ability to develop and commercialize our already existing oral
cancer screening product, ViziLite® Plus, (iii) the elimination of cash flows from our recently disposed
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Nutraceuticals business unit and Peridex® product line, (iv) the curtailment of activity and spending related to the
oral cancer diagnostic drug program and (v) the strategic actions taken towards the end of fiscal 2008, which are
discussed further above and resulted in improved profitability and the achievement of our Defined EBITDA
requirement for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Offsetting these cash flow improvements were cash provided by
(used in) working capital components, which were $(1.2) million and $3.7 million for the year ended July 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively, or a $4.9 million change. The working capital decrement for the year ended July 31, 2008
primarily relates to increased accounts receivable balances, which is discussed above, as well as decreased accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, which primarily relates to the timing of payments on certain of our accrued
expenses. Cash provided by working capital changes in fiscal 2007 primarily relates to increased levels of accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Cash used in operating activities was $15.0 million for fiscal 2007 compared to $20.8 million for fiscal 2006.
The decrease for fiscal 2007 resulted from the reduced cash loss from continuing operations as a result of the Pro-
Dentec acquisition and a reduced cash loss from discontinued operations as a result of the disposition of the
Nutraceuticals business unit. Additionally, reduced levels of inventory and accounts receivable through the
disposition of the Nutraceuticals business unit and increased accounts payable and accrued liabilities resulting
from the Pro-Dentec acquisition provided working capital improvements of approximately $0.6 million over the
prior year period.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities was $(1.1) million and $12.4 million for the years ended

July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. During the year ended July 31, 2008 we spent $1.1 million for additional
property and equipment and development of intangible assets. Cash provided by investing activities during fiscal

-2007 relates to net proceeds of $44.3 million from the sale of our Nutraceuticals business unit and Peridex® product

line and $3.6 million for the return of collateral upon the retirement of Industrial Development Revenue Bonds,
which related to the disposition of the Nutraceuticals business unit, offset by $34.t million of cash spent for the
acquisition of Pra-Dentec, which was completed in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, and $1.5 million of cash spent
for additional property and equipment and the development of intangible assets.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $12.4 million for fiscal 2007 compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $5.3 million for fiscal 2006. Significant components of cash provided by investing activities
during fiscal 2007 included net proceeds of $34.9 million and $9.4 mitlion for the dispositions of the Nutraceuticals
business unit and Peridex product line, respectively. Collateral returned upon the retirement of the Industrial
Revenue Bonds also provided $3.6 million. Separately, we used $34.1 million to acquire Pro-Dentec. For fiscal
2006, we used $5.2 million to increase the restricted cash collateral for the letter of credit supporting the Industrial
Revenue Bonds and for capital asset purchases and expenditures for patents and trademarks.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities was $(1.7) million and $13.5 million for years ended July 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. During fiscal 2008, we paid $1.4 million for the repurchase of common stock and
warrants, which is described in more detail elsewhere herein, and made payments towards our debt obligations of
$0.4 million. During fiscal 2007, we completed two private placements for gross proceeds of approximately
$40.0 million, which are described in more detail elsewhere herein. Offsetting the proceeds from these private
placements was $24.0 million of debt repayments, which primarily relates to the repayment of the BDCF credit
facility and the Industrial Development Revenue Bonds. During fiscal 2007, we also incurred $2.6 million for
financing costs. '

Net cash provided by financing activities was $13.5 million for fiscal 2007 compared to $17.1 million for fiscal
2006. The decrease in cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2007 relates to the repayment of the BDCF
credit facility, the Industrial Development Revenue Bonds and equipment and mortgage notes of Pro-Dentec.
Offsetting these payments are gross proceeds from the Private Placements of $40.0 million. .
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Private Placements

In November 2006, we consummated two private placements (the “Private Placements™) for gross proceeds of
approximately $40.0 million. Pursuant to the first purchase agreement, we issued and sold:

(1) 1,300,000 shares of Zila’s common stock for $12.25 per share (the “Shares™);

(ii) Approximately $12.1 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.0% Unsecured Convertible Notes
{the “Unsecured Notes”), which converted into 985,714 shares (the “Unsecured Note Shares™) of Zila’s
common stock at a conversion price of $12.25 per share on December 14, 2006, the date on which our
stockholders approved, among other things, the Private Placements;

(iii) Warrants to purchase approximately 772,000 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became
exercisable in May 2007 for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share'(the “Initial Warranis™);

{iv) Warrants to purchase approximately 444,000 shares of Zila's common stock, which became
exercisable for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders
on December 14, 2006 (the “Additional Warrants™).

Pursuant to the second purchase agreement, we issued and sold:

(i} Approximately $12.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.0% Senior Secured Convertible
Notes (the “Secured Notes™), are due in November 2009 anc_j became convertible into 779,221 shares of Zila's
common stock at a conversion price of $15.40 following approval by our stockholders on December 14,
2006; and

(i) Warrants. to purchase 272,727 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became exercisable for five
years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders on December 14, 2006
{the “Secured Note Warrants™).

We granted registration rights for the Shares and shares of common stock issuable uvpon conversion of the debt
instruments and exercise of the warrants. A dispute arose with certain investors (the “Investors”) regarding the
extent of the registration rights, On August 13, 2007, we reached an agreement with the Investors to restructure the
Investors’ holdings (the “Restructuring™) and to provide us with relief from certain financial and non-financial
covenants contained in the Secured Notes (the “Amendment Agreement™). As amended and restated, the “Amended
and Restated Secured Notes™ are in the same aggregate principal amount as the Secured Notes, or approximately
$12.0 million, but are due | uly 31, 2010. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes bear interest, payable quarterly,
at 7.0% per annum, but at our option, interest payments can be made at an 8.0% annual rate in shares of our common
stock at a price equal to 90.0% of the average closing bid price of such common stock for the ten trading days
immediately prior to the relevant interest payment date. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes remain
convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of $15.40 per share at the option of the holders of such
notes, In addition, the Amended and Restated Secured Notes contain comprehensive covenants that restrict the way
in which we can operate, and contain financial covenants that require us to maintain specified cash and defined
EBITDA levels.

As part of the Restructuring, we also agreed to:

(i) Repurchase 133,262 Unsecured Note Shares from the Investors for approximately $1.25 million in
cash, at a price based on the average closing bid price of our common stock for the ten trading days prior to
August 13, 2007, or $9.38 per Unsecured Note Share;

.(ii) Repurchase 32,467 Secured Note Warrants from the Investors for approximately $0.15 million in
cash, at a price based on a Black-Scholes valuation, or $4.62 per Secured Note Warranr; and

(iii) Pay the Investors a $0.6 million fee,
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On June 3, 2008 we entered into the Second Amendment Agreement to the Secured Notes, which resulted in a
change in certain financial covenants as follows:

(1) The cash and cash equivalents balance that is required to be maintained at the end of each fiscal
quarter commencing with the fiscal quarter ending July 31, 2008 was reduced from $2.0 million to
$1.0 million; and

{ii) The required EBITDA level, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
(“Defined EBITDA™), of at least $1.00 must be met for any one fiscal quarter on or prior to our quarter ending
July 31, 2009. Prior to the Second Amendment Agreement, we were required to have Defined EBITDA of at -
least $1.00 for each of the fiscal quarters ending July 31, 2008 and October 31, 2008. This covenant was
satisfied during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

In exchange for the covenant modifications, we issued 660,942 common shares with a fair value of $1.2 million
based on quoted market prices on the date of the Second Amendment Agreement. Additionally, the creditors
returned 485,157 warrants that they had been previousty issued in connection with the original issuance of the
Secured Notes and other financing transactions. The aggregate fair value of these warrants as of the date of this
modification, based on the Black Scholes model, was $0.1 million. No other terms of these notes were altered as a
result of the Second Amendment Agreement, We concluded that the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
are not substantially different from the original Secured Notes and accordingly, the Second Amendment Agreement
has not been accounted for as a debt extinguishment.

On September 1 1, 2008, we entered into a Third Amendment Agreement with the Investors that serves to limit
the amount of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes that each Investor is allowed to convert to Zila’s
common shares. Under the Third Amendment Agreement, holders shall not have the right to convert any portion of
their Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes in the event that the holder would beneficially own in excess of
4.999% of our common stock issued and outstanding immediately after giving effect to such conversion.

Our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes contain comprehensive covenants that restrict the way in
which we can operate, and contain financial covenants that require us to, among other things, maintain, at the end of
each fiscal quarter, cash and cash equivalents in an amount not less than $1.0 million. As of July 31, 2008, we were
in compliance with this covenant and had approximately $4.5 million in cash and cash equivalents. We had cash and
cash equivalents of approximately $3.5 miilion, $5.9 million and $8.7 million as of April 30, 2008, January 31, 2008
and October 31, 2007, respectively. Failure to maintain compliance with the required minimum cash financial
covenant, or 10 maintain compliance with other covenants, could, at the option of the Second Amended and Restated
Secured Note holders, result in an event of default. Upon the occurrence of the first specified event of default, the
holders of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and demand repayment of one-third
of the outstanding principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on the Second Amended and Restated
Secured Notes. Upon the occurrence of the second specified event of default, the holders of the Second Amended
and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and demand repayment of one-half of the outstanding principal
balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on these notes. Upon the occurrence of the third specified event of
default, the entire principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest may beécome due and payable. Additionally,
upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any event of default, all amounts outstanding under the Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes shall bear interest at an annual rate of 15.0% per annum.

We anticipate we will need to refinance our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes by their due date of
July 31, 2010. During September 2008, we retained William Blair and Company to assist in exploring financing
alternatives. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining sufficient replacement
financing or that any refinancing will be obtainable on terms that are favorable to us. As such, we may incur greater
interest expense and financing costs in future periods. If we are unable to refinance our Second Amended and
Restated Secured Notes or obtain alternative sources of funding, we may be required to sell additional debt, equity
or assets in order to meet our repayment obligations, which may not be possible. Should we refinance the Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes before their scheduled maturity, we may incur an additional non-cash interest
charge relative to our unamortized debt issue costs and debt discounts. As of July 31, 2008 there was $1.8 million of
unamortized debt issue costs and $3.6 million of debt discounts relative to the Second Amended and Restated
Secured Notes. '
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Credit Fuacility

On March 24, 2006, we, certain of our domestic subsidiaries and BDCF, as the initial lender and administrative
agent, entered into a credit facility. On October 2, 2006, debt cutstanding under this credit facility in the amount of
approximately $20.0 million plus accrued interest was repaid from the proceeds of the disposition of the
Nutraceuticals business unit and the credit facility was terminated. Upon termination of this credit facility, we
recognized a non-cash loss of approximately $3.6 million for the write-off of unameortized debt financing costs and
debt discount. These costs were recorded as interest expense.

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

On September 28, 2006, as a requirement of the Nutraceuticals disposition, we redeemed Industrial Devel-
opment Revenue Bonds in the amount of $2.8 million plus accrued interest. Funds in a restricted cash collateral
account were utilized for this repayment. The balance of the restricted cash collateral was returned to Zila. Upen the
retirement of the bonds, we recognized a loss of approximately $0.2 million for the write-off of the unamortized
deferred financing costs.

PharmaBio Investment

In December 2002, we entered into an agreement with PharmaBio Development, Inc. (“PharmaBio™), the
strategic investment group of Quintiles Transnational Corp., our then contract research organization. Under this
agreement, PharmaBio invested $0.5 million in us. In return for the investment, we agreed to pay PharmaBio an
amount equal to 5.0% of all net sales of an oral cancer diagnostic drug product in the European Union and the
United States. The aggregate amount of the royalty payments cannot exceed $1.25 million and the royalty is payable
quarterly. The investment was recorded as long-term debt and will be amortized using the effective interest method.

Convertible Preferred Stock

During February 2001, we issued 100,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock {*“Preferred Stock™)
as part of an acquisition, all of which were outstanding as of July 31, 2008. The holders of the Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive cumulative quarterly dividends at a rate of $0.0975 per share per fiscal quarter, payable in arrears,
which represents an aggregate annual dividend of $39,000. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, accumulated accrued
dividends were $9,750. The Preferred Stock can be redeemed at our option if our common stock maintains a closing
price on each trading day equal to or greater than $9.00 per share for any ten trading day period. The redemption
price shall be the average bid closing price of our common stock for the five trading days immediately proceeding
the date we give notice. The Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time on or before
December 31, 2010 into our common stock at the ratio of one-to-one. On December 31, 2010, all of the remaining
Preferred Stock will be converted into our common stock at a ratio of one-to-one. Holders of the preferred stock
have no voting rights except as required by applicable law and have a liquidation preference of $0.65 million. The
shares of Preferred Stock were issued pursuant to the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. There
is no established public trading market for the Preferred Stock.

EBITDA and Defined EBITDA

EBITDA {(earnings (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) is a key indicator that
management uses to evaluate our operating performance and cash flows. In addition, to monitor compliance with
the covenants contained in our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes, we utilize EBITDA, as defined under
the Second Amended and Restated Note Agreement (“Defined EBITDA”). Defined EBITDA is calculated as
Consolidated Net Income, as defined in the Second Amendment Agreement, plus, without duplication and to the
extent reflected as a charge in the statement of Consolidated Net Income for such period, the sum of {a) income tax
expense, (b) interest expense, amortization or write-off of debt discount and debt issuance costs and commissions,
discounts and other fees and charges associated with indebiedness, (c) depreciation and amortization expense,
(d) amortization of intangibles (including, but not limited to, goodwill) and organization costs and (e} other non-
cash itemns reducing Consolidated Net Income and minus, to the extent included in the statement of such
Consolidated Net Income for such period, (x) interest income and (y) all other non-cash items increasing
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Consolidated Net Income, all as determined on a consolidated basis. The Second Amended and Restated Secured
Notes are material agreements 10 us and, therefore, the covenants are material to an investor’s understanding of our
financial condition and liquidity. Although we use EBITDA and Defined EBITDA as a financial measure and as a
measure to monitor compliance with debt covenants, neither EBITDA nor Defined EBITDA include certain
material costs, expenses and other items necessary to operate our business. Because these non-GAAP measures do
not include these items, a stockholder, potential investor or other user of our financial information should not

consider these non-GAAP financial measures as a substitute for net cash used in operating activities or as the sole

indicator of our financial performance since net cash used in operating activities provides a more complete measure
of our financial performance. In other words, EBITDA and Defined EBITDA should only be used on a supple-
mental basis combined with GAAP results when evaluating our financial performance. The calculations we use to
determine these non-GAAP measures may differ in method of calculation from similarly titled measures used by
other companies.

The following is a reconciliation of EBITDA and Defined EBITDA to the comparable GAAP measure, which
is net cash used in operating activities (in thousands}):

Year Ended July 31, Quarter Ended
2008 2007 2006 July 31, 2008
Netloss ...t e e $5(16,378) $(13,164) $(29,346) $(2,342)
Interest expense. . . ........vvnrennennn, 3,235 7,638 2,152 881
Interestincome ....................... (231) (579) (344) (N
Income taxes........ ..., 9) 63 4 13
Depreciation and amortization . ........... 4,479 3,420 3,036 1,325
EBITDA ... ... .. i (8,904) (2,620  (24,498) (130)
Non-cash derivative (income) expense ...... 24 (1,059) 137 —
Loss (gain) from disposition of discontinued
OPETAtiONS . .. ..o\t vniiae it — (16,185) 629 —
Non-cash stock-based compensation
BXPEMSE . . vttt i 2,055 1,774 T 631 674
Other non-cash items —net. ............. 360 203 (167) 320
Debt related expenses . ................. 87 — — 87
Defined EBITDA ....................... (6,378) (17,887)  (23,268) 951
Debt related expenses .. ... .. e (87 — — 87
INtErest iNCOME . . ..o\ o v it eee e e 231 579 344 7
Interest expense. . . ......... ... ..., (3,235) (7,638} (2,152) (881)
Income tax expense . . . .......... e 9 (65} (4) (13
Amortization of financing costs . . ......... 477 2,513 488 183
Amortization of debt discounts. . .......... 1,785 3,625 393 449
Non-cash interest. ... .................. 731 202 284 245
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables . .. ................. (979) 902 7,499 231
Inventories. ... .........ccuvieionnn. 968 (62) (3,921) 1,007
Prepaid expenses and other assets. .. ... .. 61 496 (298) 338
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . (1,215) 2,368 (174) (1,300)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities . .. ... ... .. e e $ (7,632) $(14,967) $(20,809) $1,130

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangements.
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Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes our future cash contractual obligations as of July 31, 2008, and the effect that such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows for fiscal years presented (in thousands):

Beyond
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 5 Years Total
Long-term debt (1) .. ........... $ 840 $12840 3$— $— $— 3500 $14,180
Capital lease obligations . . . ... ... 78 35 — — — — 113
Operating leases . .. ............ 437 177 72 — — — 686
Purchase obligations . ... ... .. ... 342 — = = = — 342
Total ... ... $1,697 $13,052 $72 $— $—  $500  $i5,321

(1) Includes interest on our Secured Notes of $0.8 million for fiscal 2009 and 2010, which reflects a 7.0% rate for
our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. However, as discussed ‘above, at our option, interest
payments can be made at an 8.0% annual rate in shares of our common stock at a price equal to 90.0% of the
average closing bid price of such common stock for the ten trading days immediately prior to the relevant
interest payment date,

Purchase obligations include contractual arrangements that are legally binding and enforceable. These
contractual arrangements specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased,
pricing provisions and the approximate timing of the transaction. The timing of payments for our purchase
obligations is estimated based upon current information. The actual timing and amount of payment may differ from
this estimate. '

Purchase orders for raw matenals and other goods and services are not included in the above table. Our
purchase orders may represent authorizations to purchase rather than definitive binding contractual obligations.
Contractual arrangements for goods and services that contain clauses allowing for cancellation without significant
penalty are not included in the above table.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and resvlts of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, we evaluale our estimates related to sales allowances, chargebacks,
rebates, returns and other pricing adjustments, depreciation and amortization and other contingencies and litigation.
We base our estimates on historical experience and various other factors related to each circumstance. Actual results
could differ from those estimates based upon future events, which could include, among other risks, changes in the
business environment in which we operate and changes in the regulations governing the manner in which we sell our
products. There are several accounting policies that we believe are significant to the presentation of our consol-
idated financial statements and require management’s most difficult, complex or subjective judgments about
matters that are inherently uncertain. Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements “Nature of Business
Activities, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” summarizes each of our
significant accounting policies. We believe our most critical accounting policies are as follows:

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from sales of products is recognized when earned; that is, when the
risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, upon delivery to the designated carrier. Cash
discounts, sales incentives, and returns are estimated and recognized as a reduction of revenue at the time of
sale based on historical experience and current customer commitments. We evaluate these estimates on a
quarterly basis and revise them as necessary.

We provide for allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns based on historical experience and a
review of our receivables. Receivables are presented net of allowances for doubtful accounts and for sales

40



returns of approximately $0.2 million as of July 31, 2008 and 2007. We evaluate these estimates on a quarterly
basis and revise them as necessary.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America necessarily requires that we make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. The accounting estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements will change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is
obtained and as our operating environment changes. It is reasonably possible that actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.

Significant estimates include: (i) useful lives of intangibles; (ii) impairment analyses; (iii) depreciable
lives of assets; (iv) income tax valuation allowances; (v) contingency and litigation reserves; (vi) inventory
valuation; (vii) allowances for accounts receivable, cash discounts, sales incentives and sales returns; and

" (viii) valuation assumptions for share-based payments.

We make changes in estimates as appropriate, and as we become aware of circumstances surrounding
those estimates. Such changes and refinements in estimation methodologies are reflected in reported results of
operations in the period in which the changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Long-Lived Assets — We have made acquisitions of products and
businesses that include goodwill, license agreements, patents and trademarks, product rights and other
intangible and long-lived assets. We assess the impairment of goodwill annually, and for other intangibles
and long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any of
these assets may not be recoverable, Such events or circumstances might include a significant decline in
market share and/or significant negative industry or economic trends, a significant decline in profits and/or
significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected operating results, significant changes
in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business, rapid changes in
technology, significant litigation or other items, In evaluating the recoverahility of goodwill, intangibles and
other long-lived assets, our policy is to compare the carrying amounts of such assets with the estimated future
operating cash flows. If we have changes in events or circumstances, including reductions in anticipated cash

" flows generated by our operations or determinations to divest of certain assets, certain assets could be impaired

which would result in a charge to earnings.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements and Adopted Accounting

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS Interpretation No. 48,

“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48), which
we have adopted effective August 1, 2007, FIN 48 applies to all “tax positions” accounted for under SFAS No. 109.
FIN 48 refers to “1ax positions™ as positions taken in a previously filed tax return or positions expected to be taken in
a future tax return, which are reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities reported in
the financial statements. FIN 48 further clarifies a tax position to include, but not be limited to, the following:

= an allocation or a shift of income between taxing jurisdictions;
» the characterization of income or a decision to exclude reporting taxable income in a tax return; or
» a decision 1o classify a transaction, entity or other position in a tax return as tax exempt.

FIN 48 clarifies that a tax benefit may be reflected in the financiai statements only if it is “more likely than not”

that & company will be able to sustain the tax position, based on its technical merits. If a tax benefit meets this
criterion, it should be measured and recognized based on the largest amount of benefit that is cumulatively greater
than 50% likely to be realized. This is a change from previous practice, whereby companies may have recognized a
tax benefit only if it was probable a tax position would be sustained.
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FIN 48 also requires that we make qualitative and quantitative disclosures, including a discussion of
reasonably possible changes that might occur in unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months, a description
of open tax years by major jurisdictions, and a roll-forward of all unrecognized tax benefits, presented as a
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the unrecognized tax benefits on an aggregated basis.

We are potentially subject to tax audits in the United States and Canada. Tax audits by their very nature are
often complex and can require several years to complete. We are potentially subject to United States federal and
state tax examinations for the tax years ended July 31, 1995 through July 31, 2008. All tax loss years through
July 31, 2008 remain open for federal, state and foreign operations. Zila’s responsibility for Canadian and Canadian
Provincial income taxes arose through the acquisition of Pro-Dentec. As a condition of the acquisition of Pro-
Dentec, the merger agreement related thereto required that the selling shareholders of Pro-Dentec indemnify Zila
for any identified tax liabilities for periods prior to the acquisition. Zila is not indemnified for Canadian and
Canadian Provincial tax examinations that may arise for the tax year ended July 31, 2007 and thereafter.

The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on our financial statements or disclosures. As of
August I, 2007 and July 31, 2008, we did not recognize any assets or liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits
relative to uncertain tax positions nor do we anticipate any significant unrecognized tax benefits will be recorded
during the next 12 months. Any interest or penalties resulting from examinations will be recognized as a component
of the income tax provision. However, since there are no unrecognized tax benefits as a result of tax positions taken,
there are no accrued interest and penalties.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures™ (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, expands disclosures about fair value
measurements and applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements,
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, the FASB anticipates that for some entities,
the application of SFAS 157 will change current practice. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which for us will be our fiscal year beginning August.1, 2008.
‘However, in February 2008, the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain non-financial
assets and non-financiat liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (i.e., at least annually). We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material
effect on our financial position or results of operations.

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements”
(“FSP EITF 00-19-2"), which addresses accounting for registration, payment arrangements. FSP EITF 00-19-2
specifies that the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a
registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a provision of a financial
instrument or other agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with SFAS No. 5,
“Accounting for Contingencies.” FSP EITF 00-19-2 further clarifies that a financial instrument subject to a
registration payment arrangement should be accounted for in accordance with other applicable generally accepted
accounting principles without regard to the contingent obligation to transfer consideration pursuant to the registration
payment. FSP EITF 00-19-2 was effective immediately for registration payment arrangements and the financial
instruments subject to those arrangements that were entered into or modified subsequent to December 21, 2006. For
registration payment arrangements and related financial instruments entered into prior to December 21, 2006,
FSP EITF 00-19-2 was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and
interim periods within those fiscal years. Companies are required to report transition through a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of the first interim period for the fiscal year in which
FSP EITF 00-19-2 is adopted.

As described more fully in these financial statements and accompanying notes, in March 2006, we entered into
a debt agreement that required the issuance of a warrant to purchase 171,429 shares of our common stock. As
required under this debt agreement, we-registered the common shares underlying the warrant with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC™) and must maintain such registration over the term of the warrant. At the time of
issuance, the obligation created by our agreement to register and maintain registration of the underlying common
shares was recorded as a warrant liability measured at fair value, We determined the fair value of the warrant based
on available market data using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value of the warrant was recorded as a
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debt discount amortizable as interest expense over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Any gains
or losses resuiting from the changes in fair value of the warrant lHability from period to period were included as non-
cash credits or charges to earnings.

As permitted under FSP EITF 00-19-2, we elected early adoption as of the beginning of our fiscal quarter
beginning November 1, 2006. At such time, we recorded the effect of applying FSP EITF 00-19-2 to this derivative
liability for the warrant using the cumulative-effect transition method, which resulted in a decrease in derivative
liability of approximately $1.5 million and an increase to the carrying amount of additional paid-in capital of
approximately $2.5 million, representing the original value assigned to these warrants with an offsetting cumu-
lative-effect entry to accumulated deficit of approximately $0.9 million, as set forth in our Consolidated Statements
of Shareholders’ Equity. The cumulative adjustment is not recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and prior periods are not adjusted.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities” ("*SFAS 159™). SFAS 159 permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain items at fair value. The objective of this standard is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with
the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 permits all entities to choose
to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. Entities will report unrealized gains and losses on
items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value
option: (i} may be applied instrument by instrument, with a few exceptions, such as investments accounted for by
the equity method; (ii) is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs); and (iii} is applied only to entire,
instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal
year that begins after November 15, 2007, which for us would be our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2008. We do
not expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R establishes the principles and requirements for how an acquirer: (i) recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree; (ii) recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in a business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase; and (iii) determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of a business combination. Additionally, under SFAS 141R transaction related costs
must be expensed as incurred, rather than accounted for as part of the purchase price of an acquisition. SFAS 141R is
to be applied prospectively to business combinations consummated on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period on or after December 15, 2008, which for us would be our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2009,
Early adoption is prohibited. Following its effective date, we will apply the provisions of SFAS 141R to future
acquisitions, if any.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS 1607). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting
standards that require (1) noncontrolling interests to be reported as a component of equity, (ii) changes in a parent’s
ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling interest to be accounted for as equity transactions and
(iii) any retained noncontrolling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary to be initially measured
at fair value. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or
after December 15, 2008, which for us would be our fiscal quarter beginning February 1, 2009. Early adoption is
prohibited. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have a material effect on our financial position or results
of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures abous Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No, 133" ("SFAS 1617), which establishes, among other things, the
disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosures
about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of, and gains
and losses on, derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative
agreements. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal periods and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, which
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for us would be cur third fiscal quarter of our fiscal year 2009, which would be the quarterly period ending April 30,
2009. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 161 will have on our financial statement disclosures.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Pasition (“FSP") No, SFAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful
Life of Intangible Assets” (“FSP SFAS 142-3"). FSP SFAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in
developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset
under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 1427). The intent of FSP SFAS 142-3 is to
improve the consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of
expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under SFAS 141 (R) and other applicable accounting
literature. FSP SFAS 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal vears beginning after December 15,
2008 and must be applied prospectively to intangible assets acquired after the effective date. We are currently
evaluating the impact FSP SFAS 142-3 will have on our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP Accounting Principles Board No. 14-1 “Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)” (“FSP APB 14-1"").
FSP APB 14-1 requires the issuer of cerain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash (or other assets)
on conversion (including partial cash settlement) to separately account for the liability and equity components of the
instrument in a manner that reflects the issuer’s non-convertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is
recognized in subsequent periods. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is prohibited. We
are currently evaluating the impact FSP APB 14-1 will have on our financial position or results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

With the redemption of the Industrial Development Revenue Bonds on September 28, 2006, our exposure to
market risk for a change in interest rates relates primarily to our investments, which consists of cash and cash
equivalents. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing yields
without significantly increasing risk. We maintain our portfolio in high credit quality money market funds and the
carrying value of these money market funds approximates market value at any given point in time. Because our
investments consist of cash equivalents, a hypothetical 100 basis point change in interest rates is not likely to have a
material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

We also have market risk arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates through our subsidiaries that
conduct business in Canada and Europe and through a subsidiary that uses the British pound as its functional
currency. We believe that such exposure does not present a significant risk due to the limited number of transactions
and/or accounts denominated in foreign currency.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

All financial statements and supplementary data that are required by this Item are listed in Part IV, Item 15 of

this annual report and are presented beginning on Page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure conirols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15{¢) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed: (i} to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii} to ensure
that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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Our management, with the participation of our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report, and, based on that evaluation, our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15¢e) and 15d-15(e) are effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to matertally affect, our interna! control over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Zila, Inc (“Zila™ or the “Company™) is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal controls over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended.

Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; {ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Management, with the participation of the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers,
assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controt over financial reporting as of July 31, 2008. This
assessment was performed using the criteria established under the Internal Control-Integrated Framework estab-
lished by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on the assessment performed using the criteria established by COSO, management has concluded that
the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of July 31, 2008,

BDO Seidman, LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2008, has issued an audit report on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Such report appears in Item 8 of this
filing.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The report is included in Item § of this annual report.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART 11

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item relating to our directors and nominees, and regarding compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Act of 1934, will be included in our definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting
of stockholders of Zila to be held on December 11, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the information required by this item relating to our
executive officers is included in the Proxy Statement.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our principal executive officer
and all members of our finance department, including the principal financial officer. This code of ethics is posted in
the ““Corporate Governance” section of the Investor Relations portion of our website at www.zila.com and is titled
“Code of Business Conduct.” We also have a “Code of Ethical Conduct for Financial Personnel” which applies
solely to our finance persenne! and which is posted in the same place on our website. We intend to satisfy any
disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of this
code of ethics relating to an executive officer by posting such information on our website, unless otherwise required
by NASDAQ Marketplace Rules to disclose any such waiver on Form 8-K.

There have been no material changes {o the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees
to our Board of directors. The procedures for submitting shareholder nominations or recommendations will be
included in the Proxy Statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactiohs, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference,

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be included in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a}(1) Financial Sratements. The Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedule on page F-1 is incorporated herein by reference as the list of financial statements required as part of this
report. : ‘

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule. The Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial
Statement Schedule on page F-1 is incorporated herein by reference as the list of financial statements required
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as part of this report. The Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule on
page F-1 is incorporated herein by reference as the list.

(a)(3) Exhibits. The exhibit list in the Index to Exhibits is incorporated herein by reference as the list of
exhibits required as part of this report.

Documents filed as exhibits to this report or incorporated by reference:

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit ' Method
Number Description of Filing
3-A Certificate of Incorporation, as amended A
3-B  Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation M
3-C  Cenificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation v
3-D  Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation Ag
3-E Amended and Restated Bylaws of Zila, Inc., as amended and restated through April 2, 2008 Af
4-A  Specimen Stock Certificate A
4-B  Form of 12% Unsecured Note due May 2007 W
4.C  Form of 6% Senior Secured Note due November 2009 w
4-D  Form of Initial Warrant W
4-E  Form of Additional Warrant w
4-F  Form of Secured Note Warrant W
4-G Warrant, dated February 20, 2007, issued to Roth Capital Partners, LLC X
4-H  Form of Third Amended and Restated Senior Secured Convertible Note due July 2010 Am
10-A  Employee Stock Purchase Plan(l) E

10-B  Investment Agreement between Zila, Inc. and PharmaBio Development, Inc. dated H
December 18, 2002

10-C  Reimbursement Agreement between Oxycal Laboratories, Incorporated, an Arizona
Corporation, and Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. relating to $3,900,000 — The Industrial
Development Authority Revenue Bonds (Oxycal Laboratories, Incorporated Project)
Series 1999A, dated as of February 6, 2004 :

10-D  Employment Agreement between Zila, Inc. and Douglas D. Burkett, Ph.D., dated as of
October 21, 2003(1)

10-E Lease between Zila, Inc. and Phoenix 7 LLC, dated January 30, 2004

10-F  Offer letter between Zila, Inc. and Andrew A. Stevens dated January 15, 2004(1)

10-G 1997 Stock Award Plan, as amended, dated September 30, 2004(1)

10-H  Offer letter between Zila, Inc. and Gary V. Klinefelter dated November 16, 2004(1)

10-1 Retention Agreement with Andrew A, Stevens effective March 7, 2005(1)

10-] Retention Agreement with Diane E. Klein effective March 7, 2005(1)

10-K  Agreement of Purchase and Sale of Assets dated June 27, 2005 with Blairex Laboratories, Inc.
10-L Form of Option Agreement(1}

10-M Credit Agreement dated March 24, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc., Zila Technical, Inc., Zila
Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Zila Swab
Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C.

10-N  First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated June 6, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc., Zila N
Technical, Inc., Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
and Zila Swab Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C.

10-0 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated June 6, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc,, Zila O
’ Technical, Inc., Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
and Zila Swab Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C.
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Exhibit
Number

10-P

10-Q

10-R

10-8

10-T
10-U

10-V
10-W
10-X
10-Y
10-Z
10-Aa
10-Ab

10-Ac

10-Ad

10-Ae

10-Af

10-Ag
10-Ah

10-Ai
10-Aj

10-Ak
10-Al

Description
Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated August 18, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc., Zila
Technical, Inc., Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
and Zila Swab Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C.
Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated August 31, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc., Zila
Technical, Inc., Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
and Zila Swab Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.1.C.
Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated September 25, 2006 by and among Zila, Inc., Zila
Technical, Inc., Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
and Zila Swab Technologies, Inc. and Black Diamond Commercial Finance; L.L.C.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2006, by and between Black Diamond
Commercial Finance, L.L.C, and Zila, Inc.

Offer Letter between Zila, Inc. and Frank J. Bellizzi dated May 22, 2006

Warrant for the purchase of shares of common stock, dated March 24, 2006, issued to Black
Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C. by Zila, Inc.

Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock, dated June 6, 2006,
issued to BDC Finance, L.L..C. by Zila, Inc.

Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock, dated September 25,
2006, issued to BDC Finance, L.L.C. by Zila, Inc.

Stock Purchase Agreement by and between NBTY, Inc. and Zila, Inc. with respects to all of the
outstanding capital stock of Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc. dated August 13, 2006

First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated September 28, 2006, by and between
Zila, Inc. and NBTY, Inc.

Purchase Agreement for the Shares, Unsecured Noies, Initial Warrants and Additional
Warrants, dated November 13, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the invesiors thereto

Purchase Agreement for the Secured Notes and Secured Note Warrants, dated November 13,
2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the investors thereto

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 13, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc., Zila
Merger, Inc., Professional Dental Technologies, Inc. and certain stockholders thereto

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated November 28, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc., Zila
Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Zila Technical, [nc., Zila Limited, Balyasny
Asset Management, L.P. and the investor parties thereto

Engagement Letter, dated July 14, 2006, by and between Zila, Inc. and Roth Capital Partners,
LLC

Registration Rights Agreement for the Shares, Unsecured Notes, Initial Warrants and
Additional Warrants, dated November 28, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the investor
parties thereto

Registration Rights Agreement for the Secured Notes and Secured Note Warrants, dated
November 28, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the investor parties thereto

Ofier letter between Zila, Inc, and Lawrence A. Gyenes(1)

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September May 31, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc., Zila
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 3M and 3M Innovative Properties Company

Employment Agreement between Zila, Inc. and Gary V. Klinefelter, dated as of March 30,
2007(1)

Employment Agrecmeﬁl between Zila, Inc. and Diane E. Klein, dated as of March 30, 2007(1)
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement(1)

Severance Agreement and Release of Claims, dated June 13, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc,
and Douglas D. Burkett

1
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Exhibit ) Method
Number Description of Filing

10-Am  Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 13, 2007, by and among Zila, Inc,, Visium Ac

Balanced Offshore Fund, Lid., Visinam Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund,
Ltd., Visium Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

10-An Amendment Agreement, dated August 13, 2007, by and among Zila, Inc., Visium Balanced Ac

Offshore Fund, Lid., Visium Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium
Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

10-Ao Offer Letter, accepted August 16, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc. and David R. Bethune Ad
10-Ap  Severance Agreement and Release, dated July 30, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc. and Al

Lawrence A. Gyenes .
10-Aq Amendment to Zila, Inc. 1997 Stock Award Plan Ah
10-Ar  Employment Letter with David R. Bethune dated May 9, 2008 Al

10-As  Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 3, 2008 by and among Zila, Inc., Visium Balanced Aj

Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium
Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

10-At  Second Amendment Agreement dated June 3, 2008 by and among Zita, Inc., Visium Balanced  Aj

Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visiom
Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

10-Au  Severance Agreement and Release of Claims Agreement with Frank ), Bellizzi dated June 6, Ak

2008

10-Av Third Amendment Agreement dated September 11, 2008 by and among Zila, Inc., Visium Am

(M

o N w >

T

»}

Balanced Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund,
Ltd., Visium Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant *
23 Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm *
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on page 45 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) *
31.1 Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer *
31.2 Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer *
32.1 Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer **

32.2 Sarbanes-Oxley Section 906 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer *

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed herewith

Furnished herewith

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended July 31, 1999
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended July 31, 2002
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 3, 2000

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
April 30, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed November 7, 2000

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
October 31, 2001

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 3, 2002

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
January 31, 2003

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
January 31, 2004
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Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended July 31, 2004
K Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed November 8, 2004

L  Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
January 31, 2005

Incorporated by reference to the Compaliy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended July 31, 2005

z Z

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
April 30, 2006

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current. Report on Form 8-K filed August 7, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 24, 2006

L W o

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 7, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed September 6, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current .Repon on Form 8-K filed October 4, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 17, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed November 24, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 4, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 23, 2007
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 13, 2007

N<xXg<adnm

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 6, 2007

b
B

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 14, 2007

>
o

Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
April 30, 2007

Ac Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 14, 2007
Ad Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 22, 2007

Ae Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on
Form S-3 filed April 23, 2007

Af Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 4, 2008

Ag Incorporated by reference io the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 17, 2008
Ah Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 9, 2007
Ai  Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 12, 2008

Aj Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 6, 2008

Ak Incorporated by reference to'the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 12, 2008

Al Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed October 15, 2007
Am Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed September 16, 2008
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, this

6th day of October, 2008.

ZILA, INC., a Delaware corporation

fs/  DAVID R. BETHUNE

David R. Bethune

Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Dave R, Bethune his or her attorney-in-fact, with the full power of substitution, for such person, in any

and all capacities, to sign the Zila, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K and all amendments thereto,

with all exhibits

thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorney-in-fact and agent futl power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and

necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents ahd purposes as he or she might

doorcould do in

person hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or his substitute, may do or

cause to be done by virtue hereof,

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title
/s DAVID R. BETHUNE Executive Chairman of the Board
David R. Bethune and Interim Chief Executive Officer
/s/ J. STEVEN GARRETT ' Director

I. Steven Garrett

-

/s/ LESLIE H. GREEN Director
Leslie H. Green

/s 0. B. PARRISH Director
Q. B. Parrish
/s/ GEORGE J. VUTURO Director

George J. Vuturo

fs/ DIANE E. KLEIN ‘ Vice President — Finance and Treasurer
Diane E. Klein
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Zila, Inc.
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited Zila, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Zila, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal contro! over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying ltem 9A, Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included cbtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Qur audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Zila, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reponiﬁg
as of July 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Zila, Inc. as of July 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended July 31, 2008 and our report dated October 3, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.,

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
October 3, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Zila, Inc,
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Zila, Inc. as of July 31, 2008 and 2007 and
the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each year ended July 31, 2008, 2007 (Restated) and 2006. In connection with our audits of the financial statements,
we have also audited the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index. These financial statements
and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements and schedules. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Zila, Inc. at July 31, 2008 and 2007, and the resuits of its operations and its cash flows for
each year ended July 31, 2008, 2007 (Restated) and 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Zila, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 31, 2008, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission {COSO) and our report dated October 3, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/st BDO Seidman, LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
October 3, 2008
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of July 31,

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... ... ... ... . . . . i, $ 4,462,328 % 14,859,159
" Trade receivables — net of allowances of $229,000 and $173,000 .. ....... 5,252,215 4,273,580
Inventories — met. . ... ... . e e e e 3,107,152 4,074,733
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ... ...t 1,853,373 1,646,229
Total CUrTent 888818 . . . .. .. .ttt e 14,675,068 24,853,701
Property and equipment —net .. .. ... ... . ... ., 5,317,061 6,219,436
Goodwill . . ... e 10,171,351 10,171,351
Purchased technology —met. . . .. ... ... . e 8,860,475 9,884,017
Trademarks and other intangible assets —net..............c.cvivv.... 9,533,024 11,555,041
Other asSe8 . . . . e 1,813,512 1,197,684
Total assels . . ... ... ... e $ 50,370,491 % 63,881,230
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Hlabilities:
Accounts payable. .. ... ... .. ... $ 3.843,262 $ 3,207,480
Accrued Jiabilities .. ... o e e 4059017 5,587.825
Warrant and common stock repurchase liability. .. .................... — 1,376,393
Current portion of deferred gain on sale leaseback ... .............. ... 75,659 152,976
Current portion of capital lease obligations . . ........................ 71,252 77,472
Current liabilities of discontinued operations. .. . ..................... 67,532 165,368
Total current liabilities . . . .. ... ... . e 8,116,722 10,567,514
Deferred gain on sale leaseback . . .. ... ... ... . . L L oL — 75,659
Long-term debt — net of current portion ... ....... ... ... ............. 8,974,048 7,258,569
Total liabilities . ... .......... ... .. ... ... ... . .. ... ... ........ 17,090,770 17,901,742
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 14 and 15)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — Series B, $.001 par value — 2,500,000 shares authorized,
100,000 shares issued and outstanding, liquidation preference of $650,000. . 462,500 462,500
Common stock, $.001 par value — 30,000,000 shares authorized, 9,953,818
and 8,923,762 shares issued and outstanding . . . ... .......... .. ... .. 69,677 62,466
Additional paid-in capital . . ... ... . .. L e e 125,901,682 123,436,957
Accumulated deficit . . ... ... ... (92,471,235 (76,054,251)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . . . .......................... (131,832) (127,118)
Treasury stock, at cost {31,202 and 164,464 common shares). . ... ....., .. {551,071) (1,801,066)
Total shareholders’ equity ............ . ... .. ... ... .. . ... . ... 33,279,721 45,979,488
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ..................... $ 50,370,491 $ 63,881,230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NELTEVENUES . . ottt e et e et ittt mae e na e
Costof products sold. .. ... ooy

Grossprofit. .. ... ...
QOperating costs and expenses:

Marketing and selling . .......... ... ... ..t
General and administrative. .. .. ... .. ..o
Research and development . . . .......... .. ... ...

Depreciation and amortization ... ........ ... ... ..
Loss from operations . .. .. .. ... vt

Other income (expense):

Interest inCOMe . . ... . ... . i
Interest XPense. . ... ..ottt
Derivative income (expense)

Other income (EXPense) . . ... .. ov it vn o
Total other income (expense) . . ............oeunn..

[.oss from continuing operations before income taxes. . ... ..
Income tax benefit (expense) . ........ .. .t

Loss from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations . . . ..................

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations
Income tax eXpense . ... ... .. oo

Total income (loss) from discontinued operations ........

Net loss
Preferred stock dividends. . .. ... .. .. ... L.,

Net loss attributable to common shareholders . . ...........

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share:
Loss from continuing operations. . ............... .. ..

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

Net loss attributable to common shareholders .. .........

Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic and
diluted. ... ..

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
Netloss. o0 e e
Foreign currency translation adjustment ... ............

Comprehensive loss . .. .. ... oo

ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

For the Years Ended July 31,

2007
Restated
2008 {Note 1} 2006

$ 45,060,801  $ 28,800,840 § 2,821,548

17,362,666 11,856,957 1,924,857

27,698,135 16,943,883 896,691
21,082,252 14,411,711 5,594,879
13,280,246 15,140,696 10,466,919

2,424,457 7,482,374 7,158,034

4,017,375 2,921,045 1,415,075
(13,106,195  (23,011,943) (23,738,216)

230,715 550,035 270,638
(3,234,502) (7,385,539) (1,920,428)
{23,600) 1,058,873 (136,722)
181 15,489 {517,895
(3,027,206) (5,761,142) (2,304,407)
(16,133,401)  (28,773,085)  (26.042,623)
9,381 9,667,626 (3,600)
(16,124,020  (19,105,459)  (26,046,223)
(253,964) {510,625) (2,671,246)
— 16,185,058 (628.862)

— (9,733.067) —
(253,964) 5,941,366 (3,300,108)
(16,377,984) (13,164,093)  (29,346,331)

39,000 39,000 39,000
$(16,416,984)  $¢13,203,093) $(29,385,331)
$ (1.80) § 237 § (3.99)
{0.02) 0.73 (0.50)
$ (1.82) % (1.64) $ (4.50)

*8,956,475 8,053,905 6,528,950
$(16,377,.984)  $(13,164,093)  $(29,346,331)
(4,714) {44,440) (18,754)
$(16,382,698) $(13,208,533)  $(29,365,085)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance. July 31, 2005
Preferred stock dividends. . . .
Issuance of common stock
under employee stock
purchase plan. . .. ... ...
Exercise of common stock
options and warrants . . . . .
Stock-based compensation
expense
Foreign currency translation . .
Netloss...............

Balance, July 31, 2006
Cumulative-effect

adjusunent of adopting

FSP No. EITF 00-19-2. . ..
Preferred stock dividends. . . .
Issuance of common stock . ., .
Issuance of common stock

purchase warrants
Conversion of unsecured

Beneficial conversion feature
of secured debt, . . ... ...
Isswance of shares in
settiement of Nability , . . . .
Issuance of common stock
under employee stock
purchase plan. . .. .. ...,
Exercise of common stock
options and warrants . . . . .
Stock-based compensation
expense
Common shares withheld for
income taxes . ... ... ...
Accrued repurchase of
cormamen shares and
warrants
Foreign currency translation . .
Netloss...............

Balance, July 31, 2007
Preferred stock dividends . . . |
Issuance of common stock
under employee stock
purchase plan. . ... .. ...
Exercise of common stock
options and warrants . . . . .
Stock-based compensation
expense
Common shares withheld for
income taxes .. ........
Shares issued for payment of
interest
Shares issued for the Second
Amendment Agreement, net
of warrants returned
Retirement of treasury stock . .
Foreign currency translation . .
Net 1oss

Balance, July 31, 2008

ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Oither Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury  Shareholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Stock Equity
100,000 $462,500 6,552,007 $45.864 § 84,372,257 $(32,543,676) $ (63,924) $ (551,071)$ 51,721,950
— — — — — (39,000} — — (39,000
— — 1,130 50 153,874 — - — 153,924
— — 13,376 94 171,850 - — — 171,944
— — -— — 607,350 — — — 607,350
— —_ — — — — (18,754 — (18.754)
— — — — — (29.346.331) — - (29.346,331)
100,000 462,500 6,572,513 46,008 85305331 (61,929,007 (82,678) (551,071) 23,251,083
— — — — 2,460,489 (922,151) — — 1,538,338
— — — —-— — {39,000) - — (35,000)
— — 1,300,000 9,100 7.611,781 — — — 7,620,881
— — —_ — 16,888,348 —_ — — 16,888,348
— — 985714 6,900 4,445,448 _ — — 4452348
—_ — — —_— 4,397,050 — — -— 4,397,050
— — 41,390 290 659,710 — — — 660,000
— — 1,529 10 16,893 — — — 16,903
— - 4,286 30 42,645 —_ — — 42,675
— — 20,238 141 1,769,563 —_ —_ — 1,769,704
— — (1.908) (13) (33,903) —_— — — (33,916)
— — —_ — (126.398) — — 1,249,995y (1,376,393)
— — — — — — (44.340) — (44,440)
-— — — — — (13,164,093) — —  (13,164,093)
100,000 462,500 8,923,762 62466 123436957 (76,054.251) (127,118)  (1.801.066) 45979488
— — — — — (39,000 — — (39.000)
— — 9,061 63 97,894 — — —_ 97,957
— — 1,429 10 11,190 — —_ — 11,200
— — 201466 1411 2,024,422 _ — — 2,025,833
— —  (63,150) (442) (229471} — - — (229,913)
— — 353570 2435 728,191 — — — 730,666
— — 660,942 4,627 1,081,561 — — - 1,086,188
— — (133,262) (933) (1,249,062) — — 1,249,995 —
—_ — — — — — 4.714) — 4,714)
— — — — — (16,377.984) —_ — (16,377,984)
$(131,832) $ (551,071)% 33,279,721 |

100,000 $462,500 9,953,818 $69.677 $125,901.682 $(92,471,235)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ...................
Non-cash amortization of financing costs
Non-cash amortization of debt discounts. ............
Non-cashinterest . ... ... ...t ireean..
Non-cash derivative (income) expense. . .............
Loss (gain) from disposition of discontinued operations. .
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense. .. .......
Other non-cash items —net .. ....................

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (excluding the
effect of the Pro-Dentec acquisition):

Trade receivables . . . ... ... ... i
INVentOresS . . . . . oot e
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . ................
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. . ....... ...,

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment ... ..............
Additions to intangible assets. . ............ ... ...
Proceeds from sale of assels. . . ...... .. ... . ... ...
Restricted cash deposited to collateralize letter of credit . . .
Proceeds from disposition of discontinued operations
Acquisition of Pro-Dentec

Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock. .. ...........
Short-term borrowings (repayments) —mnet.............
Proceeds from convertible notes payable. . . ............
Proceeds from secured term loan
Financing costs .. ... ... . i
Principal payments on long-term debt. .. ..............
Payment of obligation to repurchase common stock and

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents —end of year. . . .............

For the Years Ended July 31,

2008

2007

2006

$(16,377,984)  $(13,164,093)  $(29,346,331)

4,479,327 3,419,630 3,036,211
476,854 2,512,724 487,556
1,784,929 3,624,602 393,219
730,666 201,940 283,981
23,600 (1,058,873) 136,722

—  (i6,185,058) 628,862
2,055,485 1,774,339 630,508
359,795 203,349 (166,599)
(978.,635) 901,657 7,498,718
967,581 (61,686)  (3,920,543)
60,768 495,792 (297,723)
(1,214,703) 2,368,408 (173,173)
(7.632,317)  (14,967,269)  (20,808,592)
(668,417) (969,228)  (1,017,726)
(411,172) (498,954)  (1,115,497)
24,639 — 8,289

— 3,610,950 (3,083,167)

— 44,311,249 641,750
—  (34,058,808) (723,826)
(1,054,950) 12,395,209 (5,290,177)
79,505 15,980,323 302,710
— (30,347) {123,988)

— 24,075,000 —

— — 20,000,000

—_ (2,551,339)  (2.285,237)
(350,076)  (23,961,608) (735,043)
(1,399,993) — —
(39,000) (39,000) (39,000)
(1,709,564) 13,473,029 17,119,442
(10,396,831) 10,900,969 (8,979,327)
14,859,159 3,958,190 12,937,517
$ 4462328 $14,859,159 $ 3,958,190

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Nature of Business Activities, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business Activities and Basis of Presentation

Zila, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Zila", the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our”), a Delaware corporation, is a
diagnostic company dedicated to the prevention, detection and treatment of oral cancer and periodontal disease.
During fiscal 2007, we successfully completed a multi-step strategic redirection, which included divesting non-core
businesses and acquiring the national dental products company, Professional Dental Technologies, Inc. (“Pro-
Dentec™} in November 2006.

We manufacture and market ViziLite® Plus with TBlue® (“ViziLite® Pius™), our flagship product for the early
detection of oral abnormalities that could lead to cancer. ViziLite® Plus is an adjunctive medical device cleared by
the FDA for use in a population at increased risk for oral cancer. In addition, Zila designs, manufactures and markets
a suite of proprietary products sold exclusively and directly to dental professionals for periodontal disease,
including the Rotadent® Professional Powered Brush, the Pro-Select Platinum® ultrasonic scaler and a portfolio of
oral pharmaceutical products for both in-office and home-care use. Qur products are marketed and sold in the
United States and Canada primarily through our direct field sales force and telemarketing organization. Qur
products are marketed and sold in other international markets through the sales forces of third party distributors, Qur
marketing programs reach most U.S. dental offices and include continuing education seminars for dentists and their
staffs. We are certified by the American Dental Association and the Academy of General Dentistry to provide
continuing education seminars. In October 2006, we divested our Nutraceuticals business unit and in May 2007 we
divested our Peridex® brand of prescription periodontal rinse and as a result, these operations are presented as
discontinued for all periods presented.

Prior to the acquisition of Pro-Dentec and disposals of our Nutraceuticals business unit and our Peridex® brand
of prescription periodontal rinse described above and elsewhere herein, our business was organized into the
following business units: Nutraceuticals, Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“generally accepted accounting principles” or “GAAP”). With the integration of the operations
of Pro-Dentec with our former Zila Pharmaceuticals business unit and the re-alignment of our Zila Biotechnology
business unit to serve as our research and development division, we have organized_ourselves as one operating
segment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information™ (“SFAS 1317,

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period financial statement amounts to conform to the current
presentation.

On September 12, 2008, our shareholders approved a one for seven reverse split of our common stock. As a
result of the reverse split, each holder of seven outstanding shares of common stock received one share of common
stock. Fractional shares resulting from this reverse split have been issued to our shareholders as applicable and
accordingly, we did not make any cash payments in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares. The reverse split has
been retroactively applied to all applicable information to the earliest period presented.

Ligquidity

Cur liquidity needs have typically arisen from the funding of our research and development program and the
launch of our new products, such as ViziLite® Plus, working capital and debt service requirements, and strategic
initiatives. In the past, we have met these cash requirements through our cash and cash equivalents, working capital
management, the sale of non-core assets, and proceeds from certain private placements of our securities. We have
sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations as we changed our strategic direction to focus on
growth and development of ViziLite® Plus and our pericdontal product lines.
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

To reduce operating losses, we have taken steps to reduce costs through discontinuing research and devel-
opment projects and have implemented profit enhancement initiatives during the third and fourth quarter of fiscal
2008. As a result of these steps, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 we achieved positive cash flow from
operations and compliance with the Defined EBITDA covenant contained in our Second Amended and Restated
Secured Notes, which is discussed in further detail elsewhere herein.

The profit enhancement initiatives undertaken in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2008 included, among
other things: (i) completing the hiring of the targeted level of sales representatives and completing their training
across the full-portfolio of our products, (i) improving revenues and gross profit through the implementation of
selective price increases and implementing initiatives to reduce our cost of goods, (iii) reducing headcount in our
non-selling workforce, temporarily reducing the salaries of our management employees and reducing certain other
employee benefits and (iv) reducing, deferring or eliminating non-critical programs across the organization while
maintaining key selling initiatives. In addition to these profit enhancement initiatives, we undertook actions to
improve our working capital position by July 31, 2008 through the reduction of the number of days our sales are
outstanding and through the reduction of inventory levels. As a result of these actions, our working capital improved
by $0.6 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

The initiatives discussed above proved to be effective in our meeting the Defined EBITDA covenant contained
in our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, However, we do not
expect some of these initiatives, such as reducing or deferring salaries, benefits and other operating costs, to be
sustainable into future periods. Additionally, since the time of our acquisition of Pro-Dentec in November 2006, we
have experienced higher than expected tumover in our sales force and have continued to experience turnover
throughout fiscal 2008. We would expect these factors, coupled with the recent economic downturn in the
United States and its impact on discretionary spending for our products, to cause near term future operating results
to be less favorable than our financial results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and those previously anticipated
for subsequent periods in the near-term. However, we do expect many of the strategic actions discussed above, as
well as opportunities we continue to identify, to sustain revenue and to likely have a favorable impact on our future
results of operations. )

Strategic business opportunities to grow our business will require additional funding. The Second Amended
and Restated Secured Notes provide us with the opportunity to obtain a working capital line of credit secured by our
inventory and accounts receivable. However, we have been unable to obtain the approval of the majority holder of
the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes even though the note agreements provide that such approval is
“not to be unreasonable withheld.” Recently we retained a financial advisor to assist us in our continuing efforts to
raise capital by exploring capital restructuring opportunities. However, in today’s capital markets, and without the
cooperation of the majority holder of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes, there can be no assurance
that we will be successful in obtaining sufficient replacement financing or that any refinancing will be obtainable on
terms that are favorable to us before the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes become due on July 31,
2010,

Key elements to the success of our operating plans for fiscal 2008 are sustaining our product line revenues
during the economic downturn in the United States and executing our cost reduction measures. Based on our
operating plans, we believe that our cash and cash equivalents along with cash flows generated from operations and
working capital management will allow us to fund our operations over the next 12 months.

Restatement

During fiscal 2008 we determined that the tax basis for the Nutraceuticals discontinued operations was
$3.8 million lower than estimated. Therefore, for fiscal 2007, an adjustment of approximately $3.9 million was
made to increase the tax expense for discontinued operations. A corresponding adjustment of $3.9 million was made
to increase the income tax benefit of continuing operations to reflect the utilization of net operation loss
carryforwards to offset the income tax expense on the taxable gains on the disposition of the Nutraceuticals
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

business unit. The effects of this adjustment on fiscal 2007 loss from continuing operations and income from
discontinued operations, as well as the associated effect on loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations is as follows:

Year Ended July 31, 2007

As Originally As
Reported Adjusted

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes .. ................. (28,773,085)  (28,773,085)
Income tax benefit (expense) .. ...... ... ... . ... e 5,790,964 9,667,626
Loss from continuing operations . . . ... ..., ittt e (22,982,121)  (19,105,459)
Loss from discontinued operations . ...............iii it {510,625) (510,625)
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations. . . ................... 16,185,058 16,185,058
[NCOME LAX BXPBISE . . .t ittt e e et et (5,856,405) (9,733,067)

Total income (loss) from discontinued operations. .. .................. 9,818,028 5,941,366
[ O O (13,164,093}  (13,164,093)
Preferred stock dividends . . ... ... oot e e 39,000 39,000
Net loss attributable to common shareholders . ............ ... ... ....... $(13,203,003)  $(13,203,093)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share:

Loss from continuing operations . ... ............ .. i, ... 3 (2.85) § 2.37)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . .............-- ... .... 1.21 0.73

Net loss attributable to common shareholders . ... ................... $ (1.64) $ (1.64)
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic and diluted . ........ 8,053,905 8,053,905

This adjustment to fiscal 2007 income tax expense for discontinued operations and income tax benefit for
continuing operations had no impact on net loss atiributable to common shareholders and no impact on our financial
position or cash flows.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation — As of July 31, 2008, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Zila, Inc. and its wholly-owned 'subsidiz_lries, Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Professional Dental Technologies, Inc.,
Zila Biotechnology, Inc., Zila Limited., Zila Technical, Inc. and Ryker Dental of Kentucky (inactive). All
significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The acquisitions and dispo-
sitions discussed above and elsewhere in these statements have been included in these consolidated financial
statements for the periods during which Zila owned the acquired or disposed operations.

Use of Estimates and Risks and Uncertainties — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles necessarily requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. It is reasonably
possible that actual results could differ materially from those estimates based upon future events, which could
include, among other risks, changes in the regulations governing the manner in which we sell our products, changes
in the health care environment and reliance on contract manufacturing services. Significant estimates include:
(1) useful lives of intangibles; (ii) impairment analyses; (iii) depreciable lives of assets; (iv) income tax valuation
allowances; (v) contingency and litigation reserves; (vi} inventory valuation; (vii) allowances for accounts
receivable, cash discounts, sales incentives and sales returns; and (viii) valuation assumptions for share-based
payments.

F-10




| ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Business Concentrations — We extend credit on a non-collateralized basis primarily to dental professionals
located throughout the world, but principally in the United States and Canada. We perform periodic credit
evaluations of our customer’s financial condition in our decision to provide credit terms. We estimate the level of
accounts receivable which will ultimately not be paid. Historically, we have not experienced significant credit
losses. Our credit losses are affected by general economic conditions of the dental and health industries, among
other factors.

Net revenues for fiscal 2008 and 2007 consisted primarily of sales of our suite of periodontal products (70%
and 77%, respectively) and ViziLite® Plus (30% and 23%, respectively). Net revenues during fiscal 2006 consisted
primarily of ViziLite® Plus sales.

Our cash and cash equivalents are maintained with financial institutions with high credit standings. However,
our balances at these financial institutions regularly exceed federally insured limits.

Raw materials essential to our business are generally readily available. However, certain raw materials and
components used in the manufacture of pharmaceutical products are available from timited sources, and in some
cases, a single source. Any curtailment in the availability of such raw materials could be accompanied by
production delays, and in the case of products, for which only one raw material supplier exists, could result in a
material loss of sales. In addition, because raw material sources for pharmaceutical products must generally be
approved by regulatory authorities, changes in raw material suppliers could result in production delays, higher raw
material costs and loss of sales and customers. Production delays may also result from a lack of secondary suppliers.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from sales of products is recognized when earned; that is, when the risks and
rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer upon delivery to the designated carrier. Cash discounts, sales
incentives and returns are estimated and recognized at the time of sale based on historical experience and current
customer commitments. Revenue is reported net of discounts and returns and excludes sales taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments purchased with remaining
maturities of three months or less. As more fully described elsewhere herein, under our borrowing arrangements we
are required 1o maintain cash and cash equivalents at certain defined levels.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Returns — We provide for an allowance for doubtful accounts
based on historical experience and a review of our specific accounts receivable. Receivables are presented net of
allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns,

Inventories — Inventories consist of finished goods, work-in-process and raw materials and are staled at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. We establish reserves for inventory to reflect situations in which
the cost of the inventory is not expected to be recovered. In evaluating whether inventory is stated at the lower of
cost or market, we consider such factors as the amount of inventory on hand, estimated time required to sell such
inventory, remaining shelf life and current and expected market conditions. We record provisions for inventory
obsolescence as part of cost of products sold. Inventories are presented net of allowances relating to the above
provisions,

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-
line method over their respective estimated useful lives, ranging from 3 to 40 years. Leasehold improvements and
capital leased assets are depreciated over the lease term or the estimated useful life, whichever is shorter.

Listed below are the ranges of useful lives by property and equipment category:

Buildings . . ... .ot e e e 40 years
Building improvements. . . ... ... ... e 15 years
Leasehold improvements . ... ... ... ... i 5 —7 years
Furniture and equipment. . . ... ... .. L e 3 — 10 years
Production, laboratory and warehouse equipment . ........... .. ... ... ... ... 7 — 10 years
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ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Long-Lived Assets — We review the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used and long-lived
assets to be disposed of, including intangibles with estimated vseful lives, under the provisions of SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”) and its related interpretations,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
An evaluation of recoverability is performed using such information as the estimated future undiscounted cash
flows associated with the asset compared to the asset’s carrying value, the work of specialists and other available
information to determine if impairment exists. An impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the impaired asset and is recognized as a charge against current operations. If
impairment exists, the remaining amortization period for the impaired asset would be reassessed and revised if
necessary.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — As more fully described elsewhere herein, our intangible assets
consist primarily of goodwill, purchased technology rights, licensing costs, covenants not to compete, patents and
trademarks. These assets are accounted for under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” (“SFAS 1427),

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of a business over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired. Goodwill is an indefinite lived asset and is not amortized. Rather, it is assessed at least annually for
impairment using a fair value approach. Generally, other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, which range from two to seventeen years, The trademarks acquired as part of our
acquisition of Pro-Dentec in fiscal 2007 were determined to have indefinite useful lives and accordingly are not
subject to amortization.

Our policy is to review the carrying amounts of goodwill and certain intangible assets with indefinite lives at
least annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may be impaired. We completed our fiscal 2008 and 2007 assessments in our fourth guarter of
each applicable year, and determined that there was no impairment.

As noted above, we review the carrying amounts of other intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Such events or circumstances
might include a significant decline in market share, a significant decline in profits, rapid changes in technology,
significant litigation or other items. In evaluating the recoverability of other intangible assets, we compare the
carrying amounts of such assets with their estimated undiscounted future operating cash flows. This evaluation
utilizes multiple analyses of our historical and forecasted operating results. In the event impairment exists, an
impairment charge would be determined by comparing the carrying amounts of the asset to their applicable
estimated {uture cash flows, discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. In addition, the remaining amortization period for the
impaired asset would be reassessed and revised if necessary.

Deferred Financing Costs — Deferred financing costs are amortized over the life of the related debt on a
straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method. If debt is retired early, the unamortized
deferred financing costs are expensed in the period the debt is retired to other expense. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007,
deferred financing costs-net were $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively, and are included in other assets on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Share-Based Payments — We account for share-based compensation plans using the fair value method
established by SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R™), which we adopted effective
August 1, 2003, as more fully described elsewhere herein. We apply the Black-Scholes option-pricing model o
determine the fair value of stock options on the date of grant, and we apply judgment in estimating key assumptions
that are important elements in the model and in expensing stock options, such as the expected stock-price volatility,
expected stock option life and expected forfeiture rates. Qur estimates of these important assumptions are based on
historical data and judgment regarding market trends and factors. If actual results are not consistent with our
assumptions and judgments used in estimating these factors, we may be required to record additional stock-based
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compensation expense or income tax expense, which could be material to our results of operations. The costs related
to share-based payment arrangements are recorded in the same financial statement caption as the employee’s cash
compensation.

Accrued Warranty Costs — We estimate the amount that wilt be required for us to meet future warranty
obligations for products sold. This estimate is based primarily on our past experience of costs associated with, and
timing of, servicing products under warranty obligations.

Derivative Warrant Liability and Debt Discount Amortization — We account for our warrant arrangements in
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments
Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 00-197), as well as related interpretations of
these standards. We evaluate whether these arrangements should be accounted for as equity or a derivative liability
and value these arrangements at fair value based on available market data using a Black-Scholes valuation model.
For warrant arrangements determined to be a derivative liability, any gains or losses resulting from the changes in
fair value of the warrant liability from period to period are included as non-cash credits or charges to earnings.

We account for financing transactions that include detachable warrants and/or beneficial conversion features in
accordance with EITF 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or
Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios” (“EITF 98-5") and EITF 00-27, “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to
Certain Convertible Instruments” (“EITF 00-27"). In accordance with these standards, the relative fair value of
detachable warrants issued in connection with convertible debt, as well as any beneficial conversion feature inherent
to the convertible debt that is not bifurcated and accounted for separately from the convertible debt, is treated as a
discount to the convertible debt. This discount is amortized over the period from the date of issuance to the date the
debt is due. In general, the beneficial conversion feature is measured by comparing the effective conversion price,
after considering any detachable instruments included in the financing transaction (such as detachable warrants), to
the fair value of the common shares to be received upon conversion.

Research and Development — Costs associated with research and development programs for new products and
significant product improvements are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs totaled approximately
$2.4 million, $7.5 million and $7.2 million for the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Advertising — We advertise primarily through print media. Our policy is to expense advertising costs,
including production costs, as incurred. Advertising expense was approximately $0.7 million, $0.7 million and
$1.0 million for the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included in marketing and selling
eXpenses.

Shipping Costs — Costs of shipping products to customers are included in cost of products sold.

Income Taxes — We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes.” Accordingly, deferred income taxes have been provided to show the effect of temporary differences between
the recognition of revenue and expenses for financial and income tax reporting purposes and between the tax basis
of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. In assessing the realizability of
deferred tax assets, management assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future
taxable income, and to the extent that recovery is not likely or there is insufficient operating history, a valuation
allowance is established. We adjust the valuation allowance in the period management determines it is more likely
than not that deferred tax assets wilt or will not be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share — Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing
net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year before giving effect to stock options, stock warrants and other convertible securities
outstanding, which are considered to be dilutive common stock equivalents, Diluted net income (loss) per common
share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average number
of common and potentially dilutive shares outstanding during the year after giving effect to convertible preferred
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stock, convertible debt, stock options and warrants. Contingently issuable shares are included in the computation of
basic earnings (loss) per share when issuance of the shares is no longer contingent. Due to the losses from
continuing operations for the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, basic and diluted loss per common share
were the same, as the effect of potentially dilutive securities would have been antidilutive.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Net income (loss) and other gains and losses affecting shareholders’ equity
that, under GAAP are excluded from net income (loss), are included in comprehenswe income. Such items relate 1o
foreign currency translation gains and losses.

Financial Instruments — The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair values due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. We do not believe it is currently practicable to estimate the fair value of the Second Amended
and Restated Secured Notes as there is no active market for such notes and there are a limited number of investors in
the notes. The carrying amount of other borrowings is estimated to approximate fair value as the actual interest rate
is consistent with the rate estimated to be currently available for borrowings of similar term and remaining maturity,

Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to credit risk, consist principally of trade receivables. In the
normal course of business, we provide credit primarily to dental professionals and pharmaceutical wholesalers.
Ongoing credit evaluations are performed of customers to determine an appropriate allowance for credit losses.

Estimates of fair value are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and significant matters of judgment.
Therefore, results cannot be determined with precision and cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent
market values and may not be realized in actual sale or settlement of the instruments. There may be inherent
weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changes in the underlying assumptions could significantly affect the
results.

Foreign Currency Translation and Foreign Currency Transactions — Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar.
However, the functional currency of all of our foreign subsidiaries is their local currency. Accordingly, for the
periods presented, assets and liabilities have been translated using exchange rates at year-end, while income and
expense for the periods have been translated using a weighted-average exchange rate for the period. The resulting
translation adjustments have been record in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a component of
shareholders’ equity, and will be included in net earnings only upon the sale or liquidation of the underlying foreign
investrnent, neither of which is contemplated at this time. Transaction gains and losses have been de minimis for all
periods presented. -

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements and Adopted Accounting

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 (“FIN 48”), which
we have adopted effective August 1, 2007. FIN 48 applies to all ““tax positions” accounted for under SFAS No. 109.
FIN 48 refers to “tax positions™ as positions taken in a previously filed tax return or positions expected to be taken in
a future tax return, which are reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities reported in
the financial statements. FIN 48 further clarifies a tax position to include,‘ but not be limited to, the following:

» an allocation or a shift of income between taxing jurisdictions;
= the characterization of income or a decision to exclude reporting taxable income in a tax return; or
* a decision to classify a transaction, entity or other position in a tax return as tax exempt.

FIN 48 clarifies that a tax benefit may be reflected in the financial statements only if it is “more likely than not”
that a company will be able to sustain the tax position, based on its technical merits. If a tax benefit meets this
criterion, it should be measured and recognized based on the largest amount of benefit that is cumulatively greater
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than 50% likely to be realized. This is a change from previous practice, whereby companies may have recognized a
tax benefit only if it was probable a tax position would be sustained.

FIN 48 also requires that we make qualitative and quantitative disclosures, including a discussion of
reasonably possible changes that might occur in unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months, a description
of open tax years by major jurisdictions, and a roll-forward of all unrecognized tax benefits, presented as a
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the unrecognized tax benefits on an aggregated basis.

We are potentially subject to tax audits in the United States and Canada. Tax audits by their very nature are
often complex and can require several years to complete. We are potentially subject to United States federal and
state tax examinations for the tax years ended July 31, 1995 through July 31, 2008. All tax loss years through
July 31, 2008 remain open for federal, state and foreign operations. Zila’s responsibility for Canadian and Canadian
Provincial income taxes arose through the acquisition of Pro-Dentec. As a condition of the acquisition of
Pro-Dentec, the merger agreement related thereto required that the selling sharcholders of Pro-Dentec indemnify
Zila for any identified tax liabilities for periods prior to the acquisition. Zila is not indemnified for Canadian and
Canadian Provincial tax examinations that may arise for the tax year ended July 31, 2007 and thereafter.

The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on our financial statements or disclosures. As of
August 1, 2007 and July 31, 2008, we did not recognize any assets or liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits
relative to uncertain tax positions nor do we anticipate any significant unrecognized tax benefits will be recorded
during the next 12 months, Any interest or penalties resulting from examinations will be recognized as a component
of the income tax provision. However, since there are no unrecognized tax benefits as a result of tax positions taken,
there are no accrued interest and penalties.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, expands disclosures about fair value
measurements and applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, the FASB anticipates that for some entities,
the application of SFAS 157 will change current practice. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which for us will be our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2008.
However, in February 2008, the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for certain non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (ie., at least annually). We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material
effect on our financial position or resulis of operations.

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration Payment Arrange-
ments” (“FSP EITF 00-19-2"), which addresses accounting for registration payment arrangements. FSP
EITF 00-19-2 specifies that the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer consideration
under a registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a provision of a
financial instrument or other agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with
SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.” FSP EITF 00-19-2 further clarifies that a financial instrument subject
to a registration payment arrangement should be accounted for in accordance with other applicable generally
accepted accounting principles without regard to the contingent obligation to transfer consideration pursuant to the
registration payment. FSP EITF 00-19-2 was effective immediately for registration payment atrangements and the
financial instruments subject to those arrangements that were entered into or modified subsequent to December 21,
2006. For registration payment arrangements and related financial instruments entered into prior to December 21,
2006, FSP EITF 00-19-2 was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Companies are required to report transition through a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of the first interim period for the
fiscal year in which FSP EITF 00-19-2 is adopted.
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As described more fully in these financial statements and accompanying notes, in March 2006, we entered into
a debt agreement that required the issuance of a warrant to purchase 171,429 shares of our common stock. As
required under this debt agreement, we registered the common shares underlying the warrant with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC™) and must maintain such registration over the term of the warrant. At the time of
issuance, the obligation created by our agreement to register and maintain registration of the underlying common
shares was recorded as a warrant liability measured at fair value. We determined the fair value of the warrant based
on available market data using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The fair value of the warrant was recorded as a
debt discount amortizable as interest expense over the life of the debt using the effective interest method. Any gains
or losses resulting from the changes in fair value of the warrant liability from period to period were included as non-
cash credits or charges to earnings.

As permitted under FSP EITF 00-19-2, we elected early adoption as of the beginning of our fiscal quarter
beginning November 1, 2006. At such time, we recorded the effect of applying FSP EITF 00-19-2 1o this derivative
liability for the warrant using the cumulative-effect transition method, which resulted in a decrease in derivative
liability of approximately $1.5 million and an increase to the carrying amount of additional paid-in capital of

‘approximately $2.5 million, representing the original value assigned to these warrants with an offsetting cumu-

lative-effect entry to accumulated deficit of approximately $0.9 million, as set forth in our Consolidated Statements
of Sharcholders’ Equity. The cumulative adjustment is not recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and prior periods are not adjusted.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equiry Securities” (“SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain items at fair value. The objective of this standard is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with
the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 permits all entities to choose
to measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates. Entities will report unrealized gains and losses on
items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value
option: () may be applied instrument by instrument, with a few exceptions, such as investments accounted for by
the equity methoed; (ii) is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs); and (iii) is applied only to entire
instruments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal
year that begins after November 15, 2007, which for us would be our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2008. We do
not expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141R™),
SFAS 141R establishes the principles and requirements for how an acquirer: (i) recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree; (ii) recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in a business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase; and (iii) determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of a business combination. Additionally, under SFAS 141R transaction related costs
must be expensed as incurred, rather than accounted for as part of the purchase price of an acquisition. SFAS 141R is
to be applied prospectively to business combinations consummated on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting pertod on or after December 15, 2008, which for us would be our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2009.
Early adoption is prohibited. Following its effective date, we will apply the provisions of SFAS 141R to future
acquisitions, if any.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS 1607). SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting
standards that require (i) noncontrolling interests to be reported as a component of equity, (ii) changes in a parent’s
ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling interest to be accounted for as equity transactions and
(1ii) any retained noncontrolling equity investment upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary to be initially measured
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at fair value. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or
after December 15, 2008, which for us would be our fiscal quarter beginning February 1, 2009. Early adoption is
prohibited. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have a material effect on our financial position or results
of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" (*SFAS 1617), which establishes, among other things, the
disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosures
about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of, and gains
and losses on, derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative
agreements. SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal periods and interim periods beginning after November 13, 2008, which
for us would be our third fiscal quarter of our fiscal year 2009, which would be the quarterly period ending April 30,
2009. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 161 will have on our financial statement disclosures.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. SFAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful
Life of Intangible Assets” (“FSP SFAS 142-3"). FSP SFAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in
developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset
under SFAS 142, The intent of FSP SFAS 142-3 is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of
the asset under SFAS 141R and other applicable accounting literature. FSP SFAS 142-3 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and must be applied prospectively to
intangible assets acquired after the effective date. We are currently evaluating the impact FSP SFAS 142-3 will have
on our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP Accounting Principles Board No. 14-1 “Accounting for Convertible Debt
Instruments That May Be Settied in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Seitlement)” (“FSPAPB 14-17),
FSPAPB 14-1 requires the issuer of certain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash (or other assets)
on conversion (including partial cash settlement) to separately account for the liability and equity components of the
instrument in a manner that reflects the issuer’s non-convertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is
recognized in subsequent periods. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is prohibited. We
are currently evaluating the impact FSP APB 14-1 will have on our financial position or results of operations.

2. Acquisition

On November 28, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Pro-Dentec, a privately-held, professional dental
products company headquartered in Batesville, Arkansas, for approximately $35.6 million in cash. Through its
national sales and marketing organization, Pro-Dentec offers, directly to dental professionals, a small suite of
proprietary dental products that complement our oral cancer screening products. Goodwill recognized in the
acquisition of Pro-Dentec relates primarily to the acquisition of an assembled workforce, including 2 management
team, with a proven track record of success in marketing to dental offices through a national sales force and an
established seminar program. Goodwill generated from the Pro-Dentec acquisition will not be deductible for
income tax purposes. The financial results of the Pro-Dentec acquired operations are included in these financial
statements as of November 28, 2006, the date of acquisition.
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The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as follows (in thousands):

Assets acquired:

Cashand cashequivalents . . .. ....... ... ... .. ... ... ..., N
Accounts receivable .. ... ... . L e e
Ve OTIES . . . .. e e e e e e
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .............. .. iitiini .,
Property and equipment. . . . .. .. ... e e e

Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Purchased technology — proprietary know-how . .. ... . ... .. it
Covenants nOt [0 COMPELE . . . .. ..ttt e ettt e et e e e e e e e e
Customer lists and relationships. . .. ... .. ... ... . . L e e

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:

Trademarks . . . ..o e e e e e e e
GoodWill .. e e e e e
e ASSEES . . ottt e e e

Total assets acquired. . . ... .. e e e e e

Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable . . ... L. e e e
Accrued Liabilities . . . . ... .. e e
Notespayable . . ..................... e e

Total ltabilities assumed . . . . .. ... e e e

Net assets acquired . . . .. .. oL e e e

1,018
684
1,158

2,860
$35.636

The above purchase price allocation includes cash deposits and acquisition related costs of approximately
$0.7 million that were paid or deposited prior to fiscal 2007 and were capitalized as part of the cost of the

acquisition.

and ten years for purchased technology, covenants not to compete and customer lists and relationships, respectively.
The acquired customer lists and relationships will be amortized to a residual value of approximately $0.4 million.

The acquired trademarks were determined to have indefinite useful lives.

The following pro forma unaudited condensed statement of operations data shows the results of our operations
for the years ended July 31, 2007 and 2006 as if the Pro-Dentec acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the

respective period (in thousands except share amounts):

|
‘ Acquired intangible assets subject to amortization are to be amortized over periods of fifteen years, two years
|
|
|

2006

2007
Nt FBVEIIUES . . . . ..ttt it e e e $ 40,419
Loss from continuing Operations . . . .. ... . ... ... ...ttt (19,314)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share from continuing operations ... ........ (2.19)

5 38,288

(24,224)
(2.75)

Pro forma data may not be indicative of the results that would have been obtained had the acquisition occurred
at the beginning of the periods presented, nor does it intend to be a projection of future results. The above pro forma
data is provided for the years ended July 31, 2007 and 2006 because the completion of the acquisition of Pro-Dentec
did not occur until November 28, 2006. No pro forma disclosure has been presented for the year ended July 31, 2008

as the results of Pro-Dentec have been consolidated for all periods subsequent to November 2006.
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3. Dispositions

As part of our strategy to focus our business operations on the development and commercialization of products
with the highest growth potential, we divested Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc. and certain components of our former
Pharmaceuticals business unit, Each of the disposals discussed below meets the definition of a “component of an
entity” and has been accounted for as a discontinued operation under SFAS 144. The results of operations for these
businesses have accordingly been classified as discontinued operations in all periods presented.

Nutraceuticals Disposition

On August 13, 2006, we entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell Zila Nutraceuticals, Inc., our former
Nutraceuticals business unit, to NBTY, Inc (“NBTY"). Following approval of our shareholders, we completed the
sale on October 2, 2006 for a price of $37.5 million, subject to a working capital adjustment. The transaction
resulted in the receipt of $36.4 million in cash and expenses of $1.5 million. The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of
$11.0 mitlien, which included the disposition of approximately $2.9 million of goodwill previously carried by the
Nutraceuticals business unit. Under the stock purchase agreement, we have agreed to indemnify NBTY for a
number of matters, including the breach of our representations, warranties and covenants contained in the stock
purchase agreement, in some cases until the expiration of the statute of limitations applicable to claims related to
such breaches. On September 28, 2006, as a requirement of the Nutraceuticals disposition, we redeemed Industrial
Development Revenue Bonds in the amount of $2.8 million plus accrued interest. Funds in a restricted cash
collateral account were utilized for this repayment. The balance of the restricted cash collateral was returned to Zila.
We recognized a $0.2 million charge for unamonized deferred financing costs at the time of the retirement of these
bonds.

Pharmaceuticals Dispositions

On May 31, 2007 we sold the inventory and technology related to our Peridex® brand of products for
$9.5 million, which had previously been a part of our Pharmaceuticals business unit. Expenses of the sale were
approximately $0.1 million. This transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $5.2 miilion.

On July 21, 2006, our subsidiary Zila Swab Technologies, Inc., which had previously been a part of our
Pharmaceuticals business unit, sold substantially all of the assets and certain defined liabilities of its IST swab
operations to Great Midwest Packaging, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company for approximately $0.6 million
in cash and retained liabilities of approximately $0.1 million. The sale resulted in a pre-tax loss of approximately
$0.7 million.

On June 27, 2005, cur subsidiary, Zila Pharmaceuticals, Inc., sold substantially all of the assets of its Zilactin®
brand of over-the-counter lip and oral care products to Blairex Laboratories, Inc., an Indiana corporation
(“Blairex™), for $10.3 million. Subsequent to the sale, we were engaged in an arbitration proceeding regarding
this disposition, which was settled on November 3, 2006. The settlement required the payment of approximately
$0.7 million to Blairex. The settlement cost is included in loss from discontinued operations during fiscal 2007,
Separately, we incurred approximately $0.3 million of expense in fiscal 2008 for pending litigation with Dr, James
E. Tinneil, which is more fully described in Note 15 “Commitments and Contingencies” and relates to the
previously disposed Zilactin® product line.
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The results of these discentinued operations are as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006

Nutraceuticals:

Nt PEVEIIUES & ot i et e e $ 1,629 $21.473

Loss from discontinued operations . . . ... ... ... it e (1,360) (3,046)

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations . ... ............. ... ... .. .. . .... 11,024 —
Pharmaceuticals;

NELTEVEMUES . .. o\ et it e e e et e e e e e e e .. $ 3694 § 6,176

Income from discontinued operations . .. ............ . ... ... . ... .., 849 375

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations ........................... 5,161 (629)
Total discontinued operations:

et TBVEMUES . . . ittt s ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 5323 $27,649

Loss from discontinued operations . . . ..................... e 51D 2,671y

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations . ............ ..., 16,185 (629)

As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, current liabilities of the divested operations of approximately $0.1 miilion and
$0.2 million, respectively, consist primarily of accounts payable and other accrued expenses related to the
previously divested Pharmaceuticals operations.

4. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):

2008 2007
Finished goods . . ... o i i e $ 675 $1.413
Work-in-process ............ e 396 323
Raw materials. ... .. . e e e 2,470 2,659
INVENIONY TESEIVES . . . . o ittt e e e _(434) (320
Total inventories . . ... ... .. e $3,107 %4075
5. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):

2008 2007
Land.......... ... ... ...... e $ 529 § 529
Buildings and improvements . . . ... ... ... .. e 2,132 2,181
Furniture and equipment . . . ... ... L L e e - 3,408 2,360
Leasehold improvements and other assets. . .. ... ... ... . . 0t inernnennn. - 823 1,360
Production, laboratory and warehouse equipment .. ... ........ ... ... ... ......... 4,582 4,423
Total property and equipment. . ... .. ... ... .. ... e e e 11,474 10,853
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization. ... ........... .. ... ... ... .. (6,157) (4,634)
Property and equipment — Net. . ... .. vt vttt et e e $ 5317 § 6219

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 for continuing
operations was approximately $1.6 million, $1.0 million and $0.6 million, respectively. For fiscal 2008 and 2007,
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approximately $0.5 million and $0.3 million of depreciation expense was included in cost of products sold,
respectively. Depreciation expense related to property and equipment for 2008, 2007 and 2006 for discontinued
operations was approximately nil, $0.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, assets
of approximately $0.2 million were required to be capitalized in accordance with SFAS No. 13 “Accounting for
Leases” (“SFAS 13"). These capital leased assets are included in “furniture and equipment” and “production and
warehouse equipment,” net of accumulated amortization of less than $0. 1 million and approximately $0.1 million as
of July 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Amortization expense related to these capital leased assets was less than
$0.1 million for the years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):

Amortizable intangible assets:
Purchased technology .........
Trademarks. . ...............
Patemts . . ......... ... .....
Licensing costs. .. ...........
Covenants not to compete and

other...... ... ... oL
Total amortizable intangible

ASSELS © . i

Unamortizable trademarks. . ... ...

Total other intangible assets. . . . .
Goodwilt ..................

Total intangible assets. .. ... ... ..

2008 2007

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
$15,592 $ (6,732) % 8.860 §15,592 $(5,708) $ 9.884
168 {18) 150 132 (1n 121
2,019 (385) 1,634 2,495 (350) 2,145
2,674 (1,777) 897 2,674 (1,514) 1,160
3,556 (2,153) 1,403 3,556 (876) 2,680
24,009 (11,065) 12,944 24,449 (8,459) 15,990
5,449 — 5,449 5,449 — 5,449
29,458 (11,065) 18,393 29,898 (8,459) 21,439
10,171 — 10,171 10,171 — 10,171
$39.629 $(11,065) $28,564  $40,069 $(8,459) 331,610

Amortization of amortizable intangible assets is calculated using the foltowing useful lives (in years):

Purchased technology . ... ... ... ... ... ... o ...
Trademarks ... ... ... . :
Patents. . .. ... . .. e
Licensing costs. . . .. .. RO
Covenants not to compete and other

Weighted Average Remaining

Range of Useful Lives
Useful Lives  July 31, 2008 July 31, 2007
15 11.5 12.2
7-10 6.6 7.8
4-17 7.4 7.9
7-10 34 44
2-15 6.0 4.7

Goodwill increased by approximately $10.2 million as a result of the acquisition of Pro-Dentec during fiscal
2007. There were no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended July 31, 2008.

Amortization of intangible assets for continuing operations was approximately $2.7 million, $2.1 mitlion
$0.8 million for the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Amortization of intangible assets for
discontinued operations was approximately nil, $0.1 million and $0.7 million for the years ended July 31, 2008,
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2007 and 2006, respectively. Estimated future amortization expense for fiscal 2009 through 2013, based on balances

existing at July 31, 2008, is as follows (in thousands):

20000 . e e e $1,905
72 1,512
2 1 1,499
7 988
2003 e 679
7. Accreed Liabilities
Accrued liabilities consist of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):
2008 2007
Accrued research and development . . .. ... ... .. ... . .. i $1,154 51,864
Accrued employee compensation and related taxes . ...................... 1,060 1,876
Accrued professional and consulting fees .. ... ... ... .. L Ll 795 569
Accrued fee due Investors for Restructuring (see Note 8). . ................. — 600
Other acCrued EXPEISES L\ vttt t e e e e e e 1,110 679
Total accrued liabilities. .. . .. ... . . . e $4.059  $5,588
8. Debt
Debt consists of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):
2008 2007

Long-term debt:

Senior Secured Convertible NOtes . .. ...t ieans $12,000 $12,000

Unamortized discount — Senior Secured Convertible Notes . .. .......... (3,560) (5,345)

Senior Secured Convertible Notes —net . .......................... 8,440 6,655

PharmaBio . .. ... .. ... e 500 500

Capital lease obligations . ....... ... ... ... . i 105 181
Total long-term debt . . ... ... ... .. e 9,045 7,336
Less: Current portion of capital lease obligations . . . .................... (71) )]
Long-term debt — net of current portion . .. ... ... ... .. ... $8974 § 7,259

Private Placements

In November 2006, we consumnmated two private placements (the “Private Placements™) for gross proceeds of

approximately $40.0 million. Pursuant to the first purchase agreement, we issued and sold:

(i} 1,300,000 shares of Zila’s common stock for $12.25 per share {the “Shares™);

(ii) Approximately $12.1 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.0% Unsecured Convertible Notes
(the “Unsecured Notes™), which converted into 985,714 shares (the “Unsecured Note Shares™) of Zila’s
common stock at a conversion price of $12.25 per share on December 14, 2006, the date on which our

stockholders approved, among other things, the Private Placements;
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(iii) Warrants to purchase approximately 772,000 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became
exercisable in May 2007 for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share (the “Initial Warrants™);

(iv) Warrants to purchase approximately 444,000 shares of Zila’s common stock, which became
exercisable for five years at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders
on December 14, 2006 (the “Additional Warrams“).

Pursuant to the second purchase agreement, we issued and sold:

(i) Approximately $]2 0 million in aggregate principal amount of 6.0% Senior Secured Convertible
Notes (the “Secured Notes™), are due in November 2009 and became convertible into 779,221 shares of Zila’s
common stock at a conversion price of $15.40 following approval by our stockholders on December 14,
2006; and

(ii) Warrants to purchase 272,727 shares of Zila's common stock, which became exercisable for five years
at an exercise price of $15.47 per share following approval by our stockholders on December 14, 2006 (the
“Secured Note Warrants™).

The Private Placements were made only to accredited investors in transactions that are exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) pursuant to Regulation D
promulgated thereunder. Roth Capital Partners, LLC (“Roth™) served as placement agent in the transaction and
received warrants to purchase approximately 174,100 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $15.47 per
share (the “Roth Warrants”). Additionally, we paid Roth cash fees of $1.7 million at the closing of the Private
Placements and on February 20, 2007, after negotiation, we issued 41,390 shares of our common stock to Roth as
well as the Roth Warrants in final settlement of the fees.

The Additional Warrants and some of the Initial Warrants were issued in connection with the Unsecured Notes,
and the fair values of these Additional Warrants and Initial Warrants were allocated as discounts to the Unsecured
Notes. The remaining Initial Warrants were issued in connection with the Shares, and these I[nitial Warrants were
allocated as a reduction of proceeds from the issuance of the Shares. The Secured Note Warrants were allocated as
discounts to the Secured Notes. The fair value of the Roth Warrants was allocated between deferred financing cost
and the proceeds from the issuance of the Shares on a relative fair value basis. The net proceeds from the issuance of
the Shares were approximately $7.6 million, net of the effect of the relative fair value of the Initial Warranis of
approximately $6.3 million and transaction costs of approximately $2.0 million. Upon conversion of the Unsecured
Notes on December 14, 2006 an unamortized discount of approximately $6.1 million and deferred financing costs
of approximately $1.5 million were recorded as additional paid-in capital. The conversion price of the Secured
Notes of $15.40 per common share at its commitment date, the date of shareholder approval on December 14, 2006,
was below the market price of $18.06 per common share. In accordance with EITF 98-5 and EITF 00-27 we
recorded a discount to the Secured Notes, with an offset to additional paid-in capital, of $4.4 million, which
represented the difference between the effective conversion price and the fair value of our common stock,
multiplied by the number of shares into which the Secured Notes are convertible. This discount will be amortized to
interest expense from December 14, 2006 to the contractual maturity of the Secured Notes. Should the Secured
Notes be converted or otherwise extinguished prior to their contractual maturity the unamortized balance will be
charged to interest expense at such time.

We granted registration rights for the Shares and shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the debt
instruments and exercise of the warrants. A dispute arose with certain investors (the “Investors”) regarding the
extent of the registration rights. On August 13, 2007, we reached an agreement with the Investors to restructure the
Investors” holdings (the “Restructuring™) and to provide us with relief from certain financial and non-financial
covenanis contained in the Secured Notes (the “Amendment Agreement™). As amended and restated (the “Amended
and Restated Secured Notes™) are in the same aggregate principal amount as the Secured Notes, or approximately
$12.0 million, but are due July 31, 2010. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes bear interest, payable quarterly,
at 7.0% per annum, but at our option, interest payments can be made at an 8.0% annual rate in shares of our common
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stock at a price equal to 90.0% of the average closing bid price of such common stock for the ten trading days
immediately prior to the relevant interest payment date. The Amended and Restated Secured Notes remain
convertible into shares of commoen stock at a conversion price of $15.40 per share at the option of the holders of such
notes. In addition, the Amended and Restated Secured Notes contain comprehensive covenants that restrict the way
in which we can operate, and contain financial covenants that require us to maintain specified cash and defined
EBITDA levels.

As part of the Restructuring, we also agreed to:

(1) Repurchase 133,262 Unsecured Note Shares from the lovestors for approximately $1.25 million in
cash, at a price based on the average closing bid price of our common stock for the ten trading days prior to
August 13, 2007, or $9.38 per Unsecured Note Share;

(ii) Repurchase 32,467 Secured Note Warrants from the Investors for approximately $0.15 million in
cash, at a price based on a Black-Scholes valuation, or $4.62 per Secured Note Warrant; and

(iii) Pay the Investors a $0.6 million fee.

The Amendment Agreement contained a mutual release of claims. We concluded that the Amended and
Restated Secured Notes are not substantially different from the original Secured Notes and accordingly, the
Amendment Agreement has not been accounted for as a debt extinguishment. As of July 31, 2007, the $0.6 million
fee has been accrued as the resolution of the registration rights dispute with the Investors and the fair value of the
shares and warrants has been reclassified from permanent equity to a current liability. No income or loss was
recognized as a result of this reclassification. The increase in the fair value of these financial instruments from
July 31, 2007 to the date they were repurchased on August 13, 2007 of less than $0.1 million has been accounted for
as a charge to earnings in the first quarter of fiscal 2008, Separately, we have expensed approximately $0.1 million
during the year ended July 31, 2007 for costs incurred with third parties that were directly related to the Amendment
Agreement, which is included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statement
of Operations.

In connection with the Restructuring and the issuance of the Amended and Restated Secured Notes, we also
received waivers from the required majority of the holders of the Initial Warrants, Additional Warrants and Secured
Note Warrants waiving any antidilution rights to which any holder of such warrants would otherwise be entitled in
connection with the issuance of any shares as payment for interest on the Amended and Restated Secured Notes, On
August 13, 2007, we entered into a registration rights agreement that resolved certain claims with the Investors.
Separately, a side letter that imposed certain corporate governance obligations on Zila, the most notable of which
that had not yet been fulfilled was to appoint two additional directors to our Board of Directors, was terminated.

On June 3, 2008 we entered into a second amendment agreement (the “Second Amendment Agreement”) to
the Secured Notes (the “Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes™), which resulted in a change in certain
financial covenants as follows:

(i) The cash and cash equivalents balance that is required to be maintained at the end of each fiscal
quarter commencing with the fiscal quarter ending July 31, 2008 was reduced from $2.0 million to
$1.0 million; and ’ )

(ii) The required EBITDA level, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
(“Defined EBITDA™), of at least $1.00 must be met for any one fiscal quarter on or prior to our quarter ending
July 31, 2009. Prior to the Second Amendment Agreement, we were required to have Defined EBITDA of at
least $1.00 for each of the fiscal quarters ending July 31, 2008 and October 31, 2008. This covenant was
satisfied during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008,

In exchange for the covenant modifications, we issued 660,942 common shares with a fair value of $1.2 million
based on quoted market prices on the date of the Second Amendment Agreement. Additionally, the creditors
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returned 485,157 warrants that they had been previously issued in connection with the original issuance of the
Secured Notes and other financing transactions. The aggregate fair value of these warrants as of the date of this
modification, based on the Black Scholes model, was $0.1 million. No other terms of these notes were altered as a
result of the Second Amendment Agreement. We concluded that the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes
are not substantially different from the original Secured Notes and accordingly, the Second Amendment Agreement
has not been accounted for as a debt extinguishment. The Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes are secured
by certain of our existing and future property, as well as the existing and future property of each of our wholly-
owned subsidiaries.

Failure to satisfy the financial covenants, or to maintain compliance with other covenants, could, at the option of
the Second Amended and Restated Secured Note holders, result in an event of default. Upon the occurrence of the first
specified event of default, the holders of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and
demand repayment of one-third of the outstanding principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on the Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes. Upon the occurrence of the second specified event of default, the holders of the
Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes could accelerate and demand repayment of one-half of the outstanding
principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest on these notes. Upon the occurrence of the third specified event of
default, the entire principal balance and all accrued but unpaid interest may become due and payable. Additionally,
upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any event of default, all amounts outstanding under the Second
Amended and Restated Secured Notes shall bear interest at an annual rate of 15.0% per annom.

On September 11, 2008, we entered into a Third Amendment Agreement with the Investors that serves to limit
the amount of the Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes that each Investor is allowed to convert into Zila’s
common shares. Under the Third Amendment Agreement, holders shall not have the right to convert any portion of
their Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes in the event that the holder would beneficially own in excess of
4.999% of our common stock issued and outstanding immediately after giving effect to such conversion.

Secured Term Loan

On March 24, 2006, we, certain of our domestic subsidiaries and Black Diamond Commercial Finance, L.L.C.
(“BDCF"), as the initial lender and administrative agent, entered into a $40.0 million credit facility (the “Credit
Facility”) consisting of a $20.0 million term loan credit facility, available immediately, (the “Term Loan Facility™)
and a $20.0 million incremental term loan facility (the “Tack-On Facility™), available upon the occurrence of certain
events.

On October 2, 2006, debt outstanding under the Credit Facility in the amount of approximately $20.0 million
plus accrued interest was repaid from the proceeds of the disposition of the Nutraceuticals business unit and the
Credit Facility was terminated. Upon termination of the Credit Facility, we expensed approximately $3.6 million for

unamortized debt financing costs and debt discount, which have been recorded as interest expense. No amounts

were ever borrowed under the Tack-On Facility.

Balances under the Term Loan Facility accrued interest at a rate of 14.0% per annum. The Credit Facility
contained affirmative and negative covenants, and events of default. The Credit Facility was secured (i) with certain
exceptions, by a first priority interest in substantially all of our assets and (ii) the pledge and physical possession of
the capital stock of certain of our domestic subsidiaries.

In connection with obtaining the Credit Facility, we paid $2.3 million in financing costs, which were being
amortized to interest expense over the original two-year term of the loan using the effective interest method. Interest
expense related to these costs was approximately $0.4 million for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006.

On March 24, 2006, in connection with entering into the Credit Facility, we terminated and repaid $3.5 million
outstanding under our Credit and Security Agreement (the “Wells Fargo Facility”) dated as of February 6, 2004
between Zila, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and Wells Fargo Business Credit, Inc. and paid termination fees of
approximately $0.2 million, which were recorded to other expense.
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In connection with entering into the Credit Facility and terminating the Wells Fargo Facility, the Company
terminated a guarantee and deed of trust associated with the replacement letter of credit for the benefit of the holders
of Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were used for the construction of a manufacturing
facility. In place of the guarantees and deed of trust, the Company increased the balance of the related interest
bearing collateral account to approximately $3.6 miltion. During fiscal 2007 and in connection with the disposition
of our Nutraceuticals business unit, we redeemed the Industrial Development Revenue Bonds in the amount of
$2.8 million plus accrued interest. Funds in the restricted cash collateral account were utilized for this repayment
and the manufacturing facility was disposed of as part of this disposition.

As consideration for entering into the Credit Facility, we issued a warrant to BDCF to purchase 171,429 shares
of our common stock. BDCF subsequently transferred such warrant to an affiliate, namely BDC Finance, L.L.C.
(“BDC”). The warrant initially had an exercise price of $26.53 per share and expires March 24, 2011. As
consideration and inducement to enter into the First and Fifth Amendments to the Credit Agreement, described
below, the exercise price of the warrant was reduced to $21.98 and $15.54 per share, respectively, We recorded a
debt discount of approximately $2.2 million based on the portion of the proceeds allocated to the fair value of the
warrant as of March 24, 2006.

From June 6, 2006 to September 235, 2006, we entered into the five separate amendments to the Credit Facility,
which among other things:

(i) Amended certain financial covenants and financial reporting requirements;

(ii) Waived certain defaults that occurred under the terms of the Credit Facility and adjusted certain
Events of Default (as defined in the Credit Agreement);

(iii) Required the re-pricing of the warrant that was issued in connection with the Credit Facility from
$26.53 to $21.98 per share under terms of the First Amendment to the Credit Facility, with an additional
adjustment to $15.54 per share under the terms of the Fifth Amendment to the Credit Facility. The re-pricings
had the effect of increasing the value of the warrant by approximately $0.2 million for each re-pricing;

(iv) Required amendment fees totaling approximately $0.6 million.

PharmaBio Development, Inc.

In December 2002, we entered into an agreement with PharmaBio Development, In¢. (“PharmaBio”), the
strategic investrent group of Quintiles Transnational Corp., our then contract research organization. Under this
agreement, PharmaBio invested $500,000 in us. In return for the investment, we agreed to pay PharmaBio an
amount equal to 5.0% of all net sales of an oral cancer diagnostic drug product in the European Union and the
United States. The aggregated amount of the royalty cannot exceed $1.25 million and the royalty is payable
quarterly. The investment was recorded as long-term debt and will be amortized using the effective interest method.

Capital Leases

We lease facilities and equipment, some of which are required to be capitalized in.accordance with SFAS 13.
SFAS 13 requires the capitalization of leases meeting certain criteria, with the related asset recorded in property and
" equipment and an offsetting amount recorded as a liability.
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Debt Maturities

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt and minimum payments under capital leases for the fiscal years
ending July 31 are as follows (in thousands):

Long-Term  Capital

Debt Leases Total
2000 . e e e e $  — 571 $ 7
2000 . . e e 12,000 34 12,034
2013 and thereafter . ... ... ... . e 500 — 500
TOtal . .t e e 12,500 105 12,605
Less: Cutrent pOrtion . . . ... o .o it e — (71) {71
Less: Discount on Senior Notes . .. ...... ... (3,560} — (3,560)
LOong-term POTtiON . . ..ottt eai e ie e $ 8,940 $34 § 8974

9. Share Based Payments
Stock Options and Awards

We have one active share-based stock award plan that provides for the grant of stock options and stock awards,
such as restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs™), to our employees, members of our Board of Directors
and non-employee consultants as approved by our Board of Directors. RSUs represent a contingent right to receive
shares of our stock at a future date provided certain performance targets are met and can be forfeited or accelerated
under certain conditions. We grant stock awards to our employees and to members of our Board of Directors at
prices equal to the market value of our stock on the date of grant. These awards vest over a period determined at the
time of the grant and generally range from one to three years of continuous service, with maximum terms ranging
from five to ten years. Certain awards granted to our employees provide for accelerated vesting if there is a “change
in control” of Zila, as defined in the plan. During December 2007, our shareholders approved an increase to the
authorized shares in our share-based stock award plan by 428,571 shares. As of July 31, 2008 there were 353,604
registered shares available for grant under the plan.

Effective August 1, 2005, we adopted SFAS 123R, which revises SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123") and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees (“APB No. 25”). SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees (including share-
based payments granted to non-employee members of a company’s board of directors) to be recognized in the
financial statements based on their grant date fair values using an option-pricing model, such as the Black-Scholes
model. We elected to use the modified prospective method for adoption, which requires recording compensation
expense for all unvested stock options and restricted shares beginning in the first quarter of adoption. For all
unvested options outstanding as of August 1, 2005, compensation expense previously measured under SFAS 123,
but unrecognized, will be recognized using the siraight-line method over the remaining vesting period. For share-
based payments granted subsequent to August 1, 2005, compensation expense, based on the fair value on the date of
grant, as defined by SFAS 123R, will be recognized using the straight-line methed from the date of grant over the
service period of the employee receiving the award.

SFAS 123R requires the estimation of forfeitures when recognizing compensation expense and that this
estimate of forfeitures be adjusted over the requisite service period should actual forfeitures differ from such
estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures are recognized through an adjustment, which is recognized in the period
of change and which impacts the amount of unamortized compensation expense 1o be recognized in foture periods.

SFAS 123R requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of
the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows.
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Because of our lack of earnings history, no excess tax benefit has been recognized and therefore no financing cash
inflow is presented in our accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended July 3, 2008,
2007 and 2006.

The fair value of options is estimated on the daie of grant using the Black-Scholes model based on the weighted
average assumptions in the table below. The risk free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury rates with maturity dates
approximating the expected term of the grant. The historical volatility of our stock is used as the basis for the
volatility assumption. The assumption for the expected term is based on evaluations of historical and expected
future employee exercise behavior. Assumptions used are as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Risk-free interest Tate. . . .. . ... ... it e 3% 5% 4%
Expected volatility. . . . ... .. . e 60% o61% 67%
Expected term (in years) . . ... ... o i e e 5 6 5

Dividend yield. . . ... ... .. . e e — — —

Under the 1997 Stock Award Plan, our non-employee directors will receive an annual grant of 4,286 shares
based on certain tenure and meeting attendance requirements as defined in the plan. In addition, our Board of
Directors may grant discretionary awards to non-employee directors, These stock options vest quarterly in equal
increments.

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we granted stock options to non-gmployee consuitants to purchase 6,429,
18,286 and 14,571 shares of common stock, respectively, which are adjusted to current fair value each quarter
during their vesting periods as services are rendered. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we recognized less than
$0.1 million of expense relative to these stock options and during fiscal 2006, we recognized approximately
$0.1 million as general and administrative expense for these stock options.

A summary of stock option activity for our stock award plan for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2008 is as
follows {in thousands except exercise price per share amounts):

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Options Price

Options outstanding — beginning of year. .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... 417 $21.77
Granted . . .. .. e e 447 7.77
Exercised. ... .. e e e e e e e 4 7.84
Expired . . ... .o e e (206) 22.68
Forfeited . . . ... . ... e _(142) 13.72

Options outstanding —end of year. . . .. ... ... ... ... . ... .. ... __ 315 11.55

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted to our employees and directors during fiscal
2008, 2007 and 2006 was $4.23, $10.36 and $14.42, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised and
cash received from these exercises during fiscal 2008 and 2007 was less than $0.1 million for each fiscal year. The
total intrinsic value of options exercised and cash received from these exercises during fiscal 2006 was approx-
imately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively. Cash received from option exercises is reflected as a financing
activity in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows within the caption, “proceeds from issuance
of commeon stock.”
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Additional information relative to our options outstanding at July 31, 2008 is summarized as follows:

Vested or
Expected
Qutstanding Vest Exercisable
Number of options . ....... ... .. i, 515 467 237
Aggregate intrinsic value of options. . . .......... ... ... $ — $§ — $ —
Weighted average remaining contractual term (in years) ... ... 6.7 6.4 4.1
Weighted average exercise price. .. ... ..o 31155 $11.90 $15.33

During fiscal 2007, we began awarding shares of unvested common stock to certain key executives. The
unvested shares contain restrictions requiring continued employment. The awards are expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period. Within 60 days of the lapse of the restrictions, we are required to issue a stock
certificate for the vested shares. The stock awards provide full shareholder rights from the date of grant. Unvested
shares under stock awards are not included in our common shares issued and outstanding until the vested shares are
issued. A summary of unvested common stock award activity within our share-based compensation plan for the

fiscal year ended July 31, 2008 is as follows (shares in thousands):

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Grant Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Value Term Value
Unvested balance — beginning of year . .......... 19 $17.00 1.4 $173
Granted . ........ ... . i 240 4.00
Vested .. ... o e (203) 5.00
Forfeited ........ ... . . iy, — —
Unvested balance —end of year. . .............. 56 7.00 1.1 $107

The total fair value of restricted shares that vested during fiscal 2008 and 2007 was approximately $0.8 million

and $0.4 million, respectively.

Stock-based compensation costs for employee options and restricted stock grants are reflected in the following

financial statement captions for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006:

2008 2007 2006
Marketing and selling . ......... .. ... . i $ 212 % 168 $ 14
General and administrative. . .. .. ... ... .o i e 1,782 1,583 550
Research and development . . ... ... ... . . . i aa.. 3 8 17
INVENIOTY . .« oot e e e 29 11 4
Discontinved operations . .. .. ....... ... . L e — — 22
Total stock-based COMPENSAtION . .. .. ..o vttt $2,026 $1,770 3607

Included in the general and administrative caption in the above table is expense of less than $0.1 million for the
years ended July 31, 2008 and 2007 and an expense of approximately $0.1 million for the fiscal year ended July 31,
2006 that relates to non-employee options, which are adjusted to current value each reporting period during their

vesting term as services are rendered.

As of July 31, 2008, total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options and unvested stock
awards was approximately $2.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively, with a weighted-average period over which
these costs are expected to be recognized is approximately 2.2 years and 1.1 years, respectively.

F-29




ZILA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Warrants

Asof July 31, 2008, we have warrants outstanding for the purchase of 1,384,424 shares of our common stock, all
of which were exercisable. We issued these warrants in connection with financing arrangements and the value of these
warrants was determined using 4 Black-Scholes model. Activity related to these warrants, which expire at various
dates through March 2011, is summarized as follows (in thousands except exercise price per share amounts):

' Weighted
Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise - Contractual Intrinsic

of Shares Price Term Value

Warrants outstanding — beginning of year .. ... ... 1,846 $15.42 4.3 $28
Granted . .......... .. .. ... . .. 68 14.63
Returned or repurchased . .. ... ............ .. (518) 15.47
Expired . ... ... . ... . (12) 6.86

Warrants outstanding —end of year . ............ 1,384 $14.76 33 —

As a result of our issuance of 660,942 common shares in connection with the Second Amendment Agreement
to our Secured Notes, we issue an additional 68,367 warrants retated to antidilution provisions contained in certain
of our outstanding warrants and adjusted the exercise price of such warrants to $14.63 from $15.47. This adjustment
resulted in a change in the fair value of these warrants of less than $0.1 million.

Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Zila, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, we are authorized, as of July 31, 2001, to issue up to
285,714 shares of common stock to our eligible employees, nearly all of whom are eligible to participate. Eligible
employees may have up to 15.0% of eligible compensation withheld and/or they may make a lump sum payment on
the last day of the offering to purchase our common stock. The purchase price for each share of stock is 85.0% of the
lower of the closing price on the first or last day of the offering period. A total of 9,061, 1,529 and 7,130 common
shares were purchased in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 under the terms of this plan, respectively, for aggregate
proceeds of approximately $0.1 million, less than $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Our Employee Stock
Purchase Plan is compensatory as defined under SFAS 123R, and accordingly we recognized non-cash stock-based
compensation expense relative to this plan, which was less than $0.1 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006. There
are approximately 0.2 million shares available for grant under this plan as. of July 31, 2008.

10. Income Taxes

The consolidated income tax (benefit) provision for continuing operations consists of the following for the
years ended July 31 (in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Current;
Federal. ... . e e — & —
] 1 9 65 4
Totalcurrent. ... ... .. ... . e _(9 65 4
Deferred:
Federal. . . ... .. — (8,301 —
SEALE .« . e ettt e e = (1432 —
Total deferred . ... ... ... ... ... L = (9733 —
Total income tax benefit. ........ [ $(9) $09.668) $4
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the effective income tax rate for continuing operations for the
years ended July 31 is as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Federal Statulory FAEE . . . ... oo v it e ieania s e ia e e (35)% (35)% (35)%
Adjustments:
Non-deductible intangible asset amortization. . .. .......... ... .o .o 1 1 1
Non-deductible financing costs. .. .. ..ot 4 1 —
Non-deductible stock-based compensation. . ...... ..o 2 1 —
Non-taxable fair value adjustments . .. ... .. covt e — (1 —
Increase in valuation allowance . .. .. .. ..ot oot coanns 28 (D 34
EFfeCiiVe LK AR « o o o o o ettt e et ea s i s —% (3H% —%

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities consist of the following as of July 31 (in thousands):

2008 2007
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss carry forwards . . ......... oo $19,205 $15,634
Alternative minimum tax credit . .. ... .o 230 230
Other reserves and accruals . . .. .. .o n i e e 437 573
Stock-based cOmpeEnsation .. ....... ... i 703 437
(011 1= R PP EPRPRPEPRR G 122 188
Total deferred income tax assets. ...... e e e e 20,697 17,062
Deferred income tax liabilities: '
Depreciation and amortization .. ... ... ..ot (113) {495)
Book basis versus tax basis differences. . ... .. ... o i (5,089) (5,861)
Federal income tax on state net operating loss carryforwards. .. ......... (848) (673)
Beneficial conversion feature of Secared Notes. . . ....... ... . .oon i (893) (1,341)
OHREL . o e e e et e s 279) (278)
Total deferred income tax labilities . ... ... ... o i, (7,222) (8,648)
Valuation allowanCe . . . .. vt e it e e e e (13,475} (8,414)
Net deferred income tax assets. . ............. [, $ — % —

We have a valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets due to a lack of earnings history. We regularly
review our past earnings history and trends and projections of future net income to determine whether a valuation
altowance is necessary. During the fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, we determined that it was more likely than not
that cértain future tax benefits would not be realized. The increase in the valuation allowance of approximately
$5:1 million for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2008 is primarily attributable to losses from current-year operations.
The decrease in the valuation allowance of approximately $8.0 million for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 is
primarily attributable to (i) an increase of $10.4 million related to losses from continuing operations, (ii) a decrease
of $10.0 million related to income from discontinued operations (iii} a decrease of $7.1 million related to purchase
accounting adjustments from the stock acquisition of Pro-Dentec and (iv) a decrease of $1.3 million related to the
deferred tax liability recorded to additional paid-in capital for the beneficial conversion feature of the Secured
Notes. Accordingly, valuation allowances were provided for the entire amount of the net deferred tax assets in these
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years. Income taxes payable as of July 31, 2008 and 2007 were de minimis. The other comprehensive loss of less
than $0.1 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 reflects no income tax effect due to the recording of valuation
allowances.

As of July 31, 2008, we had federal net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $47.9 million, which
expire in years 2010 through 2028. In the event of a change in control, under IRS Section 382 (“Section 382™), the
utilization of our Federal net operating loss carryforwards would be limited. Due to various transactions involving
our common stock, a statutory “ownership change”, as defined under Section 382, may have occurred during the
fiscal year ended July 31, 2008. When a company undergoes such an ownership change, Section 382 limits the
company’s future ability to utilize any net operating losses generated before the ownership change and, in certain
circumstances, subsequently recognized “built-in” losses and deductions, if any, existing as of the date of the
ownership change. Due to the significant complexity associated with the Section 382 regulations, we are currently
analyzing whether there has been an ownership change as well as the impact such a change would have on our net
operating loss carryforwards. Since we have recorded a valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets, any
adjustment to our net operating loss carryforwards resulting from a Section' 382 limitation would not require us to
record any additional income tax expense for the current year.

11. Supplemental Schedule of Cash flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information for the three fiscal years ended July 31 follows (in thousands):

‘ 2008 2007 2006
Interest paid. . ....................... e $ 248 $1,314 3976
Income taxes paid . ... ... ... ... . e 14 172 102
Fair value of 660,942 common shares issued for payment of the
Second Amendment Agreement, net of 485,157 warrants
returned . . ... e e 1,086 — —
Insurance policy financed with shor-term borrowings . ... ........ 275 299 2%6
Capital lease obligation for new equipment. .. ................. — 181 65
Beneficial conversion feature of Secured Convertible Notes. . ... ... — 4,397 —
Conversion of Unsecured Convertible Notes . . . ................ — 4,452 —

12. Convertible Preferred Stock

During February 2001, we issued 100,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™)
as part of an acquisition, all of which were outstanding as of July 31, 2008. The holders of the Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive cumulative quarterly dividends at a rate of $0.0975 per share per fiscal quarter, payable in arrears,
which represents an aggregate annual dividend of $39,000. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, accumulated accrued
dividends were $9,750. The Preferred Stock can be redeemed at our option if our common stock maintains a closing
price on each trading day equal to or greater than $9.00 per share for any ten trading day period. The redemption
price shall be the average bid closing price of our common stock far the five trading days immediately proceeding
the date we give notice. The Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time on or before
December 31, 2010 into our common stock at the ratio of one-to-one. On December 31, 2010, all of the remaining
Preferred Stock will be converted into our common stock at a ratio of one-to-one. Holders of the preferred stock
have no voting rights except as required by appticable law and have a liquidation preference of $0.65 million. The
shares of Preferred Stock were issued pursuant to the exemption set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. There
is no established public trading market for the Preferred Stock.
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13, Treasury Stock

During fiscal 2004, we began acquiring shares of our common stock under a stock repurchase program
announced in November 1999, The program authorized the repurchase of up to 142,857 shares of Zila common
stock from time to time on the open market depending on market conditions and other factors. Under this repurchase
program, we purchased 32,157 shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $0.6 million, and
made the last purchases under this program in fiscal 2003, after which we suspended purchases under the program.
In fiscal 2005, we reissued 955 shares of treasury stock for a stock award.

In connection with the Amendment Agreement described in Notes 8 and 15, on August 13, 2007, we
repurchased 133,262 Unsecured Note Shares from the Investors for approximately $1.25 million in cash, at a price
based on the average closing bid price of our common stock for the ten trading days prior to August 13, 2007, or
$9.38 per Unsecured Note Share. These shares have been treated as treasury stock as of July 31, 2007, and during
the first quarter of fiscal 2008 these treasury shares were retired.

14. Leases

We lease offices, warehouse facilities and certain equipment, under capital and operating leases, with terms
generally ranging up to 2011 with options to renew for additional periods. We entered into new capital leases
totaling approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million during fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. No capital lease
agreements were entered into during fiscal 2008. Interest paid as part of capital lease obligations was less than
$0.1 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is included in
depreciation expense. Operating leases are charged to expense as incurred. Rent expense for continuing operations
was approximately $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.2 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As part of our strategy to employ financial assets in core business competencies, on January 30, 2004, we
completed the sale and a five-year leaseback of our corporate headquarters for approximately $1.7 million in net
cash. We realized a gain of $1.2 million, of which we recognized approximately $0.5 million at the time of the
transaction, which represents the excess of the net proceeds over the net present value of the future lease payments.
The balance of the gain of approximately $0.7 million was deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
five-year lease term as a reduction of rent expense in general and administrative expenses. The leaseback is
accounted for as an operating lease. As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, the balance of the deferred gain was
approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments as of July 31, 2008 for capital and operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

Capital  Operating

Leases Leases ‘Total
2000 . e e $78 3437 $515
2000 . e e 35 177 212
200l . e s — 72 72
Total minimum lease payments . .. .......outennennnenneennns 113 $686 3799
Less: Amounts representing interest . . . . ... ... ... (8
Present value of future minimum lease payments ................. 105
Less: Current portion of capital lease obligations . ................ _{an
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations. . .. ................ &
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15. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
Except as described below, as of July 31, 2008, we were not a party to any pending legal pfoceedings other than
claims that arise in the conduct of our business. While we currently believe that the ultimate outcome of these
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations,
litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties. If an unfavorable ruling were to occur, there exists the possibility of a

material adverse impact on our net income in the period in which a ruling occurs. Our estimate of the potential impact
of the following legal proceedings on our financial position and our results of operation could change in the future.

In connection with the acquisition of patent rights in 1980, we agreed to pay to Dr. James E. Tinnell
(“Tinnell™), the inventor of one of our former treatment compositions, a royalty of 5.0% of gross sales of the
invention disclosed in Tinnell’s then pending patent application. In September 2000, we notified Tinnell that we
would no longer pay such royalties because the obligations ceased in August 1998 when the related product patents
expired and we requested reimbursement of royalties paid since August 1998. We then filed suit on November 8,
2000, in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada requesting a declaratory judgment that we had no
royalty obligations to Tinnell and judgment for the overpaid royalties. On April 22, 2004, the Court, in part, ruled in
our favor, stating that our royalty obligations to Tinnell ceased in August 1998, however, our request for
reimbursement of overpaid royalties was dismissed. Tinnell filed a notice of appeal and we filed a notice of
cross-appeal. On September 5, 2007, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the decision of the lower court and
remanded the case for a determination of whether or not Tinnell should be credited with inventing the improvement
embodied in a 1992 patent. Both parties filed motions for summary judgment and on September 30, 2008, the court
denied both motions and ordered the parties to meet and confer on pre-trial matters before the end of the year,

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with certain officers and key employees that provide for eligibility for future
stock awards and for separation benefits, in certain situations.

Indemnifications

During the normal course of business, we make certain indemnities, commitments and guarantees under which
we may be required to make payments in relation to certain transactions. These include: (i) intellectual property
indemnities to customers in connection with the use, sales and/or license of products and services; (ii) indémnities to
customers in connection with losses incurred while performing services on their premises; (iii) indemnities to vendors
and service providers pertaining to claims based on negligence or willful misconduct; and (iv) indemnities involving
the representations and warranties in certain contracts. In addition, under our by-laws we are committed to our
directors and officers for providing for payments upon the occurrence of certain prescribed events. The majority of
these indemnities, commitments and guarantees do not provide for any limitation on the maximum potential for future
payments that we could be obligated to make. To help address these risks, we maintain general busihess liability
insurance coverage, including product, commercial, general, fiduciary, employment practices and directors’ and
officers’ liability coverages. We have not recorded a liability for these indemnities, commitments and other guarantees.

Data Management Services Agreement

Our marketing programs reach most U.S. dental offices and include continuing education serninars that
dentists and their staffs pay to attend. During March 2008 upon completion of our competitive bidding process, we
entered into an agreement with Designing Solutions, LLC to assist us in managing continuing education program
data and information. Designing Solutions, LLC is an entity managed by a member of our Board of Directors,
George J. Voturo, RPh, PhD. The agreement calls for an initial development fee of approximately $26,000, which
was paid during fiscal 2008, and future recurring monthly fees that are based in part on the number of continuing
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education seminars conducted by Zila and the number of participants at these seminars. After the completion of the
initial development, this contract is for services as requested by Zila.

Registration Payment Arrangements

We have entered into various registration rights agreements in connection with financing transactions. In some
instances, these registration rights agreements contain provisions that may call for us to pay penalties in certain
circumstances. These registration payment arrangements primarily relate to our ability to either file a registration
statement within a particular time period, have a registration statement declared effective within a particular time
period or to maintain the effectiveness of a registration statement for a particular time period. As of July 31, 2008, all
registration statenents that contain penalty provisions have been filed and declared effective, or the securities covered
by such registration rights agreements have been sold or can be sold under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933 by
the investors who purchased such securities and accordingly, we are in compliance with such registration payment
arrangements. We will be requu'ed to file registration statements in the future for shares that are issued as payment of
interest on our Second Amended and Restated Secured Notes. If we do not file such registration statements, we would
be subject to cash penalties equal to 1.0% of the Market Price (as defined in the Amended and Restated Notes) of the
registrable securities for each 30-day period or pro rata for any portion thereof following the filing deadline. We do not
believe it is probable that penalty payments will be made for the registration rights agreements discussed above and
accordingly have not accrued for such potential penalties as of July 31, 2008 or 2007.

FDA Observation Letter

During September 2008, after completion of a cGMP audit of our fluoride manufacturing facility, we received
notice from the FDA regarding certain deficiencies in our documentation, processes and procedures relative to certain
of our fluoride products. We have halted production of these products until the issues can be resolved. As of July 31,
2008, we have provided an estimated reserve of approximately $0.2 million related to these products and this issue.

16. Net Loss Per Share Information

The following table sets forth the calculation of the numerator and denominator used in the computation of basic
and diluted net loss per share for the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands of dollars and shares):

2008 2007 2006
Numerator:
NEELOSS . v v vve e et e e e $(16417)  $(13,203)  $(29,385)
Denominator:
Basic and diluted weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. . ... ...l 8,956 8,054 6,529
Antidilutive securities not included in the diluted earnings per
share calculation:
Options and warrants to purchase common shares .. ... ... —_ 27 49
Common share stockawards. .. ..................... 14 6 —
Convertible preferred stock . .. ............... ... ... 100 100 100
Total potentially dilutive securities . ... ......... ... ... .... 114 133 149

As of July 31, 2008 and 2007, we have approximately $12.0 million of Second Amended and Restated Secured
Notes outstanding that are convertible into 779,221 shares of our common stock, which have been excluded from
the above table due to the fact that the conversion price of these notes is less than the quoted market price of our
common stock on July 31, 2008.
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17. Employee Benefit Plan

Our contributions to the Zila Plan, inclusive of our discontinued operations, were approximately $0.2 million,
$0.3 mitlion and $0.2 miltion for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Contributions relative to our discon-
tinued operations were approximately nil, $0.1 million and $0.1 miilion for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

18. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly financial information is presented in the following summary (in thousands, except per share amounis):
Fiscal 2008 Quarterly Data

First Second * Third Fourth

Netrevenues .. ...t i iniie et $11,440  $10,491 11,245  $11,885
Gross profit .. .. .... R 6,859 6,246 6,807 7.786
Loss from continuing operations . ., . .., ........... (4,683) (4,589) (4,443) (2,409
Loss from discontinued operations . ............... (172) (147) 2) 67
Net1OSS . vt e e e e e e e (4,855) (4,736) (4,445) (2,342)
Basic and diluted net loss per share: )

Loss from continuing operations ... ............. $ (033 $ (052) 3% (0.530) § (0.26)

Loss from discontinued operations. . .. ........... {0.02) (0.02) — 0.01

Netincome {(1088) .. .. ... .oty $ (055 % (054) % (0.50) % (0.25)

Fiscal 2007 Quarterly Data
First Second Third Fourth

NetrevenUes . . . ..ottt e e $ 339 $7,149 $10,894 $10419
Grossprofit. ... ... ... . (161) 4,123 6,003 6,319
Loss from continuing operations . ................. (2,495)  (6442) (4,401) (5,767)
Income from discontinued operations . . ............. 2,237 291 93 3,320
(=2 B U3 O (258) (6,151 (4,308) (2,447)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Loss from continuing operations. ... ............. $(038) $ (081 § (050 § (0.65)

Loss from discontinued operations ... ............ 0.34 0.03 0.01 0.37

Net income (loss). . . ......................... $ (004 $078) § (0499 3 (0.28)

19. Geographic Information

Prior to the acquisition of Pro-Dentec in fiscal 2007, our operations that are domiciled in foreign countries
were negligible. With the acquisition of Pro-Dentec, we now have operations in Canada. As of July 31, 2008 and
2007, accounts receivable relative to these Canadian operations were $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively,
and inventories and long-lived assets were less than $0.1 million. Net revenues from our Canadian operations for
fiscal 2008 and 2007 were approximately $2.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively. Revenue recognized in certain
European markets during fiscal 2008 was approximately $0.15 million and tess than $0.1 million in fiscal 2007 and
2006. Pretax net loss from our U.S. operations was approximately $16.1 million, $12.9 million and $29.1 million for
the years ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Pretax net loss from our foreign operations was
approximately $0.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.2 million for the vears ended July 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance —  Charged to Balance -
Beginning Costs and End
of Year Expenses Deductions of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:
July 31,2006 ... . 5 — ' — 8 — 5 —
July 31,2007 . .. s — 118 (35) 83
July 31,2008 ... ... g3 80 (53) 110
Allowance for sales returns: '
July 31,2006 . ... 19 10 (20) 9
July 31,2007 ... o e, 9 105 (24) 30
July 31,2008 ... ... 90 29 — 119
Inventory reserve:
July 31,2006 . ... e 129 52 (126) 55
July 31,2007 .. e 55 266 o)) 320
July 31, 2008 . ..... PP 320 291 (77 434
Deferred tax valuation allowance:
July 31,2006 . ... 5,606 10,799 —_ 16,405
July 31,2007 . ... 16,405 - (7,991) 8414
July 31,2008 ... .. 8,414 5,061 — 13,475
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Zila, Inc. and NBTY, Inc.
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2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the investors thereto
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LLC

Registration Rights Agreement for the Shares, Unsecured Notes, Initial Warrants and
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parties thereto
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November 28, 2006, by and among Zila, Inc. and the investor parties thereto
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2007(1)

Employment Agreement between Zila, Inc. and Diane E. Klein, dated as of March 30, 2007(1)
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement(1}

Severance Agreement and Release of Claims, dated June 13, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc.
and Douglas D. Burkett

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 13, 2007, by and among Zila, Inc., Visium
Balanced Offshore Fund, Ltd., Visium Balanced Fund, LP, Visium Long Bias Offshore Fund,
Lid., Visium Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

Amendment Agreement, dated August 13, 2007, by and among Zila, Inc., Visium Balanced
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Long Bias Fund, LP, and Atlas Master Fund, Ltd.

Offer Letter, accepted August 16, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc. and David R. Bethune

Severance Agreement and Release, dated July 30, 2007, by and between Zila, Inc. and
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Amendment to Zila, Inc. 1997 Stock Award Plan
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Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 7, 2006
Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form B-K filed August 24, 2006
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Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 29, 2006
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EXHIBIT 3i.1

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, David R. Bethune, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Zila, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3, Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the retiability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contrel over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DAVID R. BETHUNE

David R. Bethune
Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Date: October 6, 2008




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Diane E. Klein, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Zila, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the staternents made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure conirols and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements of for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. -evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and '

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DIANE E. KLEIN

Diare E. Klein
Vice President — Finance and Treasurer
{Principal Financial Officer)

Date: October 6, 2008




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 US.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is not deemed filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and does
not constitute a part of the Annual Report of Zila, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended July 31,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™).

In connection with the Report of the Company, 1, David R. Bethune, Chairman and Interim Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, hereby certify pursuvant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and resulis of operations of the Company.

/s/ DAVID R. BETHUNE

David R. Bethune
Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Date: October 6, 2008




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is not deemed filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and does
not constitute a part of the Annual Report of Zila, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended July 31,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™).

In connection with the Report of the Company, I, Diane E. Klein, Vice President-Finance and Treasurer of the
Company, hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

fs/ DIANE E. KLEIN

Diane E. Klein
Vice President-Finance and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer})

Date: October 6, 2008




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Zila, Inc. and Subsidiaries

{In thousands, except per share data)

Operating Statement Data: 2008 2007 2006
Net Revenues $ 45061 $ 28801 $ 2822
Loss from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes (16,133) (28,773) (26,043)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (254} 5,941 (3.300)
Ner Loss (16,378) (13,164) (29,346)
Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share $ (1.82) $ (464 $ (450

Balance Sheet Data:

Current Assets $ 14,675 $ 24,854 $ 22,970
Total Assets 50.370 63,881 56,364
Current Liabilities 8117 10,568 29,824
Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 8,974 7.259 3,060
Total Liabilities 17,091 17,902 33,133
Equity 33,279 45,979 23,251

The financial information in this report is in summary form. The complete financial statements and notes for the year ended July 31, 2008
were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.The financial and other information in this
report is qualified by the information contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with such Annual

Report on Form |0-K.

ANNUAL MEETING
The Zila, Inc. Annual Meeting of Sharehalders will be held:
Thursday, December 11,2008,
8:00 a.m,
Phoenix Airport Marriott, | 101 N. 44th Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85008
Vote by calling [-800-652-VOTE (8683) or go cnline at www.investorvote.com

This document contains forward-looking statements with in the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, These forward-looking statements are based largely on Zila’s expectations or forecasts of future events, can be affected by inaccurate assumptions, and
are subject to various business risks and known and unknown uncertainties, a number of which are beyond the Company's control. Therefore, actual results could
differ materially from the forward-looking statements contained herein.A wide variety of factors could cause or contribute to such differences and could adversely
impact revenues, profitability, cash flows and capital needs. There can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements contained in this document will, in face,
transpire or prove to be accurate. For a more detailed description of these and other cautionary factors that may affect Zila'’s future results, please refer to Zila's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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ABOUT ZILA, INC.

Zila, Inc. is a specialty pharmaceutical company dedicated to the prevention, detection and treatrment of oral diseases, with a primary focus on oral
cancer. ViziLite® Plus, the company’s flagship product, is rapidly enhancing the standard of care for the early detection of oral abnormalities that could
lead to cancer. In addition, Zila designs, manufactures and markets a suite of proprietary products sold exclusively and directly to dental professionals for
periodontal disease, including the Rota-dent® Professional Powered Brush, the Pro-Select Platinum® ultrasenic scaler and a portfolio of oral pharmaceutical
products for both in-office and home-care use.

For more information about the company and its products, please visit www.zila.com.




